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Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies under
section 246 (4) of the Companies Act 1985,

Principal activities

The Company has no trading activities and only generates income from a loan to ils parent company, Petro-
Canada UK Limited.

Business review

As this Company sold its main asset to Petro-Canada UK Limited on 1 January 2005, there have been no
transactions other than inter-company interest receipts on two loans and the related tax thereon. At the balance
sheet date, the amount of £166.67 million plus accrued interest remains outstanding on such loans.

Future developments

The Company’s intention is to repay the loan in five equal annual instalments. A repayment was made in
January 2009 and the next repayment is due in January 2010.

Results and dividends
The profit for the year after taxation amounted to £10.8 million (2007 — £4.8 million profit).
The Company has paid dividends of £40.5 million (2007 - £nil million).

Directors and their interests

The directors who served during the year and subsequently were:

P. S. Kallos (British}

N. A. Maden (British)

G. V. Lyon (British) Resigned 31 August 2008
G. J. Carrick (Canadian)

H. J. Wesley (British) Resigned 6 October 2009

The directors who held office at the end of the financial year do not have any interests in the shares of the
Company or any other UK company, nor received any remuneration from the Company.

Going Concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and
performance, are set out above.

The Company relies upon its parent, Petro-Canada UK Limited, to repay the intercompany loan. The directors
of the Company (being also directors of Petro-Canada UK Limited) are satisfied that the Company’s
counterparty is in a strong financial position and that these receivables are fully recoverable. The directors are
not aware of any reason to believe that the acquisition of the ultimate parent company by Suncor Inc. (See Note
12) will have any adverse material impact on their ability to continue to meet their obligations as they fatl due
for the foreseeable future. As a consequence, the directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully despite the uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accerdingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements.




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

Charitable and political contributions

The Company did not make any charitable or politicai contributions.

Auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(N so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and
(2) the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make

himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Companies Act 1985.

By order of the Board

P. S. Kallos
Director

| London Bridge
London
SE1 9BG

29 October 2009




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report including the financial statements. The directors
have chosen to prepare the financial statements for the Company in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP).

Company law requires the directors to prepare such financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view, in accordance with UK GAAP, of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that period and comply with UK GAAP and the Companies Act 1985. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
¢ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclese with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Statement of Corporate responsibility

Petro-Canada world-wide is deeply committed to responsible business practices. This commitment extends to
corporate governance practices, environment, health and safety performance and involvement in communities
where our employees live and work. To review our performance in these areas in more detail, we publish an
annual Report to the Community. You can review the report on our website www.petro-canada.com.

Corporate Governance

Petro-Canada strives to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance, with a focus on a strong and
diligent Board of Directors and transparency for shareholders. Petro-Canada has solid governance and disclosure
practices, and an ethical corporate culture.

Environment, Health and Safety

Strong environment, health and safety performance is fundamental to our business as an energy company.
Underpinning our drive to consistently improve performance is the Total Loss Management system, which
provides clear management expectations, details employee responsibilities and serves as a mechanism for ongoing
stewardship and continuous improvement through a programme of regutarly scheduled facility audits. We also use
a Life-Cycle Value Assessment tool to help us identify opportunities to improve technical designs, reduce
environmental impacts and reduce costs.

The safety and well-being of our employees and those working on our behalf is an absolute business priority for
Petro-Canada, To support them, Petro-Canada provides a wide range of programmes, training and policies related
to employee well-being. We believe that all workplace injuries and illnesses are preventable and that a “Zero
Harm” workplace is possible and is our goal.

Community investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, Petro-Canada works hard to develop relationships of trust and respect, and
contribute to community well-being in the areas where we operate.




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited for the year ended 31 December 2008
which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, and the related notes | to 12. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985.
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities,

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as defined in the contents page, and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the implications for our repont if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Cur responsibilities do not extend to any
further information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and [reland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate o the company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of inforration in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

. the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements.

Poaoitte LLP

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
L.ondon, United Kingdom.

29 October 2009




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 31 December 2008

Notes
Interest receivable and similar income 3
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax credit / (charge) on profit on ordinary
activities 4

Profit for the financial year

There are no recognised gains and losses during the year other than the profit for the year.

of total recognised gains and losses is not presented.

The Company’s results are all derived from continuing activities.

2008 2007
£million £million
10.2 11.9 !
10.2 11.9
0.6 (7.1)
" 10.8 4.8

Accordingly, a statement




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Balance sheet
31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £million £million
Current assets
Debtors
- due within one vear 6 48.7 48.3
- due after one year 6 133.3 166.7
182.0 215.0
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year 7 (2.0) (3.3
Net current assets 180.0 209.7
Total assets less current liabilities 180.0 209.7
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 8 1.3 1.3
Share premium account 9 129.7 129.7
Profit and loss account 9 49.0 78.7
Total shareholders’ funds 9 180.0 209.7

Company Number 3084447

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf on 29 October 2009 by:

P. §. Kallos
Director




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008

(a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the
year and the preceding year, is set out below:

Basis of accounting

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom accounting standards.

Under the provisions of FRS 1 (Revised 1996) “Cash flow statements”, the Company has not presented a
cash flow statement because it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Petro-Canada UK Limited which itself is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Petro-Canada, incorporated in Canada. The consolidated accounts of Petro-
Canada are publicly available.

Taxation

UK corporation tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Amounts surrendered to or from
other group undertakings are paid for in full.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the
Company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the accounts that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses
in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the accounts.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the
timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the relevant rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange
rates subsequent to the date of the transaction is included as an exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss
account,

Going Concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance are set out in the Directors’ Report.

The Company relies upon its parent, Petro-Canada UK Limited, to repay the intercompany loan. The
directors of the Company (being also directors of Petro-Canada UK Limited) are satisfied that the
Company’s counterparty is in a strong financial position and that these receivables are fully recoverable,
The directors are not aware of any reason to believe that the acquisition of the ultimate parent company by
Suncor Inc. (See Note 12) will have any adverse material impact on their ability to continue to meet their
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. As a consequence, the directors believe that the
Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements.




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

2. Administration costs
The Company had no employees in 2008 (2007 - nil).
The directors received no remuneration for services to the Company during either year.

Two directors exercised stock options in the ultimate parent company during 2008 (2007: two).

Auditors ' remuneration

2008 2007
£000 £000
The analysis of the auditors’ remuneration in
respect of the Company is as follows:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the
audit of the Company’s annual accounts 7 5
There were no fees payable for other services in either year.
3. Interest receivable and similar income
2008 2007
£million £million
Interest received and receivable from group undertakings 10.2 11.9




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

4. Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities

{a)  Analysis of tax charge in the year

Current tax
UK corporation tax for current year
Adjustment in respect of prior years

Total tax (credit) / charge on profit on ordinary
activities

(b) Reconciliation of current tax charge in the year

Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Tax at 28.5%

Effects of:
Adjustment in respect of prior years

Current tax (credit) / charge for the year

There was no deferred tax at either balance sheet date.

5. Dividends paid

2008 2007
£million Emillion
2.9 3.6

3.5) 3.5
(0.6) 7.1
2008 2007
£million £million
10.2 11.9

2.9 3.6
3.5) 3.5
(0.6) 7.1

The Company paid dividends of £40.5million (2007: £nil) representing £172.64 (2007: £nil) per equity

share during the year to its immediate parent company, Petro Canada UK Limited.




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

6.

Debtors
2008 2007
£million £million
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 42.6 44.4
Amounts owed by group undertakings:
- internal clearing cash account 6.1 3.9
48.7 48.3

To optimise the use of liquid funds, the Company’s cash is held within a cash pooling system administered
by another company within the group.

2008 2007

£million £million
Amounts falling due after one year
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 133.3 166.7

The amounts owed by parent undertaking represents an unsecured loan of £200 million, and interest
thereon, which was issued on 18 January 2005 and is expected to be fully repaid in six equal annual
instalments commencing on January 2008. The loan carries interest at 5.8125% to be received annually in
arrears commencing on the first anniversary of the date of issue.

Creditors falling due within one year

2008 2007

£million £million

Sundry creditors 0.5 0.5
Corporation tax 1.5 4.8

2.0 5.3

11




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

8. Called up share capital

Authorised:
300,000 Class A ordinary shares of US$10 each
10,000 Class B ordinary shares of £1 each

Called up, allotted and fully paid

234,588 (2007~ 234,588) Class A ordinary shares
of US$10 each

1,000 Class B ordinary shares of £1 each

2008 2007
£'000 £000
1,634 1,634
10 10
1,644 1,644
1,277 1,277
1 I
1,278 1,278

Class B ordinary shares carry full voting rights; however, they carry no right te receive dividends from the
Company and their economic worth is limited to the nominal value of the shares.

9. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders? funds

At 1 January 2008
Profit for the year
Dividend

Profit and Total

Share loss  shareholders’

premium account funds

f£million £million £million £million
129.7 78.7 209.7

- 10.8 10.8
- (40.5) (40.5)

129.7 49.0 180.0

At 31 December 2008




Petro-Canada Energy North Sea Limited

Notes to the accounts
Year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

10.

11.

12.

Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under Financial Reporting Standard 8
“Related Party Disclosures” and has not disclosed details of transactions with other group undertakings as it
is a wholly owned subsidiary of Petro-Canada UK Limited which itself is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Petro-Canada. The consolidated accounts of Petro-Canada are publicly available.

Ultimate parent company

Petro-Canada UK Limited is the immediate parent company. The ultimate parent company and controlling
entity at 31 December 2008 was Petro-Canada, a company incorporated in Canada. The consolidated
accounts of the Petro-Canada Group, the smallest and largest to include the accounts of the Company, are
available from Petro-Canada at 150 — 6% Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 3ES.

Post Balance Sheet Event

On 23 March 2009, Petro-Canada announced plans to merge with Suncor Inc, a company incorporated in
Canada. Petro-Canada and Suncor shareholders have approved the merger, as have the Court of Queen’s
Bench of Alberta and the Competition Bureau. The merger with Petro-Canada and Suncor is effective from
1 August 2009. The directors do not believe that this will impact the ability of the Company to continue as a
going concern.
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Legal Notice - Forward-Looking Information

This annual report contains forward-looking information. You can usually identify this information by such words as “plan.”
"anticipate,” "forecast," "believe," "target," “intend," "expect," "estimate,” "budgel” or other terms that suggest future outcomes
or references to outlooks. Forward-locking information in this annual report includes references to:

. business strategies and goals
+ future investment decisions

*  outlook (including operational updates and strategic
milestones)

+ future capital, exploration and other expenditures

«  future cash flows

e future resource purchases and sales

«  anticipated construction and repair activities

=  anticipated tumarounds at refineries and other facilities

= anticipated refining margins

e future oil and natural gas production levels and the
sources of their growth

«  project development, and expansion schedules and
resuits

«  future exploration activities and results, and dates by
which certain areas may be developed or come on-
stream

Such forward-looking information is based on a number of assumptions and analysis made by the Company. These
assumptions and analysis are described in greater detail throughout this annual report and include, without limitation,

anticipated retail throughputs

anticipated pre-production and operating costs
reserves and resources estimates

future royalties and taxes payable

production life-of-field estimates

natural gas export capacity

future financing and capital activities {including
purchases of Petro-Canada common shares under the
Company's normal course issuer bid (NCIB) program)
contingent liabilittes (including potential exposure to
losses related to retail licensee agreements)

the impact and cost of compliance with existing and
potential environmental regulations

future regulatory approvals

expected rates of retum

assumptions with respect to future commodity prices, the state of the economy, required capital expenditures, levels of cash
flow, regulatory requirements, industry capacity, the results of exploration and development drilling and the ability of suppliers

to meet commitments,

Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-iooking information. Such forward-looking information is subject to known and
unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause actual results, levels of activity and achievements to differ materially from
those expressed or implied by such information. Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:

« changes in industry capacity

«  imprecise reserves estimates of recoverable quantities
of oil, natural gas and liquids from resource plays, and
other sources not currently classified as reserves

=  the effects of weather and climate conditions

+ the results of exploration and development drilling, and
related activities

» the ability of suppliers to meet commitments

+ decisions or approvals from administrative tribunals

»  risks associated with domestic and international oll and
natural gas operations

+ changes in general economic, market and business
conditions

competitive action by other companies
fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices
changes in refining and marketing margins

the ability to produce and transport crude ofl and natural
gas to markets

fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates

actions by governmental authorities (including changes
in taxes, royalty rates and resource-use strategies)

changes in environmental and other regulations
intemational political events

nature and scope of actions by stakeholders and/or the
general public

Many of these and other similar factors are beyond the control of Petro-Canada. Petro-Canada discusses these factors in
greater detail in filings with the Canadian provincial securities commissions and the United States (U.S.) Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). See also “Risk Management — Risks Relating to Petro-Canada's Business” in this annual report
for a discussion of factors that could impact Petro-Canada's operations or results.
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Readers are cautioned that this list of important factors affecting forward-looking information is not exhaustive. Furthermore,
the forward-locking information in this annual report is made as of February 23, 2009 and, except as required by applicable
faw, will not be publicly updated or revised. This cautionary stalement expressly qualifies the foryvard-looking information in this
annual report.

Petro-Canada disclosure of reserves

Petro-Canada's qualified reserves evaluators prepare the reserves estimates the Company uses. The Canadian provincial
securities commissions do not consider Petro-Canada’s reserves staff and management as independent of the Company.
Petro-Canada has obtained an exemption from certain Canadian reserves disclosure requirements that allows Petro-Canada
to make disclosure in accordance with SEC standards where noted in this annual report. This exemption allows comparisons
with U.S. and other intemational issuers.

As a result, Petro-Canada formally discloses its proved reserves data using U.S. requirements and practices, and these may
differ from Canadian domestic standards and practices. The use of the terms such as "probable,” "possibie,” "resources” and
“life-of-field production” in this annual report does not meet the SEC guidelines for SEC filings. To disclose reserves in SEC
filings, oil and natural gas companies must prove they are economically and legally producible under existing economic and
operating conditions. Note that when the term barnrels of cil equivalent (boe) is used in this annual report, it may be misleading,
particularly if used In isclation. A boe conversion ratio of six thousand cubic feet (Mcf) to one barrel (bbl) is based on an energy
equivalency conversion method. This method primarily applies at the burner tip and does not represent a value equivalency at

the wellhead. The table below describes the industry definitions that Petro-Canada currently uses:

Mo

Definitions Petro-Canada uses Reference
Proved oil and natural gas reserves (includes both proved SEC reserves definition (Accounting Rules Regulaticn §-X
devetoped and proved undeveloped) 210.4-10, U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

Statement No. 69)
SEC Guide 7 for Qil Sands Mining

Unproved reserves, probable and possible reserves Canadian Securities Administrators: Canadian Qil and Gas
Evaluation (COGE} Handbock, Vol. 1 Section 5 prepared by
the Society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers (SPEE) and the
Canadian Institute of Mining Metallurgy and Petroleumn (CIM}

Contingent and Prospective Rescurces Petroleum Resources Management System: Society of
Petroleum Engineers, SPEE, World Petroleum Congress and
American Association of Petroleum Geologist definitions
{approved March 2007}

Canadian Securities Administrators: COGE Handbook Vol. 1
Section 5

Although the Society of Petroleumn Engineers resource classification has categories of 1C, 2C and 3C for Contingent
Resources, and low, best and high estimates for Prespective Resources, Petrg-Canada will only refer to the unrisked 2C for
Contingent Resources and the partially risked best estimate for Prospective Resources when referencing resources in this
annual report. Estimates of resources in this annual report include contingent resources that have not been adjusted for risk
based on the chance of development and partially risked prospective resources that have been risked for chance of discovery,
but have not been risked for chance of development. Such estimates are not estimates of volumes that may be recovered and
actual recovery is likely to be less and may be substantially less or zero. If a discovery is made, there is no certainty that it will
be developed or, ifit is developed. there is no certainty as to the timing of such development.

Canadian Qil Sands represents approximately 68% of Petro-Canada’s total for Contingent and Prospective Resources. The
balance of Petro-Canada's resources is spread out across the business, most notably in the North American frontier and
International areas. Also, when Petro-Canada references resources for the Company, unrisked Contingent Resources are
approximately 70% of the Company’s total resources and partially risked Prospective Resources are approximately 30% of the
Company’s total resources.
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Cautionary statement: In the case of discovered resources or a subcategory of discovered resources other than reserves, there
is no certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce any portion of the resources. In the case of undiscovered resources
or a subcategory of undiscovered resources, there is no certainty that any portion of the resources will be discovered. If
discovered, there is ng certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce any portion of the resources.

For movement of resources to reserves calegories, all projects must have an econcmic depletion plan and may require:
+ additional delineation drilling and/or new technology for unrisked Contingent Resources
* exploration success with respect to partially risked Prospective Resources

* project sanction and regulatory approvals

Reserves and resources information contained in this annual report is as at December 31, 2008,
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About Petro-Canada

Petro-Canada {the Company) is one of Canada's largest oil and gas companies, operating in both the upstream and the
downstream sectors of the industry in Canada and internationally. The Company creates value by responsibly developing
energy resources and providing world class petroleum products and services. Petro-Canada is proud to be a National Partner
to the Vancouver 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games. Petro-Canada’s common shares trade on the Toronto Stock
Exchange (TSX} under the symbol PCA and on the New York Stock Exchange {(NYSE) under the symbol PCZ.

With a market capitalization of approximately $13.6 billion", Petro-Canada is a mid-sized energy company. Qur roots are in
Canada, a country rich in resources and part of the large and growing North American market.

In 2008, Petro-Canada continued to execute its business strategy to focus on operational execution, resulting in the delivery of
hase business targets, and to advance our major growth projects for future long-term profitability.

This annual report provides details of Petro-Canada's operational and financial capabilities. The Report fo the Community,
which the Company will publish mid-2009, will elaborate on Petro-Canada's commitment to corporate responsibility objectives
and performance.

Financial and Operating Highlights

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Net earnings from continuing operations (§ millions) 3134 2,733 1,588 1,693 1,698
Cash flow from continuing operating activities ($ miltions)! 6,522 3,339 3,608 3,783 3,928
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and

exploration from continuing operations (§ mitlions) 6,344 3,988 3434 3,560 3,893
Debt-to-debt plus equity (%)2 235 225 217 23.5 228
Debt-to-cash flow from continuing operating activities

{times) 0.7 1.0 0.8 0.8 08
Return on capital employed (%)F 18.6 19.8 14.3 16.0 175
Upstream proved reserves before royalties

{millions of barrels of il equivalent — MMboe)? 1,286 1,315 1,274 1,232 1,213

1 Cash flow from continuing cperating activities in 2007 was reduced by the payment of $1,145 million after-tax to settle the hedged portion of
Buzzard production.

2 Includes results from discontinued operations.

3 The reperting of working interest reserves before royalties, MMboe and combining cil and gas and il sands mining activities together does not
conform to SEC standards.

1 As of February 27, 2009.
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Q&A with the President

At the beginning of 2008, we set two key priorities for Petro-Canada: to meet base business targets and to advance our
major growth projects. | want to take this opportunity to explain how the Company performed against these priorities, and to
share with you why | believe Petro-Canada has the strength fo deliver.

How reliable were Petro-Canada’s operations in 20087

We had scolid results in 2008, particularly at Terra Nova and MacKay River, with both facilities running at 90% reliability or
better. At MacKay River, we exited the year at nameplate capacity of about 30,000 barrels/day. Our other operated facilities
also had excellent reliability, including our natural gas plants, lubricants plant and the Montreal refinery. The Edmonton refinery
had some challenges, including an unplanned outage in August and a small fire in late January 2009 after having a stellar run
through four to five years of continuous construction; all in all, a very good year that resutted in our production coming in at the
high end of our guidance range.

What about safety performance in 20087

Our total recordable injury frequency improved over 2007 and was again among the industry’'s best. But as long as we continue
to have incidents, there is still room to improve. We're continuing to look for ways to reduce injuries, particularly among our
contractors. We remain committed to our goal of Zero-Harm.

What.progress did Petro-Canada make on its growth projects in 20087

We achieved many of our planned milestones, including completing construction of the Edmonton refinery conversion project.
We zlso made a final investment decision on the Syria Ebla gas development and it’s on target for a 2010 stariup. In Libya, we
signed agreements on attractive terms for the Exploration and Production Sharing Agreements, adding significantly to our
reserves position. At Fort Hills, our front-end engineering and design work is essentially complete. However, escalating costs
and the collapse of the financial markets impacted the project. We are looking for ways to reduce these costs, while working
with the Alberta government to extend the mine lease. Fort Hills is a quality initiative and will proceed when the time is right.

How strong is Petro-Canada’s financial position given the economic downturn and lower commodity prices?

We've always been financially conservative and this has paid off. In mid-2008, we shored up our balance sheet with a
substantial debt issue. We entered 2009 with a year-end cash balance of $1.4 billion, and $4.7 billion in unused credit, feading
our Canadian peers when it comes to liquidity. As well, the two metrics used to measure our financia! strength (the debt-to-debt
plus equity and debt-to-cash flow ratios) are well below our long-term ranges.

What is Petro-Canada’s financial strategy to manage through the market uncertainty?

In 2009, we have a planned capital program of $4 billion, down significantly from the $6 to $7 billion range we were looking at
for 2009 a year ago. We're prioritizing our capital spending so that no matter how the year unfolds, we can fund most of our
capital program frem cash flow, cash and, if necessary, a drawdown of available credit facilities. With a strong balance sheet,
low debt ratios and diverse businesses able to generate stable cash flows, we're in a great financial position for the times.

How are low commodity prices expected to impact Petro-Canada’s business?

We are following the business environment and financial markets closely to manage within our financial means. Cne of the
strengths of our diverse asset base is that we can generate good cash flow even at low o¢il prices. In our upstream business,
80% of our production will generate positive cash flow at prices well below what we've seen so far this year. Our East Coast
and North Sea assets have positive cash flows at crude oil prices of $10/bbl or less.

ALL PETRO-CANADA Q&A with the President




What cost reductions are management contemplating for Petro-Canada in 20097

As our number one priority is to focus on operational execution in our base business, we're looking at all our discretionary
expenses to reduce spending and lower our overall cost structure across the organization. We are doing this without
compromising safety or reliability. We are also appropriately pacing our growth projects for the times, looking for ways to
reduce capital costs and improve project economics.

How has the downturn impacted Petro-Canada’s suite of growth projects?

We are pacing our growth projects through these challenging times to maintain growth in shareholder value. We intend to
advance our three Board of Directors-approved projects as originally planned. These are our Libya Exploration and Production
Sharing Agreements, the North Amethyst portion of the White Rose Extensions and our Syria Ebla gas development. For our
three unsanctioned projects (Fort Hills, the MacKay River expansion and the Montreal coker), we're waiting to see a recovery
in commodity prices and financial markets before moving ahead. In the meantime, we're working to reduce project costs and
execution risk.

Is Petro-Canada actively pursuing mergers and/or acquisitions?

Petro-Canada has a strong liquidity position and our focus in 2009 is to preserve cur capital, However, we do have some
financial flexibility to take advantage of opportunities that would complement our existing assets.

What is management’s approach to return cash to shareholders in 20097

With respect te cur use of cash in 2009, our first priority is to fund long-term growth projects. Qur second priority is to retumn
cash to shareholders in the form of dividends or share buyback programs. Over the past few years, we have been able to do
both, thanks to strong operations and a robust business environment. In 2009, we expect to use most of our free cash to fund
operations and projects, so share buybacks will likely not come into play. Paying dividends is a way we return sustainable and
growing cash directly to shareholders, a long-term commitment that must be preserved. In that regard, we raised our dividend
last July by 54% to $0.20 per share each quarter.

Why do you think Petro-Canada's stock price has underperformed that of its peers?

| believe this is largely due to our strategy of being focused on consistently creating shareholder value over time. Increasingly,
equity investors are becoming more short-term oriented, moving in and out of stocks in search of short-term gains. Because we
invest in large, long-life projects, our growth tends to come in stages. We are in this business for the long run and are well
positioned to succeed in both good and tough economi¢ times. The excellent position we're in during the current circumstances
Is a good illustration of that.

One specific issue that impacted shareholder sentiment in 2008 was the extracrdinary run-up in costs for the Fort Hills project,
resulting in one of our key growth projects becoming uneconomic. However, we're addressing that by moving from a schedule-
driven to a cost-driven project focus, and taking advantage of the cumrent softening in the construction market to bring capital
and operating costs back down.

What is your response to those in the investment community critical of Petro-Canada’s strategy?

We are always open to dialogue with existing and prospective shareholders about the Company’s strategy and plans. We
share their abjective of creating long-term shareholder value.

| remain confident that Petro-Canada has the right strategy and plan in place. Qur strategy positions the Company well to
weather this tough business environment, because it maintains our financial strength and preserves our growth opportunities.
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How is management keeping employees engaged during these uncertain times?

Empldyees are our most valuable resource. Over the years, we have enhanced and increased our focus on leadership
development and internal communications to keep employees engaged and up to date on Petro-Canada. We have accelerated
development for some strong performers and facilitated face-to-face and online discussions between leaders and their teams.
Employees actively participate in many of these discussions.

What is your perspective on the debate between energy development and environmental impact, particulary
related to the oil sands?

We recognize both energy development and environmental protection are integral to our success. The oil sands, in particular,
play a big role in our future. This supply source makes up a significant portion of giobal energy supply from non state-controlled
countries, but it also presents environmental challenges. We're committed to working with industry, govemment, regulators and
subject experts to respond to these challenges, address stakeholders concerns and work toward minimizing our environmenial
impact. | believe we can continue to develop this important resource in a way that meets society’s expectations.

Is Petro-Canada considering scaling back its community partnership program or Qlympic Games sponsorship?

Petro-Canada’s success as an energy company depends on the support of people in many communities. We remain
committed to all our partnerships, both at the local community grassroots level and the larger scale Qlympic Games.

What is Petro-Canada’s position on climate change actions and evolving regulations?

Climate change is one of the toughest environmental issues we face today and in the foreseeable future. It's a complex issue,
which requires integrated solutions — solutions we want to be a part of. We're working to minimize our environmental footprint,
including efforts to reduce greenhouse gases in Canada and abroad. We're working with our industry association and
government officials to develop a climate change framework. And we're encouraging candid, two-way dialogue with our
stakeholders.

What are the key factors to Petro-Canada's short- and long-term success?

First, the need for operational execution (safe and reliable operations) is as great as ever. This is how we will generate
maximum cash flow in this environment. Second, we must use our financial strength prudently to manage our way through
this economic downturn and come out well positioned on the other side. And finally, it's imperative to have quality growth
projects for future development that will produce stable, long-term cash flows and help secure further opportunities. Plain and
simple, Petro-Canada is strong on all three fronts.

We have a track record of solid operational reliability, businesses that generate robust cash flows, a strong financial position
and a quality portfolio of assets. | am confident that Petro-Canada has the strength to deliver.

T Lo

Ron Brenneman
Prasident and Chief Executive Officer
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), dated effective as of February 23, 2008, shouid be read in conjunction
with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes for the year ended December 31, 2008, included within this
2008 annual report and the 2008 Annual Information Form (AlF). Financial data has been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principies (GAAP), uniess otherwise specified. All dolar values are Canadian (Cdn)
dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Al oil and natural gas production and reserves volumes are stated before deduction of
royalties, unless otherwise indicated. Graphs accompanying the text portray performance of the Company within its “value
drivers,” which are the key measures of performance in each segment of Petro-Canada’s business. A glossary of financial
terms, ratios and acronyms can be found on page 114 of this report.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The major economic factors influencing Petro-Canada's upstream financial performance include crude oil and natural gas
prices and foreign exchange, particularly the Cdn dollar/U.S. dollar rates (US). Crude oif and natural gas prices are affected by
a number of factors, including the balance of supply and demand, weather and political events. Economic factors influencing
Downstream financial performance include the level and volatility of crude oil prices, industry refining margins, levels of crude
oil price differentials, demand for refined petroleum products, the degree of market competition and foreign exchange,
particularly the Cdn dollar/U.S. dollar rates.

Business Environment in 2008

The year 2008 was one of the most volatile on record for oil markets. The first half of the year saw significant upward
momentum in oil prices as weak supply growth fell short of robust demand growth in non-Organization of Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) countries. Economic momentum slowed dramatically in the second half of the year as
the glabal financial ¢risis intensified, depressing crude oil demand appreciably. By the end of 2008, demand was negative. The
swings in oil prices through 2008 were also accompanied by record inflows, followed by record outflows, of investment dollars
from commaodity market funds. The price of Narth Sea Brent (Dated Brent) opened the year at just under $100 US/barre! (bbl),
climbed to record highs of over $140 US/bbl in early July, and then feil

steadily to under $45 US/bbl by early December. Despite the declines in )

the latter half of the year, the annual average price of Dated Brent was :;::g;:;;d;::t g.utzy-bm
the highest ever at $96.89 US/bbl, approximately one-third above the at Sullom Voe

2007 average. 80 4

. mUSLAY
In 2008, the international light/heavy crude (Dated Brent/Mexican Maya) 60 1

price differential averaged $13.15 US/bbl, somewhat wider than the
$12.67 US/bl posted in 2007. Canadian light/heavy crude (Edmonton
LightWestern Canada Select (WCS)) spreads namowed in 2008 to 20 4
$19.91 Cdn/bbl from $24.07 Cdn/bbl in 2007. Canadian heavy crudes
continued to be sold at a greater discount to light crudes, compared

40 1

with international heavy ¢rudes. This is due to Canadian heavy crude oil ® o ®
production growing at a faster rate than Nerth American investment to

convert refineries to process heavy feedstock. The Canadian discount

narrowed in 2008, however, as the supply of competing heavy oil Average Natural Gas USSMMEN)

imports from Mexico and Venezuela declined. Prices Henry Hub 10 1

North American natural gas prices were very volatile in 2008. Natural
gas prices at the Henry Hub ranged from over $13.50 US/million British B USSMMBy
thermal units (MMBtu) in July to under $6.50 US/MMBtu in November.
Overall, Henry Hub prices averaged $8.95 US/MMBtu in 2008, about
30% higher than in 2007. The increase was due to higher crude oil
prices, which raised the cost of distillate fuels that in tum competed with
natural gas. In 2008, the Canadian natural gas price at the AECO-C
hub rose 23%, somewhat less than U.S. prices, as the strength of the
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Canadian dollar in the first half of the year offset some of the gains in Average Canadian/U.S,  (US cortsCohs)
natural gas prices. Exchange Rate 100 1

The Canadian dollar was also extremely volatile in 2008, falling from
parity with the U.S. dollar in the first half of the year to under
80 cents US by December. Overall, the Canadian dollar averaged
94 cents US in 2008, compared with 93 cents US in 2007. The
strength of the Canadian cumrency in the first half of the year reduced
some of the impact of stronger international prices on Canadian crude
oil and natural gas prices. Similarly, the decline in the Canadian dollar
in the second half of the year offset some of the impac¢t from the
declines in intemational crude oil and natural gas prices.

8 US conts/Can$

In the downstream sector, refined petroleum products sales in

Canada increased by 0.5% in 2008, compared with a gain of 3.4% in :::;E;_’;_'r York 2‘;5“’
2007. Demand growth in 2008 was relatively stronger in Canada than Refinery Crack

in the U.S., but momentum slowed steadily through the year. The Spread 12 1
New York Harbor 3-2-1 ¢rack spread, an indicator of overall refining -
margins, averaged $9.58US/bbl in 2008, compared with

$14.15 US/bbl in 2007. Declines in gascline cracking margins more 6 1
than offset gains in distillate cracking margins. With the exception of 34
relatively brief hurricane-induced spikes in September, gasoline
cracking margins were pressured downward by declining U.S.
consumption. Distillate margins rose markedly, averaging over
$19.61 US/HH, as strong demand for diesel fuel from, non-OECD
countries and commodity producers led to sharply higher product
exponts from the U.S.

Commodity Price Indicators and Exchange Rales

{averages for the years indicated) 2008 2007 2006
Crude oil price indicators {per bbif}
Dated Brent at Sullom Voe uss 96.99 72.52 65.14
West Texas Intermediate (WTI) at Cushing Us$ 99.65 72.31 66.22
WTI/Dated Brent price differential Us$ 286 (0.21) 1.08
Dated BrentMexican Maya price differential uss 13.15 1267 13.94
Edmonton Light . Cdn% 102.83 76.84 73.23
Edmonton Light/WCS {heavy) price differential Cdn$ 19.91 24.07 22.40
Natural gas price indicators
Henry Hub (per MMBiu) uss 895 6.92 7.26
AECO-C spot (per thousand cubic feet — Mcf) Cdn$ 8.47 6.89 7.28
Henry Hub/AECO basis differential {per MMBIu) Uss 115 0.80 1.08
New York Harbor 3-2-1 refinery crack spread (per bbij! : uss 9.58 14.15 9.80
US$/Cdn3 exchange rate uss 0.94 0.93 0.88

1 On January 1, 2007, the New York Harbor 3-2-1 crack spread calculation changed. It is now based on Reformulated Gasoline Blendstock for
Oxygenate Blending (RBOB} gasoline (the base for blending gasoline with 10% denatured ethanol) as opposed to conventional gasoline, Due
1o this change in specification, the 2007 and 2008 crack spread values are not directly comparable to 2006 values.
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Competitive Conditions

it is increasingly challenging for the energy sector to find new sources of oif and natural gas. Petro-Canada is well positioned to
successfully increase production of oil and natural gas and compete for new opportunities that could complement existing
upstream resources. The Company has an estimated 14 billion barrels of oil equivalent {boe) of resources from which to
develop new production, with approximately 88% of the resources located in Alberta's oil sands. With upstream business
operations in Canada and internationally, the Company has the flexibility to pursue a wide range of oppertunities. While the
Company has significant operational scope, as measured by production levels, it remains a mid-sized global company. This
means Petro-Canada has the operational capability and balance sheet strength to invest in large projects, but smaller
investments can also have a meaningful impact on the Company's production levels and financial returns.

Petro-Canada is well posilioned to compete in the petroleum product refining and marketing business in Canada.
Petro-Canada has the second fargest downstream business in Canada and is the "brand of choice.” The Company conducts
business in the downstream throughout Canada as an integrated business unit and participates in the refining, distribution and
marketing of petroleum products. The Company also offers a wide range of ancillary non-petroleum geods and services, such
as convenience retailing, automotive repair and car washes.

The Company's strong financial position, track record of successfully executing large capital projects and depth of
management experience should enable it to continue to compete effectively in the current business environment.

QOutlook for Business Environment in 2009

Prices for energy commodities are expected to remain volatile in 2009, reflecting the high degree of uncertainty associated with
the global financial crisis and the unprecedented scale and scope of official stimulus measures being implemented around the
world. On the demand side, the world economy has moved into recession in 2009 following one of the strongest and longest
global expansions since the Second Woerld War.

The global financial crisis has led to a marked increase in the cost and a large decrease in the availability of capital. The
petroleum industry is highly capital intensive, requiring significant reinvestment rates in order to maintain output to offset
natural reservoir declines. Reduced cash flows from lower commodity prices coupled with capital constraints will lead to lower
supply growth over the coming years. Supply may also be influencged by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries
{OPEC) production decisions.

More stringent environmental regufations are anticipated which, relative to the situation, will slow the growth rate of energy
demand by directly or indirectly increasing the cost of consuming fossil fuels.

There are several downside risks for North American natural gas markets in 2009. Higher residential demand due to colder-
than-normal temperatures this winter across most of North America has been offset by very weak industrial demand, the latter
of which is 'expected to persist until the economy recovers. Slower economic growth in both Europe and Asia, where relatively
higher natural gas prices aftracted virtually all of the global liquefied natural gas (LNG) supply in 2008, could push some of
these shipments back into the U.S. market in 2009. U.S. domestic natural gas supply rose strongly over the past year owing to
innovative applications of horizontal drilling and fracturing technologies in non-conventional reservoirs (especially shale and
tight-sands gas deposits). Although drilling activity declined sharply alongside the collapse in commaodity prices and rising cost
of capital, this is not expected to reverse the upward trend in domestic supplies until late 2009 at the earfiest.

Barring refinery mishaps or accidents of nature, 2009 refining margins in the downstream are expected to be weaker than in
2008. North American refined petroleum products demand will likely remain well below aggregate refining capacity until the
economy begins to recover.

Finally, the Canadian dollar is expected to remain loosely correlated with crude oil prices in 2009, providing some offset {o
fluctuations in intemational crude oil and natural gas prices.
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Economic Sensitivities

The following table illustrates the estimated after-tax effects that changes in certain factors would have had on Petro-Canada's
2008 net eamings had these changes occurred.

Sensitivities Affecting Net Eamings

Annual Net Annual Net
Earnings Earnings
Factor'-2 Change {+} Impact Impact
{millions of Canadian
. doltars) {S/share}®
Upstream
Price received for crude oil and natural gas liguids (NGLY* $ 1.00/b%! $ 54 $ 0.1
Price received for natural gas $ 0.25/Mef 30 " 0.06
Exchange rate: US$/Cdn§ refers to impact on upstream
eamnings® $ 0.01 (60) (0.12)
Crude oil and NGL production (barrels/day — b/d) 1,000 b/d 15 0.03
Natural gas production (miliion cubic feet/day - MMcfid) 10 MMcfid 1 0.02
Downstream
New York Harbor 3-2-1 crack spread $  1.00US/bbl 22 0.05
Chicago 3-2-1 crack spread §  1.00US/bbl 20 0.04
Seattie 3-2-1 crack spread $  1.00US/bbl 9 0.02
WTI/Dated Brent price differential $ 1.00 US/bhl 25 0.05
Dated Brent/Maya FOB price differential $ 1.00 US/bbl 5 0.01
WTl/synthetic price differential $  1.00US/bbl 14 0.03
Exchange rate; US$/Cdn$ refers to impact on downstream
cracking margins and crude price differentials® $ 0.01 {11} {0.02)
Natural gas fuel cost — AECC natural gas price $ 1.00 Cdn/Mcf (10 {0.02)
Asphalt - % of Maya crude oil price 1% 2 -
Heavy fuel oil — % of WT! crude oil price 1% 2 -
Corporate
Exchange rate: US$/Cdn$ refers to impact of the revaluation
of U.S. dollar-denominated, long-term debt’ 3 0.04 $ 3 $ 0.06

-

[or TIN5 TP - P N ]

The impact of a change in one factor may be compounded or offset by changes in other factors. This table does not consider the impact of any
inter-relationship amang the factors.

The impact of these factors is iltustrative.

Per share amounts are based on the number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2008.

This sensitivity is based upon an equivalent change in the price of WTI and Dated Brent.

A strengthening Canadian dollar compared with the U.S. dollar has a negative effect on upstream net earnings.

A strengthening Canadian dollar compared with the U.S. doltar has a negative effect on downstream cracking margins and crude price
differentials,

A strengthening Canadian dollar versus the U.S. dollar has a positive effect on corporate earnings with respect to the Company's U.S. dollar-
denominated debt, The impact refers fo gains or losses on $2.9 billion US of the Company's U.S. dollar-denominated long-term dett and
interest costs on U.S. dollar-denominated debt. Gains or losses on $1.1 billion US of the Company's U.S. dollar-dencminated long-term debt,
associated with the self-sustaining Internaticnal business segment and the U.S. Rockies operations included in the Neorth American Natural
Gas business segment, are deferred and included as part of shareholders' equity.
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BUSINESS STRATEGY
Value Proposition and Strategy

The value proposition Petro-Canada offers to its investors can best be summarized as "Integrated Value from a Diversified
Resource Base." The Company's business strategy continues to be:

* improving the profitability of the base business

- meeting annual producfion guidance

+ selecting the right assets to develop and then driving for first quartile performance’
* faking a disciplined approach to profitable growth

« leveraging existing assets

+ accessing new opporlunililes with a focus on long-life assets

« building a balanced exploration program

The Company believes its structure and scope strategically position Petro-Canada to deliver long-term shareholder value. With
a base in Canada, Petro-Canada is situated in a stable, resource-rich and demand-driven market. An ever-increasing
international presence and integration across businesses provide the Company access to more value-adding growth
opportunities and an ability to better manage risk through a diversified portfolic. As a mid-sized global company, even smaller
sized investments can have a material impact. Through its major growth projects, Petro-Canada has visible and flexible growth
over the next several years. The Company remains committed to developing energy resources responsibly and providing
growth opportunities for employees. '

Execution of the Strategy in 2008
Improving Base Business Profitability

For 2008, Petro-Canada focused on two areas to deliver improved base business profitability, delivering upstream production
in line with updated annual guidance and continuing to improve safety and reliability performance. Safety, reliability and cost
management are measures that are continuously tracked, reported and improved upon.

Through a focus on execution, the Company achieved upstream production at the high end of its guidance range of 400,000 to
420,000 barrels of oil equivalent/day (boe/d) in 2008. This strong production growth was largely due to strong reliability at most
of the Company’s major facilities.

Western Canada natural gas processing facilities operated at reliability rates of 99%. The two Downstream refineries and
lubricants plant had a combined reliability index of 86. The lower Downstream refiability in 2008 was due to unplanned outages
at the Edmonton refinery. The most significant improvements in 2008 were at the Terra Nova facility and the Oil Sands’
MacKay River in sifur operation, with reliabilities of 90% and 97%, respectively. The Company has a continued focus to improve
facility reliability in 2009.

Corporate-wide, Petro-Canada views safety as an indicator of operational excellence. The Company has a Zero-Harm
philosophy. This means the Company believes that work-related injuries and illnesses are foreseeable and preventable. The
Company is committed to maintaining a first quartiie safety record. In 2008, Petro-Canada achieved a Total Recordable Injury
Frequency (TRIF) of 0.73, a 16% improvement over the previous year, and one of the best safety recards in the sector.

Managing costs is another key to improving base business profitability. Petro-Canada has a disciplined approach to financial
nﬁanagement with efforts constantly made across the Company to responsibly manage expenses and improve efficiencies.
Petro-Canada entered 2009 with a strong liquidity position, providing the Company with flexibility to execute its
capital preram.

1 References to first quartile operations in this report do not refer to industry-wide benchmarks or externally known measures. The
Company has a variety of internal metrics that define and track first quartile operational performance.
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Maintaining Financial Discipline and Flexibilty

PRIORITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS

Fund Capital + fund $5.3 billion capital expenditure | - funded capital expenditure program of | - fund $4.0 billion capital expenditure
Expenditures with program through a combination of $6.4 billion from liquidity sources program from expected cash flow,
Gash Flow ang Debt cash flow and access to capital - exercised flexibility within major cash on hand and accessing balance
As Reguired markets, as needed projects in response to business sheet sirength, as needed

+ prioritize execution of projects environment + manage operating and capital costs

- maintain investment grade credit | - maintained investment grade credit |  Within budgets

ratings ratings of Baa2 from Moody's + maintain investment-grade credit
Investors Services (Moody's), BBB ratings

from Standard & Poor's (S&P) and A
{tow} from DBRS Limited (DBRS)

« ended 2008 strong, with debt levels at

%3.5% of total capital and a ratio of
0.7 times debt-to-cash flow from
operating activities

+ mainigined adequate liquidity, with a

year-end cash balance of $1.4 bilion
and unutilized eredit facility capacity
of $4.7 billion

Fund Profitable
Growth

+ identify and invest in long-life assets

- made finat investment decision {FID)

on Syvia Ebla gas project, signed
Libya Exploration and Production
Sharing Agreements {EPSAs), funded
Edmonton refinery conversion project
{RCP) and received approval for
North Amethyst portion of White Rose
Extensions

- postponed making FID on Fort Hills

Phase 1, MacKay River expansion
{MRX) and Montreal coker

+ investin additional growth

opportunities when there is a strong
business case

Retum Cash to - regularly review the dividend strategy | - increased quarterly dividend by 54% | - regularly review the dividend strategy
Shareholders 1o align with financial and growth to $0.20/share 10 align with financial and growth
cbjectives and shareholder - renewed nommal course issuer bid objectives, and shareholder
expetations (NCIB) program in June 2008, expectations
- buy back shares, when appropriate, entiling the Company to purchase up |- buy back shares when appropriate,
with priority o first fund profitable to 5% of the outstanding common with priority to first fund profitable
growth shares, subject to certain conditions growth
- purchased zero shares during 2008
Long-Term Profitable Growth

Adding new material oppertunities is fundamental to long-term growth. In 2008, one of Petro-Canada's priorities was to
advance its seven major growth projects. Highlights included completing construction of the Edmonton RCP, signing six new
Libya EPSAs and making a FID on the Syria Ebla gas development. In the East Coast business, project partners received
regulatory approval for the North Amethyst development of the White Rose Extensions project to proceed. The Company also
completed preliminary front-end engineering and design (FEED) work on the Fort Hills project, received regulatory approval for
expansion of the MacKay River facility and progressed engineering on the Montreal coker project.

In pursuing these growth projects, Petro-Canada is seeking to increase the relative proportion of long-ife resources in the
portfolio as a means to deliver sustainable cash flow and eamnings. With the exception of the White Rose Extensions, all of

M
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these major growth projects are considered long-life assets. In the upstream, Petro-Canada defines long-life assets as those
projects that have more :h‘an 10 years of peak production and sustainable cash flow. In the Downstream, refineries and
gasoline stations share the same long-life characteristics. These kinds of assets provide sustainable cash flow and make the
Company less dependent on exploration success for growth. The Company also seeks to expand long-life assets from
existing infrastructure.

Long-Life Production (%)

In 2008, about 30% of Petro-Canada's production came from assets considered long-life. Successful execution of the business
strategy will mean a higher proportion of long-ife resources in the future.

1%
Long-Lia Syncruda 53""““"9
Assels Syncrude MacKay River MacKay River

Trinidad
Libya

Fort Hills
Syria
Lewis

Arctic LNG

Trinidad
Libya tong-Lve
Assels

2000 2008 Future
212,000 boeld 418,000 boe/d 500,000+ boefd

Along with long-life assets, the Company pursues profitable growth through a balanced exploration program. A balanced
exploration program is one that provides a balanced risk/reward profile and that collectively adds to reserves over time, In
2008, Petro-Canada and its partners drilled 14 exploration wells.

Five of these wells were compleled as discoveries and two were completed as successful appraisal wells. Drilling of an
Alaskan well was suspended, and there is a plan for re-entry in 2009, Six wells were abandoned as dry holes or non-
commercial discoveries and were written off. At year-end 2008, cperations continued on one well.

This table represents exploration in International, East Ceast Canada, Alaska and the Northwest Territories (NWT) but does
not include Western Canada and U.S. Rockies.

2008 Results 2009 Qutlook

Discoveries - Discoveries - Still being Dry and

{number of welis) Qil Natural Gas evaluated abandoned
North Sea 2 2 - 2 4
Syria - - - - -
Libya 1 - - - 4
Trinidad and Tobago - 4 - 2 -
AMaska - 1 - 3
NWT - - - 1 -

East Coast Canada - - - -
Total® 3 7 1 5 12

1 Twowells were cared over into 2008 from 2007,
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Following our Principles for Responsible Investment and Operations

Cash and In-Kind Contributions of Nearty

§14 Milion in 2008

Years ended December 31 (unaudited)
{mifions of Canadian dodars)

2 o

20 -
18 A
16 1
14 4
12 4

=
&~

Qur principles guide our actions and track our performance in the areas of business
conduct, community support, environment, working conditions and human rights.

Petro-Canada's Community Partnerships Program supports significant community
initiatives relating to key business areas. Education and capacity building are
themes that underpin all the Company's investments. The Company’s community
initiatives aim to create long-term programs with a measurable investment return for
the Company and its partners.

There is a growing concem about the impact the energy sector has on the
environment. The Company shares this concem and actively seeks to minimize the
impact of Petro-Canada's operations on land, water and air. The Company's areas
of focus are use of water, and management of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

n E
06 oF
Q Enviconment
W Education
W Otympic/Paralympic
W Unted Way |

W Local cormmunity suppor ¢

1 Company contrbutions and camparyn £081s only

(exthudes empicyss donations).

and air emissions.

08

Petro-Canada had approximately 6,100 employees and many contractors working
on its behalf at year-end 2008. In 2008, Petro-Canada recruited more than 950 new

2 Cash contributions i cammunities fnm Peto-Canada’s
community parinerships program (including the Petro-Cares
program), basiness units, pks inkind donations.

Following our Principles for Responsible Investment and Operations

employees. The Company is committed to providing them with a safe and
rewarding place to work where they can learn and make a difference.

PRIORITY PRINCIPLES 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Business Conduct { - comply with applicable laws |- update Code of Business | - updated Code of Business - update policy for the
' and regulations Conduct and introduce Conduct Prevention of Improper
- apply cur Code of Business | interactive web-based - interactive web-based training [  Payments
Conduct wherever we training on the new Code of | completed by 4,419 - introduce interactive web-
operate Business Conduct employees and 408 based training on the Policy
- seek contractors, suppliers | continue to strengthen contractars for the Prevention of
and agents whose practices | Ccommunication of Code of |, yepvered workshop-style ani- | tmProper Payments
are consistent with our Business Conduct corruption training at nine - review and update the
principles expectations with an Company locations, training Company's anti-trust and fair
increasing contractar both employees and competition compliance
workforce contractors program

+ improve new employee

onientation process across

« implemented new employee

» integrate risk assessment

> orientation process, methodology into all TLM
the Company to emphasize |  jyieqrating TLM and Zero- processes, induding the
Zero-Harm and Total Loss Harm to reduce the risk of event management system
Management (TLM) culture | 1655 or injury
and principles

- implement online TLM

training to strengthen
employee understanding

- conducted online TLM training

modules in four priority
elements for 4,869 employees

- developed online training io

sttengthen risk assessment
capability
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Following our Principles for Responsible Investment and Operations (continued)

PRIQRITY PRINCIPLES 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Community + strive within our sphere of - improve the consistency « delivered training based on - continue o broaden
influence to ensure a fair and capability refative to Stakeholder and Community stakeholder engagement
share of benefits to engaging with stakeholders | Engagement principles to 134 |  capability across operational
stakeholders impacted by . solicit feedback from stakeholder practitoners roles and with contractors
our activities external stakeholders across all business units - update TLM standards and
+ conduct meaningful and regarding the effectiveness | - inlegrated stakeholder issue audit criteria to reflect
transparent consultation with |  of the Company’s management system into key stakeholder management
all stakeholders interactions projects and emergency framework expectations
- endeavour toiniograte our | - initiate and implement a response plans - integrate stakeholder
activities with, and social investment program |+ solicited focused stakeholder engagement practices into
participate in, local that is integral to the Libya feedback on specific projects North African development
oommunitieﬁ as good EPSAs - piloted a World Business and exploration projects
coporate citizens - inyoduce a number ofnew |  Council tor Sustainable - work jointly with the Libya
key community Development (WBCSD) National Gil Corporation
partnerships in our framework to guide [NQC) on identifying projects
education, environment and |  investment proposals for for the Libya sustainable
local community support Libya sustainable development program
areas development program + enhance content of key
+ advance Olympic initiatives |+ exiended long-term community partnerships,
in anticipation of the 2010 sponsorships, introduced new | identify synergies and
Winter Olympics community partnerships and increase stakeholder
deepened existing awareness of initiatives
partnerships - launch 2010 Olympic
+ supported the Canadian glassware campaign to
Otympic and Paralympic support Canadian athletes,
teams in Beijing, and and develop operations plan
announced Petro-Canada {0 “Fuel the Games™ in
Athlete Family Program for Vancouver
2010 Games in Vancouver
+ launched Employee Qlympic
Centre website
Envirenment + conduct our activities with - integrate Water Principles | - experienced 43 environmental | - reinforce senior
sound environmental into the environmental regulatory exceedances, management focus on
management ang stewardship process compared with 21 in 2007 environmentat regulatory
conservation practices + pilot carbon intensity - advanced water management |  €xceedances in 2009
« sfrive to minimize the performance measures plans through water risk develop and integrate

environmental impact of our
operations

« work diligently to prevent

any risk to community health
and safety from our
operations or our products

+ seek opportunities to

fransfer expertise in
environmental pratection to
host communities

+ continue to review internal

and external GHG
mitipation opportunities

- meet 2008 auditable

emissions reporting
requirements

- commence development of

second phase of
environmental information
management system for
water and waste
management

- advance major water-

related community
partnership projects

assessments based on Water
Principtes

+ made limited progress on

carben performance
measures

- strengthened resources and

capability in managing carbon
mitigation epportunities

- participated in Alberta carbon

market

- complied with Alberta

regulations for verified
emissions reporting

+ improved emission

functionality of first phase of
envirgnmental information
management System

+ created program content and

materials for major water
partnerships

relevant water measurement
and reporting functionality
into next phase of
environmental information
management system

+ pursue viable opportunities

to purchase carbon credits

- participate in WBCSD

protocel development to
better understand

Petre-Canada's broader
GHG emissions footprint

- initiate work on development

of ecosystem principles

« build strength in water

partnerships and promote
publicly
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Following our Principles for Responsible Investment and Operations (continued)

PRIORITY

PRINCIPLES

2008 GOALS

2008 RESULTS

2009 GOALS

Working Conditions
and Human Rights

- provide a healthy, safe and

secure work environrment

- honaur intemationalty

accepted labour standards
prohibiting child labour,
forced labour and
discrimination in
employment

- respect freedom of

association and expression
in the workplace

« not be complicitin human

rights abuses

- support and respect the

protection of human rghts
within our sphere of
infleence

- pstablish enterprise-wide

contractor engagement
process for selection,
performance monitoring
and management

» attract 925 new employees
- develop capability in

managing the social issues
of & temporary foreign
workforce

+ pilot a social risk

assessment that will apply
to new cperations

enhance management,
systems and work
processes related to
process safety

« strengthen process for

communicating and
leaming from intemnat high
potential and sericus
events

- achieved TRIF of 0.73in

2008, compared with 0.87 in
2007

+ experienced a confractor

work-related fatality at the
Edmonton RCP in September
2008

- assessed current state, and

best practices for contractor
engagement and identified
quick wins

« attracted 851 new employees
- assessed and developed

mitigation plans for social
risks related to bringing
temporary foreign workers
into Oil Sands preject camps

+ developing standards,

incorporating process safety
criteria into TLM audits and
capturing event data

+ establshed a formal process

for reviewing intemal and
external events and ensuring
that leamings reach the front
line

- conducted emergency

respanse exercises in four out
of five business groups

- develop enterprise-wide

training for front-fine
supervisors to enhance their
ability to execute work safely

- develop processes, tools

and expeciations for
stronger contractor
engagernent on safety

+ enhance emergency

response agdvisor capability
through increased training

+ upgrade emergency

response command centre
facility

« implement new corparate

standards for management
of change and process
safety competency

- integrate use of social risk

assessment process into
project delivery model

« review and strengthen

Company’s human rights
management framewark

Business Strategy Looking Forward

Key priorities for Petro-Canada in 2009 are striving to ensure that existing facilities run safely, reliably and efficiently through
excellent execution and prudently managing the Company's financial strength. This same focus on execution and cost
management will apply to the advancement of Petro-Canada’s major projects over the next several years. Capital expenditures
are expected to be $4.0 billion in 2009, down 38% from 2008, reflecting the Company's focus on the preservation of cash,
In 2009, growth highlights are expected {o include moving the Company’s Board of Directors-approved projects (Libya EPSAs,
which came on-stream in 2008, the North Amethyst portion of the White Rose Extensions project and the Syria Ebla gas
development) ahead, as originally planned.

Major Approved Project Target On-Stream Date
Libya EPSAs 2008
White Rose Extensions 2009
Syria Ebla Gas Development 2010

The three unsanctioned projects {(Montreal coker, MRX and Fort Hills Phase 1) are on hold until the commodity and financial
markets strengthen. The Company is rewerking costs to improve project economics.

The Company also plans on drlling up to 12 exploration welis in the North Sea, Libya, East Coast Canada and the

Alaska Foothills.

M
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risks Relating to Petro-Canada’s Business

Petro-Canada’s results are impacted by several risks and management's strategies for handling these risks. Management
believes each major risk requires a unique response based on Petro-Canada's business strategy and financial tolerance.
Some risks can be effectively managed through intemal controls, business processes, insurance and hedging. Hedging is used
in fimited circumstances, mainty to mitigate Downstream risks associated with refinery feedstock costs. Petro-Canada's
business risks include, but are not limited to, the following items. These risks could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, financia! conditions and results of operations.

A substantial or extended dacline in crude oil or natural gas prices could have a material adverse effect on Pelro-Canada.

The Company's financial condition depends substantially on the market prices of crude oil and natural gas. Fluctuations in
crude oil or natural gas prices could have a material adverse effect on Petro-Canada’s financial condition, as well as the value
and amount of the Company’s reserves. Prices for crude oil and natural gas fluctuate in response to changes in the supply of
and demand for crude cil and natural gas, market uncertainty and a variety of other factors beyond Petro-Canada’s control.
These factors include, but are not limited to, the actions of OPEC, world economic conditions, govemment regulation, political
developments, the foreign supply of oil, the price of foreign imports, the availability of altemnate fuel sources and weather
conditions. Canadian natural gas prices are primarily affected by North American supply and demand, weather conditions, the
level of industry inventories, politica! events, and, to a lesser extent, the price of alternate sources of energy.

Any substantial or extended decline in the prices of crude oil or natural gas could result in a delay or cancellation of existing or
future drilling, development or construction programs, curtailment in production at some properties and unused long-term
transportation commitments.

The margins realized for Petro-Canada’s refined products are also affected by factors such as crude oil price fluctuations due
to the impact on refinery feedstock costs, third-party refined product purchases and the demand for refined petroleum products.
The Company's ability to maintain product margins in an environment of higher feedstock costs depends upon its ability to
pass higher costs on to customers.

Petro-Canada’s operafions are subject to physical damage, business intermuplion and casually losses.

Petro-Canada is subject to the operating risks associated with exploring for, and producing, oil and natural gas, as well as
operating midstream and downstream facilities. These risks include blowouts, explosions, fires, gaseous leaks, equipment
failures, migration of harmful substances, adverse weather conditions and oil spills. These risks could cause personal injury,
could result in damage or destruction to cil and natural gas wells, formations, production facilities, other property and
equipment, and the environment, and could interrupt operations. In addition, Petro-Canada’s operations are subject to the risks
related to transporting, processing and storing of oil, natural gas and other related products, drilling of il and natural gas wells,
and operating and developing oil and natural gas properties.

Factors that affect Pefro-Canada’s ability lo execute projects could adversely affect business results.

Petro-Canada manages a variety of projects to support operations and future growth. Significant project cost overruns could
make certain projects uneconomic. The Company's ability to execute projects depends upon nurerous factors, which may
include, but are not limited to, changes in project scope, labour availability and productivity, staff resourcing, availability and
cost of material and services, design and/or construction errors, delays in regulatory approvals, the ability of partners to deliver
on project commitments and access to capital funding. As a result, Petro-Canada may not be able to execute projects on time,
on budget or at all.

Fluctuations in exchange rates create foreign currency exposure.
Due to the fact that energy commodity prices are primarily in U._S. dollars, Petro-Canada's revenue stream is affected by the

Cdn/U.S. dollar exchange rate. The Company's net eamnings are negatively affected by a strengthening Canadian dollar.
Petro-Canada is also exposed {o fluctuations in other foreign currencies, such as the euro and British pounds sterling.
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Reduced liquidity in capital markets can fimit the availability of capital and raise borrowing costs.

From time to time, Petro-Canada accesses the debt andfor equity markets to raise ¢apital. The reasons may include, among
other things, the need to raise financing for new operations, mergers, acquisitions and expansions. Reduced liquidity in the
capital markets may restrict the Company's ability to raise the required financing andfor may significantly increase the
associated cost of that capital. An inability to raise capital could jeopardize the ability of the Company to undertake a certain
project and a higher cost of capital would reduce the profitability of that project.

A failure to acquire or find additional reserves would cause a decline in Petro-Canada’s reserves and production levels.

The Company's future ol and natural gas reserves and production and, therefore, cash flows, are highly dependent upon
success in exploiting Petro-Canada’s cument reserves and resources base and acquiring or discovering additional reserves
and resources. Without reserves additions through exploration, acquisition or development activities, Petro-Canada's reserves
and production will decline over time. Exploring for, developing or acquiring reserves is capital intensive. To the extent cash
flows from operations are insufficient to fund the Company's capital expenditures and extemal sources of capital become
limited or unavailable, Petro-Canada's ability to make the necessary capital investments fo maintain oil and natural gas
reserves will be impaired. Costs to find and develop or acquire additional reserves also depend on success rates, which vary
over time,

Petro-Canada's oil and natural gas reserves dafa and future net revenue estimales are subject to variabilly.

There are many uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of oil and natural gas reserves, including many factors beyond
the Company's control. Estimates of economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves are based upon a number of
variables and assumptions. These include geoscientific interpretation, commodity prices, operating and capital costs and
historical production from properties. These estimates have some degree of uncentainty and reserves classifications are best
estimates. For these reasons, estimates of the economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves attributed to properties
and classification of reserves based on recovery risk may vary substantially. Petro-Canada's actual production, revenues,
taxes and development and operating expenditures related to reserves may vary materially from estimates.

Changes in govermnmental regufation affecting the oif and natural ges industry could have a material adverse impact on Petro-Canada.

The petroleum industry is subject to regulation and intervention by govermments, including the awarding of exploration and
production interests, the imposition of specific drilling obligations, environmental protection contrals, regulation of the
development and abandonment of fields (including restrictions on production) and, possibly, expropriation or cancellation of
contract rights. As well, governments may regulate or intervene on prices, taxes, royalties and the exportation of oil and natural
gas. Regulations may be changed in response to economic or political conditions. New regulations or changes to existing
regulations that affect the oil and natural gas industry could reduce demand for natural gas or crude il and increase
Petro-Canada’s costs.

Petro-Canada's foreign operations may expose the Company fo risks, which could negatively affect results of operations.

The Company has operations in a number of countries with different political, economic and social systems. As a result,
Petro-Canada's operations and related assets are subject to a number of risks, which may include, among other things,
currency restrictions and exchange rate fluctuations, loss of revenue, property and equipment as a result of expropriation,
nationalization, war, insumrection and geopolitical and other political risks, increases in taxes and governmentai royalties,
renegotiation of contracts with govemmental enlities and quasi-governmental agencies, changes in laws and policies
governing operations of foreign-based companies, economic and lega!l sanctions (such as restrictions against countries that
the U.S. govermment may deem to sponsor terrorism) and other uncertainties arising from foreign government sovereignty over
Petro-Canada’s intemational operations, If a dispute arises in Petro-Canada’s foreign operations, the Company may be subject
to the exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts or may not be able {o subject foreign persons to the jurisdiction of a court in the
.S, or Canada.

The Company has operations in Libya, which is a member of OPEC. Petro-Canada may operate in other OPEC-member
countries in the future, Production in those countries may be ¢onstrained by OPEC quetas.
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Petro-Canada's oil and nafural gas production and refining operations impact communities and surmounding environments.

Those impacted by Petro-Canada’s operations can become concemed over the use of resources, such as land and water, the
perceived or real threat to human health, the potential impact on biodiversity, and/or possible societal changes to sumounding
communities. The Company must secure and maintain formal regulatory approvals and licences in order to conduct operations.
In addition, broader societal acceptance of Petro-Canada’s activities is necessary for resource development. An inability for the
Company 10 secure local community support, necessary regulatory approvals and licences, and broader societal acceptance
can result in projects being delayed or stopped, resulting in higher project costs. Lack of local community and stakeholder
support can lead to pressure to limit or shut down operations.

Pelro-Canada is subject to environmental legislation in all jurisdictions where it operates. Changes in this legislation could negatively
affect the Company's resulfs of operations.

Petro-Canada is subject to environmental regulation under a variety of Canadian, U.S. and other foreign, federal, provincial,
territorial, state and municipal laws and regulations. This is collectively referred to below as environmental legislation.

Environmental legislation imposes, among other things, restrictions, liabilities and obligations in connection with the generation,
handling, use, storage, transportation, treatment and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous substances, including natural
resources and waste, and in connection with spills, releases and emissions of various substances to the environment.
Environmental legislation requires that wells, facility sites and other properties associated with Petro-Canada’s operations be
operated, maintained, abandoned and reclaimed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authorities. Certain types of
operations, including exploration and development projects, and changes to certain existing projects, may require submitting
and seeking the approval of environmental impact assessments (ElAs) or permit applications. Complying with environmental
legislation can require significant expenditures, including costs for cleanup and damages due to contaminated properties.
Failure to comply with environmental legislation may result in fines and penalties. Petro-Canada is also exposed to civil and
criminal liability for environmental matters, including private parties commencing actions, new theories of liability and new
heads of damages. Although it is not expecied that the costs of complying with enviranmental legislation or dealing with
environmental liabilities, as they are known today, will have a material adverse effect on Petro-Canada’s financial condition or
results of operations, no assurance can be made that the costs of complying with future environmental legislation will not have
a material effect.

Petro-Canada operates in jurisdictions that have regulated or have proposed to regulate indusirial GHG emissions.
Jurisdictions that currently regulate GHG emissions include Afberta and the European Union. Jurisdictions that have proposed
to regulate GHG emissions include the U.S., British Columbia (B.C.), Quebec, Ontario and Canada. Those jurisdictions that
have announced the intent to regulate GHG emissions support cap-and-trade systems and, in some cases, have also
propesed implementing complementary measures, including low carbon fuel standards. To date, these jurisdictions have
started or have announced plans to start consultations on the design of their regulations, as we!l as explore opportunities to
harmonize regulations across jurisdictions within North America. Petro-Canada participates in these consultations, either
directly or through industry associations. In 2007, Petro-Canada established an internal senior management team to steward
these activities and, in 2008, this organization was enhanced by creating the role of Director, Climate Change. While these
jurisdictions have not published details on their proposed regulations or on their compliance mechanisms, many, most notably
the U.5., have identified the importance of balancing the environment, economy and energy security when developing
regulations. While it is premature to predict what impact these anticipated regulations may have sn Petro-Canada and the
broader oil and gas sector, Petro-Canada will likely face increased capital and operating costs in order to comply with these
regulations, and these costs could be material. Petro-Canada is actively following policy development to ensure the Company
is prepared to operate within a new framework.

Reduced asse! relighility could adversely affect Petro-Canada's business.

Petro-Canada operates facilities in both the upstream and downstream sectors of the industry. A reduction in the reliability of
these facilities as a result of, but not limited to, damage to equipment, plant or material, loss of production capability or
operational integrity, or the extension of shutdown time could contribute to reduced profitability.

Counterparties expostre.

Petro-Canada is exposed to credit risk, and operational risk associated with counterparties’ abilities to fulfil their obligations to
the Company.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS Shareholder Value
Analysis of Consolidated Earnings and Cash Flow
Consolidated Financial Results ® One-yoar retum (%]
w Three-year relum (%)
On January 31, 2006, Peiro-Canada closed the sale of the
Company's producing assets in Syria. These assets and
associated results are reported as discontinued operations and
are excluded from coniinuing operations.
(millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated) 2008 2007 2008
Net earnings § 3134 $ 2,733 $ 1,740
Net earnings from discontinued operations - - 152
Net earnings from continuing operations $ 3134 $ 2,733 $ 1,588
Earnings per share from continuing operations (doflars) - basic $ 6.47 $ 559 $ 315
- diluted 6.43 5.53 an
Earnings per share {doflars} - basic $ 6.47 $ 559 $ 345
- diluted 6.43 5.53 341
Cash flow from continuing operating activities ! 6,522 3,339 3,608
Debt 4,749 3,450 2,894
Cash and cash equivalents 2 1,445 23 499
Average capital employed 2 $ 17,7172 $ 14,328 $ 12868
Return on capital employed {%; ? 18.6 19.8 14.3
Return on equity (%) 2 29 245 175

1 Cash flow from continuing operating activities in 2007 was reduced by the payment of $1,345 million after-tax to settle the hedged portion of

Buzzard production.
2 Includes discontinued operations.

2008 Compared with 2007

2008 Versus 2007 Factor Analysis

Net Eamings from Continuing Operations

i%iii

Net earnings increased 15% to
$3,134 million in 2008, compared with
$2,733 million in 2007. Higher realized 4,000 -
crude oil prices, lower other expenses
and lower tax adjustments contributed to
the increase. These factors were 2,000 1
partially offset by foreign currency
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In 2008, net earnings included a number of items: a foreign currency translation loss on long-term debt of $606 million, a
$255 million charge due to declining crude oil feedstock costs while using a “firstdn, first-out” {FIFO) method for valuing
inventories in the Downstream, charges due to the deferral of the Fort Hills FID of $156 million, a $215 million income tax
recovery, a $126 million recovery related to the mark-to-market of stock-based compensation, a $52 million charge for asset
impainment, $29 million in insurance proceeds, a $20 million insurance premium surcharge and a gain on sale of assets of
$4 million.

In 2007, net eamings included a number of items: net losses on the derivative contracts associated with the hedged portion of
Buzzard production of $331 million, a foreign currency translation gain on long-term debt of $208 million, a $191 million income
tax recovery, a $97 mitlion charge for asset impairment, a gain on sale of assets of $58 miliion, a $54 million charge related to
the mark-to-market of siock-based compensation, $30 million in insurance proceeds and a $7 million insurance
premium recovery.

Quarterly Information

Consolidated Quarterly Financial Resufts

2008 2007
(miltions of Canadian dofiars,
uniess otherwise indicated) Quarter 1 Quarter?  Quarterd  Quarterd  Quarter1  Quarter?2  Quarterd  Quarterd
Total revenue $ 6,586 $ 7,546 $8,286 $ 5,267 $4.81 $5478 $ 5,497 $543
Net earnings 1,076 1,498 1,251 (691) 590 845 776 522
Cash flow from (used in}
operating activities ! 1,435 2,479 1,279 1,329 1,166 1,435 1,340 (602)
Earnings per share (doflars)
- basic $2.22 $3.10 $2.58 $(1.43) $1.1¢ $1.1 $1.59 $1.08
- diluted $2.20 $3.07 $2.56 ${1.43) $1.18 §$1.70 $1.58 $1.07

1 Cash flow from (used in} continuing operating activities in the fourth guarter of 2007 was significantly reduced due to the payment of
$1,145 million afler-tax to setile the hedged portion of Buzzard production.

Revenue and net eamings variances from quarter to quarter resulted mainly from fluctuations in commodity prices and refinery
cracking margins, the impact on production and processed volumes from maintenance and other shutdowns at major facilities,
and the level of exploration drilling activity. For further analysis of quartery results, refer to Petro-Canada's quarterly reports to
shareholders available on the Company's website at www.petro-canada.ca.
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LiQuIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Summary of Cash Flows
{milfions of Canadian dollars) 2008 2007 2006
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $ 6522 $ 3339 § 3,608
Cash flow from discontinued operating activities - - 15
Net cash inflows {outflows) from:
- investing activities (5,384) © (3647} (2,738)
—financing activities 76 40 (1,175)
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,214 $  (268) $ {290}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,445 $§ 2 $ 499
Cash and cash equivalents - discontinued operations $ - $ - $ -

In 2008, cash flow from continuing operating activities was $6,522 million ($13.47/share), compared with $3,338 million
($6.83/share) in 2007. The increase in cash flow was primarily due to higher net eamings and a decrease in the operating
working capital deficiency. In 2007, cash flow was significantly reduced due to the payment of $1,145 million afler-tax to settle
the hedged portion of Buzzard production. :

Financial Ratios
2008 2007 2006
Interest coverage from continuing operations (times)!
Net earnings basis 215 26.0 19.2
EBITDAX basis! 3.3 39.2 270
Cash flow basis 337 27.2 271
Debt-to-cash flow from continuing operating activities (times) 07 1.0 08
Debt-to-debt plus equity (%) 23.5 22.5 217

1 Refer to the Glossary of Terms, Ratios and Acronyms on page 114 for methods of calculation.

Petro-Canada’s financing strategy is designed to maintain Key Debt Ratios {%; ] {timas)
financial strength and flexibility to support profitable growth
in all business envircnments. Two key measures that
Petro-Canada uses to measure the Company's overzll
financial strength are debttocash flow from continuing
operating aclivities and debt-to-debt plus equity.

Petro-Canada's debt-to-cash flow from continuing operating w Dobt-o-deti plus equty (%)
activities ratio, the key shori-term measure, was 0.7 times W Debi-to-cach fow from
at December 31, 2008, down from 1.0 times at year-end continuing operating

actities (fimes)
2007. This was well within the Company's long-term range

of no more than 2.0 times. Debt-to-debt plus equity, the

long-term measure for capital structure, was 23.5% at year-

end 2008, up from 22.5% at year-end 2007. This was below the long-term range of 25% to 35% for both years, providing the
financial flexibility to fund the Company's capital program and profitable growth opportunities. In the future, from time to time,
Petro-Canada may exceed long-term ranges for short periods of time, but always with the goal to return back to within the long-
term ranges. Financial covenants associated with the Company's various debt arrangements are reviewed regularly and
controls are in place to maintain compliance with these covenants. The Company complied with all financial covenants as at
December 31, 2008,
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Operating Activities

Excluding cash and cash equivalents, short-term notes payable and the current portion of long-term debt, the operating
working capital deficiency was $46 million at December 31, 2008, compared with an operating working capital deficiency of
$565 milion at December 31, 2007. The working capital deficiency was lower at December 31, 2008, primarily due to the
increase in inventories from adoption of the FIFO method for valuing inventories, the increase to accounts receivable resulting
from the effective unwinding of the accounts receivable securitization program and the decrease in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities due to the recovery related to the mark-to-market valuation of stock-based compensation.

Investing Activities

Capital and Exploration Expendifures

2009
{millions of Canadian dollars} QOutlook 2008 2007 2006
Upstream
North American Natural Gas $ 580 $ 1,023 $ .866 § 788
Qil Sands 985 1,063 779 377
internationai & Offshore
East Coast Canada 530 276 158 256
Internationtal ! 1,270 2,115 762 760 |
$ 3,365 § 4477 $ 2,566 $ 2181
Downstream
Refining and Supply $ 460 $ 1,651 $ 1,214 § 1,038
Sales and Marketing 70 156 155 142
Lubricanis 30 27 7 49
$ 560 $ 1,834 $ 1,396 $ 1,229
Shared Services $ 35 $ 33 $ 26 $ 24
Total property, plant and equipment and exploration $ 3960 $ 6344 $ 3988 $ 344
Other assets - 29 121 50
Total continuing operations $ 3960 $ 6,373 $ 4,109 $ 3,484
Discontinued operations $ - $ - $ - $ 1
Total $ 3960 $ 6,373 $ 4,109 $ 3,485

1 Internationat excludes capital expenditures related to the Syran producing assets, which were sold in 2006 and are reflected as discontinued
operations,

Capital and exploration expenditures were $6,373 million
in 2008, up 55% compared with $4,109 million in 2007, 2009 Capital Program from Continuing Operations
mainly reflecting higher investment in Libya. the Oil Sands rilions of Canadian doffars)

and the Edmenton RCP,
O Complying with new regulations: 130

In 2009, spending on new growth projects is expected to
decrease substantially. Approximately half of planned
capital expenditures support delivering profitable new
growth and funding exploration and new ventures. This is
down by more than $2 billion, compared with the same
categories in 2008. The remaining half of 2009 planned
capital expenditures is directed toward replacing reserves
in core areas, enhancing existing assets, improving base
business profitability and complying with new regulations.
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Financing Activities and Dividends

Sources of Capital Employed

(millions of Canadian dollars} 2008 2007 2006
Shori-lerm notes payable $ - $ 109 $ -
Long-term debt, including current portion 4,745 3,341 2,894
Shareholders' equity 15,475 11,870 10441
Total $ 20,224 § 15320 $ 13,335

Total debt increased to $4,749 million at December 31, 2008, compared with $3,450 million at the previous year end. The
increase in debt occurred due to a debt issuance in the second quarter of 2008, as well as the impact of a weakening
Canadian dollar.

2008 Financing Activities

During 2008, Petro-Canada increased its syndicated committed credit facilities from $2,200 million to $3,570 million. At
December 31, 2008, the Company's syndicated bilateral demand credit facilities totalled $777 miillion. A total of $348 million of
the Company’s credit facilities was used for letters of credit and overdraft coverage. Subseguent to December 31, 2008, the
Company’s liquidity was increased by $244 million through the addition of a bilateral committed credit facility. The syndicated
facilities, which are in place until 2013, may also be used to provide liquidity support to a commercial paper program. The
Company had no commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2008 and does not plan to issue commercial paper in the
near term.

In 2008, the Company issued $600 million US of 10-year notes, bearing interest at the rate of 6.05% per year, and
$900 million US of 30-year notes, bearing interest at the rate of 6.80% per year, under its previously filed base shelf
prospectus. The base shelf prospectus provides for the offering of up to $4 billion US of debt securities in Canada or the U.S.
over the course of a 25-month period from March 31, 2008.

During 2008, the Company's 3480 million accounts receivable securitization program was effectively unwound because it was
no longer a cost-effective means of borrowing. The program remains outstanding as a liquidity source until June 24, 2009,

As at December 31, 2008, the credit ratings of the Company's unsecured long-term debt securities were BaaZ with a stable
outlook by Moody's, BBB with a stable outlook by S&P and A {low) with a Negative Trend by DBRS. Petro-Canada's short-term
debt securities are rated R-1 {low) with a Negative Trend by DBRS. A Positive or Negative Trend is not an indication that a
rating change is imminent. Rather, a Positive or Negative Trend represents an indication that there is a greater likelihood that
the rating could change in the future than would be the case if a Stable Trend was assigned to the secunity. A credit rating is
not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
rating organization.

The Company’s financial capacity and flexibility remain strong despite the recent turmoil in the financial markets. This is due to
the Company’s continuing ability to generate cash flow, having access to existing cash balances and significant credit faciity
capacity, and requiring no near-term refinancing. For 2009, the Company expects to cover its capital program with cash flow,
cash and, if necessary, from available credit facilities. The Company will monitor energy and financial markets through the year
and take advantage of the flexibility in its capital program to pace projects and adjust capital expenditures accordingly.

A&_ Management's Discussion and Analysis PETRO-CANADA 25




Retuming Cash to Shareholders

Petro-Canada's priority uses of cash are to fund the capital program and profitable growth opportunities, and then to return
cash to shareholders through dividends and a share buyback program.

Petro-Canada regularly reviews its dividend strategy to ensure the alignment of the dividend policy with shareholder
expectations, and financial and growth objectives. Consistent with this objective, on July 23, 2008, the Company declared a
54% increase in its quarterly dividend to $0.20/share, commencing with the dividend payable on October 1, 2008. Total
dividends paid in 2008 were $320 million ($0.66/share), compared with $255 million ($0.52/share) in 2007.

Petro-Canada's current NCIB program entitles the Company to repurchase up to 5% of its outstanding common shares from
June 22, 2008 to June 21, 2009, subject to certain conditions. Throughout the year 2008, the Company did not repurchase any
of its shares, compared with 16 million in 2007. Future share repurchases will depend on excess cash available after
consideration of the Company's priority uses of cash.

Shares Repurchased Average Price ($/share) Total Cost
Period : 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Full year - 15,998,000 $ - $ 5242 % - § 839 million

Of Balance Sheet

The Company has certain retail licensee and wholesale marketing agreements that would constitute variable interest entities
as described in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. These entities are not consolidated because Petro-Canada
is not the primary beneficiary and, therefore, consclidation is not required. The Company's maximum exposure to losses from
these arrangements would not be material. Other off balance sheet activilies are limited to the accounts receivable
securitizatidon program, which does not meet the criteria for consolidation and pursuant to which there are no amounts currently
outstanding.

Pension Plans

At year-end 2008, Petro-Canada's defined benefit pension plans were under funded by $407 million, compared with an under
funded position of $282 million at year-end 2007. For both the defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans, the
Company made cash contributions of $67 million and recorded a pension expense of $93 million before-tax in 2008. This
compares with $121 million of cash contributions and $81 million before-tax of pension expense in 2007. The Company
expects lo make pension contributions of approximately $62 million in 2000,
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Contractual Obligations — Summary

Payments due by period
2014 and
{miliions of Canadian dollars) Total 2009 2010-2011 2012-2013 thereafter
Unsecured debentures and senior
notes ! $ 10,729 $ 305 $ 610 § 975 $ 8,839
Capital lease obligations ! 119 " 22 24 62
Operating leases 2,082 484 516 213 869
Transporiation agreements 1,436 197 332 230 677
Product purchase/delivery
obligations 12,733 3,361 3,242 1918 4,212
Exploration work commitments 2 769 381 294 85 12
Asset retirement obligations 5,389 54 106 119 5110
Qther long-term obligations 3. ¢ 3,786 661 1,600 473 1,052
Total contractual obligations $ 37,043 $ 5454 3 6719 § 4,037 $ 20,833

1 Obligations include related interest.

2 Excludes other amounts related to the Company's expected future capital spending, Capital spending plans are reviewed and revised annually
to reflect Petro-Canada's strategy, operating performance and economic conditions. For further information regarding future capital spending
plans, refer fo the business segment and investing activities discussions in the 2008 MD&A.

3 Includes processing agreement with Suncor Energy Inc., Libya EPSA signature bonus, Fort Hills purchase obligation, pension funding
obligations for the periods prier to the Company’s next required pension plan valuation and other obligations. Pension obligations beyond the
next required pension valuation date were excluded due o the uncertainty as to the amount of timing of these obligations.

4 Petro-Canada is invoived in litigation and claims assodiated with normal operations. Management is of the opinion that any resulting
settlements would not materially affect the financial position of the Company. The table excludes amcunts for these contingencies due to the
uncertainty as to the amourt or timing of any setlements.

During 2008, Petro-Canada's tota! contractual obligations increased by $5.3 billion, mainly due to an additional $1.5 billion US
of unsecured senior notes issued in May, losses on the translation of foreign currency denominated unsecured debentures and
senior notes and increased estimates for asset retirement cbligations. This was partially offset by decreased product
purchase obligations.
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UPSTREAM

Petro-Canada’s upstream operations consisted of three business units in 2008: North American Natural Gas, with
production in Western Canada and the U.S. Rockies; Oil Sands with operations in northeast Alberta; and International
& Offshore. International & Offshore has two segments: East Coast Canada, with three major developments offshore
Newfoundland and Labrador; and International, where the Company Is active in two ¢ore areas: North Sea and Other
International (Libya, Syria and Triridad and Tobago). The diverse asset base provides a balanced portfolio and a
platform for long-term growth.

North American Natural Gas

Business Summary and Strategy

North American Natural Gas explores for and produces natural gas, crude oil
and NGL in Westem Canada and the U.S. Rockies. This business also
markets natural gas in North America and has established resources in
Alaska, the NWT and Arctic {slands.
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The North American Natural Gas strategy is to be a significant market
participant by accessing new and diverse natural gas supply sources in North
America. Key features of the strategy include:

= optimizing core properties in Western Canada and in the U.3. Rockies
« targeting 50% to 60% reserves replacement

+ increasing focus on unconventional exploration in Western Canada and
the U_S. Rockies

+ building the northern resource base for long-term growth

)

North American Natural Gas Financial Resulfs

{miflions of Canadian dolfars) 2008 2007 2008
Net earnings 3 344 $ 191 $ 405
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $§ 1,055 $ 725 . % 651
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and exploration? $ 1,023 $ 866 $ 788

$ 4605 3 4,119 § 415

Total assets

1 In 2008, Petro-Canada made a small acquisition of oil production and exploration land located in the Denver-Julesburg Basin.

2008 Compared with 2007

North American Natural Gas contributed $344 million of net eamings, up significantly from $191 miflion in 2007. Strong natural
gas prices, higher U.S. Rockies production and fower exploration expenses were partially offset by lower Western Canada
production, increased operating costs and increased DD&A expenses.

Net eamings in 2008 included a loss on sale of assets of $81 million, a charge of $28 mitlion for a discontinued pilot project in
northen B.C. and a charge of $24 million related to accumulated project development costs for the proposed LNG re-
gasification facility at Gros-Cacouna, Quebec, which has been postponed due to globa! LNG business canditions. Net eamings
in 2007 included a $97 milion charge related to the impairment of coal bed methane (CBM) assets in the U.S. Rockies, a
$41 million gain on sale of assets and an $& million income tax recovery.
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North American Natural Gas production was sirong in 2008 due to increased production in the U.S. Rockies and strong
performance in Westem Canada, which significantly offset natural declines. Oil and natural gas production averaged
665 million cubic feet of gas equivalenVday (MMcfe/d) in 2008, compared with 674 MMcfe/d in 2007, as natural declines in
Western Canada were partially offset by U.S. Rockies production growth. Natural gas commodity prices remained strong over
the course of 2008. The North American realized natural gas price averaged $8.05Mcf in 2008, up 28% from $6.30Mcf
in 2007.

2008 Operating Review and Strategic Initiatives

The North American Natural Gas business is selectively investing to optimize the existing core assets in Western Canada and
the U.S. Rockies, focusing exploration in these basins and building the northern resource base for the longer term.

2008 Operating Review

North American Natural {MMicle/d) {S/Mci) North American {$Mcfe)

Gas Production and 200 Natural Gas Operatingand 25 §

Reallzed 700 Qverhead Costs

Natural Gas Price 20
600 ’

I Wesiem Canada and U.S.
Rockies produttion nef 400
{MMcfe/d)

—a— Waslem Canada realized

: gas price ($Mc) 200 W Westem Canada operating

and pverhead costs ($Mcle} 05 4
—s— L.5. Rockies realized 0 M .§. Rockies operating and
natural gas price {WMcf} I overhead cosls ($/Mcle) 00
06 07 08
2008 2007 2006
Production net (MMcfe/d}
Western Canada } 562 590 646
.S, Rockies 103 84 55
Total North American Natural Gas production net 665 674 701
Western Canada realized natural gas price {(§/Mcf) $ 8.28 $ 6.48 $ 6.88
L1.S. Rockies realized natural gas price ($/Mcf) $ 6.63 $ 4,88 $ 6.36
Western Canada operating and overhead costs $ 1.72 5 1.50 3 1.31
{$thousand cubic feet of gas equivalent - §/Mcfe)
U.S. Rockies operating and overhead costs {$/Mcfe) $ 2.26 $ 2.21 $ 2.29

Western Canada

Western Canada production averaged 562 MMcferd in 2008, down 5% from 590 MMcfe/d in 2007. Exploration and
development drilling activity in Westem Canada resulted in 292 successful wells (gross), for an overall success rate of 97% in
2008. Westem Canada realized natural gas price was $8.28/Mcf in 2008, compared with $§6.48/Mcf in 2007, Westem Canada
operating and overhead costs were $1.72/Mcfe in 2008, up from $1.50/Mcfe in the previous year. The operating and overhead
cost increase in Western Canada reflected industry-wide cost pressures for materials, fuel and labour, combined with
lower production.
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U.S. Rockies

U.S. Rockies production averaged 103 MMcfe/d in 2008, up 23% from 84 MMcfe/d in 2007. The increase reflected the ramp up
of production from CBM fields in the Powder River Basin and increased drilling activity in the Denver-Julesburg Basin.
Exploration and development drilling activity in the U.S. Rockies during 2008 resulted in 287 gross wells, up from 150 wells in
2007. U.S. Rockies realized natural gas price was $6.63/Mcf in 2008, up 36% from $4.88/Mcf in 2007. U.S. Rockies operating
and overhead costs were $2.26/Mcfe in 2008, up from $2.21/Mcfe in 2007 due to industry-wide cost pressures for materials,
fuel and labour,

2008 Strategic Initiatives

In Westem Canada, the Company continued its planned shallow tight gas drilling program in the Medicine Hat, Alberta area,
drilling 271 wells in 2008. The business expects to drill another 280 wells in 2009. In the other core areas of B.C. and Alberta,
the Company continued to optimize existing fields, with the drilling of more than 30 exploration and development wells in 2008.
As part of the Company's ongoing optimization of its portfolio of assets, Petro-Canada completed the sale of its Minehead
assets in Westem Canada, resulting in a loss on sale of $153 million before-tax ($112 million after-tax). The sale of these
assets is aligned with the business unit's strategy to continucusly optimize the assets in its portfolio.

During 2008, the Company and its joint venture partners advanced its exploration activities in Alaska with a two-well pregram.
The Kwijika well drilled in the NWT was dry and abandoned.

The Company sees long-term potential for the development of Arctic Island natural resources discovered in the 1970s and
1980s. The two largest assets Petro-Canada holds in the region are the Drake and Hecla fields on Melville Isfand. In 2008, a
small team advanced a feasibility study o the point where uncertainty regarding regulatory approval timing was identified as a
significant issue. The Company will continue to work with governments and stakeholders to streamline this process but, in the
meantime, the Company has slowed down Arctic Island efforts.

Capital expenditures in 2008 totalled $1,023 million, with $451 million for exploration and development of natural gas in
Western Canada, $498 million for U.S. Rockies exploration and development, and $74 million for other natural gas
opportunities in North America.

Qutlock

Production expectations in 2009 Capital spending plans in 2008'

« production is expected to average about 570 MMcfe/d
net of natural gas, ¢crude oil and NGL

Action plans in 2009

+ drill approximately 304 gross wells in Western Canada
and approximately 241 gross wells in the U.S. Rockies

+ three-well program planned for the Alaska Foothills

- capital program of approximately $530 million is planned

for North American Natural Gas

- approximately $320 million for replacing reserves and
maintenance in Westem Canada and U.S. Rockies

+ approximately $180 million for growth opportunities in
the U.S. Rockies

+ approximately $40 million directed to exploration
and developing long-term supply opportunities in the
Far North

- approximately $40 million to enhance existing assets,
comply with regulations and improve base business
profitability

1 Petro-Canada will monitor energy and financial markets through 2009 and take advantage of the flexbility in its capital program to pace

projects and adjust capital expenditures, as necessary,
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Link to Pefro-Canada's Corporate and Strategic Priorities

The North American Natural Gas business is aligned with Petro-Canada's strategic prionities as outlined by its progress in 2008

and goals for 2009.

PRIQRITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2003 GOALS
Delivering Profitable - continue to selectively optimize + implemented driling and optimization |- continue to optimize Western Canada
Growth with a Focus on Westem Canada core assels initiattves, resulting in lower decline and U.S. core assels

Operated, Long-Life
Assets

+ continue U.S. Rockies CBM and tight

natural gas development

- target 50% to 60% reserves

replacement from these core assets

+ focus exploration activity in Westem

Canada, with increasing emphasis on
the U.S.

rates

+ drilled 287 gross wells in the U.S.

Rockies

+ continued to increase exploration

focus in the U.S. Rockies and B.C.
shale gas

- participated in three wells in Alaska

- target 50% to 60% reserves

replacement from core assets

- focus exploration activity in Westemn

Canada and U.5. Rotkies with an
emphasis on unconventional
exploration

- advance exploration prospects in

- agvance exploration prospects in the and NWT, resutting in one gas Alaska
NWT and Alaska discovery, one dry and abandoned
d ded a5 planned
- initiate an Arctic LNG feasibilty study | O o oo 2 P
- progressed Arctic LNG feasibility
study, encountering uncertainty with
regard to regulatory approvai iming
Driving for First Quartile | - continue to focus on safety and + maintained refiability of 99% at - continue to focus on safety and
Operation of Our Assets reliability performance Western Canada natural gas reliability performance
- continue to leverage costs through processing faciities - continue to leverage costs through
strategic alliances and preferred - defivered value to the organization strategic aliances and preferred
suppliers through preferred supplier suppliers
relationships, while continuing to - renegotiate contracts to reflect
ensure compelitive supply costs economic enviranment
through selective bidding
Continuing o Work at + continue to focus on TRIF and - TRIF decreased to 1.31, compared « pursue initiatives aimed at developing

Being a Respansible
Company

maintain low regulatory exceedances

+ gonduct internal stakeholder

engagement training for project
managers and ather key business
roles

« strengthen approach to investigating

and learning from events

with 1.54 in 2007

- experienced eight emvironmental

reguiatory exceedances in 2008,
compared with three in 2007

- conducted training for stakeholder

practitioners, project managers and
key contractors

« set up a formal process to identify and

communicate key learnings from
significant events

front-line supervisory capability in
safety management

+ develop a water management plan for

operations in areas of water scarcity
and develop measures related to
usage and capacily of the source

« confinually improve community

emergency response programs
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Oil Sands

Business Summary and Strategy

Petro-Canada estimates that it has 1.2" billion bbils of total Oil Sands proved
plus probable reserves and 9.57 billion bbis of total Oil Sands Contingent and AN
Prospective Resources. The Company's major Qil Sands interests include a
12% ownership in the Syncrude joint venture (an oil sands mining operation ¥ Mackiay
and upgrading facility), 100% ownership of the MacKay River in sifu bitumen / River Lewis
development (a steam-assisted gravity drainage (SAGD) operation), a 60% -

ownership in and operatorship of the proposed Fort Hills oif sands mining
project, and extensive cil sands acreage considered prospective for in siti |

development of bitumen resources. ‘ Edmonten
[ ]

Fort Hills

... T Syncrude

Guni3

The Qil Sands strategy for profitable growth includes:

L. ‘ | i
« integrated development of resources to maximize leverage of infrastructure ‘} Calgary -
and to promote long-term stability of financial returns T T T T

@ Directly operated

* being positioned to capture the value opportunities inherent in long-life g ygn_gperated

projects
« applying a phased and disciplined approach to development of capital-intensive projects te allow rigorous cost management
and 10 create opportunities to benefit from evelving technology

The Company has chosen to participate in the full oil sands value chain due to ils resource potential and strong position with
bitumen upgrading capacity. Petro-Canada has processing capacity through Syncrude and Suncor Energy Inc. In 2008, the
Company converted the conventional crude oil train at its Edmonten refinery to refine oil sands-based feedstock from northen
Alberta. This conversion, along with the existing synthefic crude supply, resulted in the refinery being able to run on an
exclusive diet of oil sands-based feedstock. This connection between resource and upgrading capacity should provide more
economic certainty in a business where volatile light/heavy differentials affect bitumen pricing.

Qi Sands Financial Results

{mitfions of Canadian dollars) 2008 2007 2006
Net earnings $ 334 $ 316 $ 245
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $ 622 $ 512 3 499
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and exploration $ 1,063 $ 779 $ 377
Total assets $ 4,566 $ 3,659 $ 2885
2008 Compared with 2007

Qif Sands contributed a record $334 million of net eamings, up 6% from $316 million in 2007. Higher realized prices at
Syncrude and MacKay River, in addition to stronger MacKay River production were partially offset by lower Syncrude
production and increased operating costs at both Syncrude and MacKay River.

Net eamings in 2008 included charges due to the deferral of the Fort Hills FiD of $156 million. Net eamings in 2007 included a
$62 million income tax recovery.

1 These reserves numbers represent the sum of oil sands mining and oil and gas activities, including probable reserves, and are presented
before royalties. Reporting reserves in this manner does not conform to SEC standards and is for general supplemental information only.

2 25% of total Oil Sands resources are risked Prospective Resources and 75% are Contingent Resources. See “Legal Notice —
Petro-Canada disclosure of reserves” for additional risks to develop resources,
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Strong production and reliability at MacKay River were highlights of 2008 performance. Syncrude realized price for synthetic
crude oil averaged $106.63/bb! in 2008, up from $79.20/bbl in 2007. MacKay River realized price for bitumen averaged
$60.26/bbl in 2008, compared with $28.23/bbl in 2007. Qil Sands production averaged 59,900 b/d net in 2008, compared with
56,900 b/d net in 2007.

2008 Operating Review and Strategic Initiatives

2008 Operating Review
Qil Sands Production o) g (W5 0Oil Sands Operating
and Realized Crude and 70,000 o e and Overhead Costs
Bitumen Price y
60,000 - 100
50,000 4 L g0
N Syricrude and 40,000
MacKay River - 60
produchon net (54) 30,000 |
—=— Syncrude realized - 40
crude pricy (S/bbi) 20,000 1 B Syncrude operaling and
y | i L 20 overhead costs (b))
—— MacKay River 10,000
realized bitumen B MacKay River operating and
price (§/bbf) 04 L 5 overhesd cosls (£bbi)
05 o7 08 o6 o7 08
2008 2007 2006
Production net {b/d)
Syncrude 34,700 36,600 31,000
MacKay River 25,200 20,300 21,200
Total Oil Sands production net 59,900 56,900 52,200
Syncrude realized crude price (§/bbf) $ 106.63 § 7930 § 7213
MacKay River realized bitumen price {$/bbi) $ 60.26 $ 2823 5 2893
Syncrude operating and overhead costs (8/bbf) $ r.7re $§ 269 $ 3000
$ 24.65 $ 20.97 $ 17.83

MackKay River operating and overhead costs ($/bbl)

Syncrude's production averaged 289,000 b/d gross (34,700 b/d net) in 2008, compared with 305,000 b/d gross (36,600 b/d net)
in 2007. Syncrude production was negatively impacted by tumarounds at Cokers 8-1 and 8-2 in 2008. Higher unit operating
costs were mainly due to lower production, higher costs associated with moving additional overburden to increase exposed
minable ore inventory, higher maintenance costs and higher natural gas costs. The total royalty paid in 2008 equated to a rate
of 14% of gross revenues. In the fourth quarter, Petro-Canada and its partners in Syncrude concluded negotiations with the
Government of Alberta regarding the province's desire for Syncrude to move to the New Alberta Royalty Framework
recommendations in advance of the expiry of its existing royalty agreement in 2015.

MacKay River's average production increased to 25,200 b/d in 2008, up 24% compared with 20,300 b/d in 2007. Higher
production reflected increased reliability and capacity at MacKay River. MacKay River reliability averaged 97% in 2008, up from
87% in 2007, when operational upsets occurred. Unit operating and overhead costs increased by 18% in 2008, averaging
$24.65Mbl, compared with $20.97/bbl in 2007, Higher unit operating costs were due to higher maintenance and repair costs, a
major turnaround and higher natural gas costs, partially offset by increased production for the year.
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2008 Strategic Initiatives

In the first quarter of 2008, Petro-Canada received regulatory approval for the proposed MacKay River 40,000 b/d in situ
expansion project. The MRX project is on hold until commodity prices and financial markets strengthen. Petro-Canada is
pursuing cost-saving opportunities, including using international engineering, procurement and construction (EPC} contractors
on a lump-sum basis.

In June 2007, Petro-Canada and its Fort Hills partners completed and announced the design basis and initiated the detailed
FEED for Fort Hills Phase 1, which consists of the proposed Fort Hills mine and upgrader. At the completion of the FEED
phase in September 2008, the estimated costs to complete the project increased by approximately 50%. The FID on the mining
portion of the project is being deferred unlil the extension of the Fort Hills mine leases is resolved, costs can be reduced and
commodity prices and financial markets strengthen. In 2008, the Fort Hills upgrader portion of the project was put on hold, and
a decision on whether to proceed with the upgrader will be made at a later date. Bitumen production from the first phase of the
mine is expected to be about 160,000 b/d gross (96,000 b/d net).

The Fort Hills Energy Limited Partnership has entered into an agreement, subject to the FID, with Enbridge Pipelines
(Athabasca) Inc. to develop pipeline and terminalling facilities to meet the requirements of the Fort Hills mine Phase 1 and
subsequent phases of the project.

The partners selected Sturgeon County, 40 kilometres northeast of Edmonton, as the location for the proposed upgrading
facility to process bitumen from the Fort Hills mine. The upgrader will use delayed coking technology to convert Fort Hills’
bitumen into light synthetic crude oil. Late in 2006, Petro-Canada filed the regulatery application for the Fort Hills upgrader.
Conditional Energy Resources Conservation Board {ERCB) regulatory approval was received in January 2009, While the
upgrader investment decision is being delayed, FEED is being fully completed and some long-lead equipment already ordered
will be received and securely stored. The upgrader will remain in a holding status that permits re-engagement.

In two of the Qil Sands leases granted 1o the Fort Hills Energy Corporation by the Alberta government, there are several
conditions, including a production milestone requiring that a mine be completed and producing 100,000 b/d gross (60,000 b/d
nef} of bitumen by mid-2011. Discussions are in progress with the Govermment of Alberta to amend the two Qil Sands leases.
In the event that an amendment is not achieved and that the Fort Hills Partnership is unable to meet the existing conditions
associated with the two leases, the Alberta government may impose a performance deposit or cancel the two leases if the
performance deposit is not provided within the applicable time period.

Oil Sands capital expenditures of $1,063 million in 2008 included $751 millien for the Fort Hills project, $41 million for the MRX,
$168 million for MacKay River, $90 miliion at the Syncrude cperations and $13 million for other Gil Sands projects.

Qutlook

Capital spending plans in 2009'
« capital program of approximatety $985 million is planned
for Oll Sands

Production expectations in 2009
- Petro-Canada’s share of Syncrude production is
expected to average 38,000 b/d net

« MacKay River bitumen producticen is expected to

G

average 27,000 b/d net, which includes two major 10- to
15-day planned maintenance turnarounds

rowth plans
work to improve reliability at Syncrude and
MacKay River

- progress SAGD technology through research and

development

« approximately $745 million for new growth
opportunities, the majority of which is to advance the
Fort Hills project (forecast to be $348 million) and for
facilities, drilling and infrastructure for the MRX project
{forecast to be $325 million)

+ approximately $210 million to enhance existing
operations, comply with regulations and improve the
base business profitability at Syncrude and
MacKay River

- approximately $30 million to replace reserves through
ongoing pad development at MacKay River

1 Petro-Canada will monitor energy and financial markets through 2009 and take advamage of the flexibility in its capital program to pace

projects and adjust capital expenditures, as necessary.
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Qil Sands production is expected to increase to 65,000 b/d net in 2009, compared with actual production of 59,900 b/d net in
2008. Higher expected production in 2009 is due to higher volumes anticipated at both Syncrude and MacKay River. The total
Syncrude royalty payable in 2009 is expected to be approximately 12% of gross bitumen revenue, depending on ¢rude prices.
The total MacKay River royalty payable in 2009 is expected to be approximately 2% of gross bitumen revenue, depending on
crude prices.

With the completion of the Fort Hills Phase 1 and MRX projects, Petro-Canada's production from Cil Sands is expected to grow
to more than 200,000 b/d net. Beyond that, the Company has the potential to grow the Qil Sands business to approximately
300,000 b/d net. Petro-Canada is focused on capturing the opportunities in its Qil Sands strategy, including taking advantage
of a low-cost environment, while addressing the challenges of environmental and stakeholder issues. As an experienced and
responsible operator, Petro-Canada is well positioned to meet these challenges.

Link fo Petro-Canada's Corporale and Strategic Priornities

The Qil Sands business is aligned with Petro-Canada's strategic priorities as outlined by its progress in 2008 and goals

for 2009.

PRIQRITY

2008 GCALS

2008 RESULTS

2009 GOALS

Detivering Profitable
Growth with a Focus on
Operated, Long-Life
Assets

+ complete Fort Hills FEED and make

FID in the third quarter of 2008

+ order long-lead items for Fort Hills

project

+ continue to ramp up Syncrude Stage

Ill expansion

- receive regulatory decision on MRX

project

- continue to advance MRX project in

preparation for the FID in the first

* quarter of 2009
« receive regulatory decision on the Fort

Hills upgrader

- completed Fort Hills Phase 1 FEED
- deferred making the FID for Fort Hills

mine due to more than a 50% increase
from initial project cost estmates and
market conditions

+ delayed the investment decision on

the Fort Hills upgrader

- revisiting Fort Hills FEED and ordering

of long-lead items for the Fort Hills
upgrader

- received regulatory appraval of the

Fort Hills amended mine processes
and tailings locations

+ Syncrude production decreased due to

two planned turnarounds at two
cokers, and operatienal upsets

+ received regutatory approval on MRX

project in the first quarter of 2008

- recefved fixed bids from three

international engingering firms for the
MRX project

+ deferred making the FID for MRX due

to market conditions

+ received regulatory appraval of Fort

Hills upgrader in January 2009

+ reached a Syncrude royalty

agreement along with its partners, with
the Province of Alberta

- complete a new estimate for the Fort

Hills mine costs by taking advantage
of the cument market softness

« take delivery of some long-lead

equipment for the Fort Hills
upgrader and secure the asset for
future re-activation

- maintzin spending discipline for

2009 capital commitments

~ position MRX for sanction once

commodity and financial markets
improve

» continue to ramp up Syncrude Stage

Il expansion toward its design
capacity
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Link fo Petro-Canada’s Corporate and Strategic Prionities (continued)

PRIORITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Driving for First Quartile - ramp up MacKay River productionto |- achieved 97% reliability at MacKay - maintain MacKay River production
Operation of Qur Assels hit 30,000 bid and increase reliability River a1 27,000 b/d and reliability above
lo greater than 90% + achieved daily throughput average of "%
- commence shipping MacKay River 30,000 bid for 30 days at MacKay - optimize the integration of MacKay
bitumen to the Edmonton refinery afler | River River bitumen and Suncor
ithas been upgraded into synthetic - achieved record average production of processing through to the Edmenton
crude o at Suncor 25,200 bid at MacKay River refinery
» decrease Syncrude non-fuel unit - commenced shipping of MacKay River | * work through the Syncrude joint
operating costs by 10%, compared bitumen 1o Suncor for processing and venture owners o improve reliability
with 2007 subsequent shipping to the Edmontgn | 3nd ower operating and sustaining
tefinery, effective January 1, 2009 capital costs
- experienced higher Syncrude non-fuel
unit eperating costs due to lower
production and higher maintenance
costs
Continuing to Work at + drive for continuous improvement in + TRIF decreased in 2008 to 0.67, - incarporate zere-liquid distharge
Being a Responsible safety compared with 0.75 in 2007 info MRX facitity design
Company - conlinue relevant and transparent - experienced 20 environmental - implement performance measures
engagement with key stakehoiders to regulatory exceedances in 2008, aimed at lowering environmental
oblain approval for the Fort Hills compared with six in 2007 regulatory exceedances
upgrader and ming expansion - received regulatory approval for the | - better understand how to manage

- develop capability in managing the

.

social issues of a temporary foreign
workforce

pursue research on practical solutions
for tailings management

Fon_ Hilts mine amendment without a
hearing

+ received requlatory approval for the

Fort Hills upgrader in January 2009

- implemented a risk assessrment to

understand and mitigate the social
risks retated to bringing temporary
foreign workers into off sands project
camps

- pursuing research and industry

solutions to tafings management
continues to be a priovity

the language and cultural aspects of
the safety of foreign contract
workers on Pefro-Canada's sites
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international & Offshore
East Coast Canada

Business Summary and Strategy

Petro-Canada has a strong position in every major producing oil
development off Canada's east coast. The Company holds a 20% interest in
Hibernia, a 27.5% interest in White Rose' and a 22.7% interest in Hebron,
and is the operator of Terra Nova with a 34% interest.

[RA R NA DS KRS

NEWFOUNDLAND

The East Coast Canada strategy is to deliver reliable and profitable
production well into the next decade, ieveraging the existing infrastructure

. White R
while pursuing profitable development opportunities. Key features of the o) ne Rose
strategy include: PRt
+ delivering top quartile operating performance & Hibernia Hebron/

Ben Nevis

+ sustaining profitable production through reservoir extensions and add-ons Terra Nova

« pursuing high potential, near field development and exploration projects

@ CQperated ® Proposed/non-operated
® MNon-gperated

East Coast Canada Financial Resuils

(mitlions of Canadian dollars) 2008 2007 2006
Net earnings $ 1,368 $ 1,229 $ 934
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $ 1,850 $ 1,491 $ 1129
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and exploration $ 278 $ 159 $ 256
Total assets $ 2149 § 2,345 $ 2465
2008 Compared with 2007

East Coast Canada contributed a record $71,368 million of net eamnings, up 11% from $1,229 milfion in 2007. Strong realized
prices and reliabifity were partially offsef by decreased production due to natural deciines, increased royalfies and increased
DD&A expenses.

Net eamings in 2008 included $29 million of insurance proceeds refated to historical mechanical failures on the Terra Nova
Floating Production, Storage and Offloading (FPSQO) vessel. Net eamings in 2007 included a $52 million income tax recovery
and $27 million of insurance proceeds.

In 2008, realized crude oil prices remained strong, while production decreased. East Coast Canada realized crude prices
averaged $99.13/bbl in 2008, up from $75.87/bb! in 2007. East Coast oil production averaged 90,500 b/d in 2008, down from
98,700 b/d in 2007. Decreased produclion reflected natural declines in all East Coast assets. Additionally, pack ice at the White
Rose field in the second quarter of 2008 caused production deferments and drilling delays.

1 Petro-Canada's working inferest in the White Rose Extensions is 26.125% after the Newfoundtand and Labrador Energy Corporation
(NA_LCOR) acguired its 5% working interest effective with the signing of the final project agreements in February 2009, There is no
change to the White Rose 27.5% working interest for the original field development as NALCCR is not a partner.

‘AB‘L Management's Discussion and Analysis PETRO-CANADA




2008 Operating Review and Strategic Initiatives

2008 Operating Review
2
East Coast Canada () g = () East Coast Canada Operating (Wb}
Production and 100,000 = 5 100 and Overhead Costs 10
Realized Crude Price 2
sooed] o L go 8
w0 | I8 - 60 §
W 53! Coast Canada 40,000 F 40 4 1
production nef (/)
) 20,000 - b 20 2 1
= pompse O o
[1IE L overhead Jd
06 a 08 %6 07 0
2008 2007 2006
Production net {b/d)
Hibernia 27,800 26,900 35,700
Terra Nova 34,900 39,500 12,800
White Rose 27,800 32,300 24,200
Total East Coast Canada production net 90,500 98,700 72,700
Average realized crude price ($/bl) $ 9913 $ 75.87 $§ 7112
Qperating and overhead costs {#/bbi) $ 5.92 $ 4.86 $ 7.71

Hibernia production averaged 139,000 b/d gross (27,800 b/d net) in 2008, up from 134,500 b/d gross (26,900 b/d net) in 2007,
reflecting excellent reliability, a successful well workover campaigh and the addition of two new wells. These facters offset
natural reservoir declines. Hibemia had a 30-day maintenance turmnaround in 2007, but no tumaround in 2008. The total royalty
paid at Hibemnia in 2008 equated to a rate of 5% of gross revenues.

At Terra Nova, production averaged 102,700 b/d gross (34,900 b/d net), compared with 116,200 b/d gross {39,500 b/d nel) in
2007. Terra Nova production was jower in 2008 due to a planned 16-day maintenance turnaround and natural reservoir
declines. In 2008, the Terra Nova FPSO operated at solid reliability of 90%, a 4% improvement over 2007. In December 2006,
the Terra Nova FPSO experienced a mechanical issue in a swivel connection on the turret system that supports water injection
1o the reservoir. A repair was completed in December 2006 and production returned to normal rates. Performance of the water
injection swivel was satisfactory throughout 2008. Contingency plans have been developed and parts have been sourced for
the modification or replacement of the swivel in the event performance deteriorates. In 2008, Terra Nova achieved tier I
payout, thereby increasing royalties to 42.5% of net revenues. The {otal royalty paid at Terra Nova in 2008 equated to a rate of
37% of net revenues.

White Rose production averaged 101,100 b/d gross (27,800 b/d net), compared with 117,500 b/d gross (32,300 b/d net) in
2007. White Rose production was impacted by pack ice in the field in the second quarter that caused preduction shut-ins and
delayed development drilling. in 2008, White Rose achieved tier Il payout, thereby increasing royalties to 30% of net revenues,
The total royalty paid in 2008 equated to a rate of 27% of net revenues.

East Coast Canada operating and overhead costs averaged $5.92/bbl in 2008, up from $4.86/bb! in 2007. Unit operating costs
for East Coast Canada increased as a result of lower production and higher operating expenses in the year.

2008 Strategic Initiatives
In August 2008, the Hebron partners reached an agreement with the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador on

commercial terms that will allow development activities to progeed for Hebron. The pariners also agreed to transfer
operatorship from Chevron Canada Ltd. to ExxonMobil.
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In September 2007, the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador approved the Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador
Offshore Petroleumn Board (C-NLOPB) recommendation to permit development of the South White Rose Extension.
Subsequently, the White Rose partners reached an agreement in principle with the province on fiscal and other terms for the
White Rose Extensions development, incorporating the South White Rose Extension, North Amethyst and West While Rose
satellite fields. This activity was concluded in December 2007 when Petro-Canada and its partners signed a formal agreement
with the province for the development of these oilfields. North Amethyst will be developed initially, with first oil targeted for lale
2009. The development of the West White Rose satellite is expected to follow. FEED for the North Amethyst portion of the
project is complete and detailed design, procurement and fabrication are underway, with necessary long-lead equipment and
drilling commitments in hand. in April 2008, the project received regulatory and government approval to proceed.

Capital expenditures for exploration and development of crude oil offshore Canada's east coast were $276 million in 2008,
including $208 million related to the development of the White Rose oilfield, $45 million for Hibemia development drilling,
$14 million for Terra Nova and $9 million relating to exploration drilling and preliminary Hebran activities.

Qutlook

Production expectations in 2009 - advance the Hebron project for regulatory approval in

- East Coast production is expected to average the 2010 time frame

68,000 b/d net, reflecting 28-day planned turnarounds at - advance the development concept for West White Rose
both Terra Nova and White Rose, and a 21-day planned
turnaround at Hibemia Capital spending plans in 2008’

- East Coast’s objective is to achieve greater than 90% « capital program of approximatety $530 million is planned
reliability at Terra Nova for East Coast

« approximately $490 million is expected to be spent
primarily on advancing the White Rose Extensions

- begin development drilling in the White Rose developments and drilling to replace reserves at
Extensions’ North Amethyst satellite field and achieve Hibemia, Terra Nova and White Rose

first oll

Growth plans

- approximately $40 million is planned for investments
- advance Hibernia Southern Extension development plan in new growth opportunities and exploration

discussions with the Government of Newfoundland and
Labrador to facilitate project planning and approvals

- drill an exploration well in the Jeanne d’Arc Basin on the
Ballicatters prospect

Fetro-Canada will monitor energy and financial markets through 2009 and take advantage of the flexibility in its capital program to pace
projects and adjust capital expenditures, as necessary.

-

East Coast Canada progduction is expected to be 68,000 b/d in 2009, compared with actual production of 90,500 b/d in 2008.
The 2009 production estimate reflects natural declines and maintenance turnarounds at alt three East Coast assets. The
28-day White Rose maintenance shutdown is concurrent with a 101-day shutdown of the south drill centre to tie in the White
Rose Extensions' satellites. Beyond 2009, the East Coast Canada business intends to offset natural declines in the main
reservoirs and sustain profitable production by adding production from reservoir extensions and satellite tie-ins. The Hebron
project remains a significant resource the Company also wants to see developed.

%— Managermant's Discussion and Analysis PETRO-CANADA

38



Link to Petro-Canada's Corporate and Strategic Priorities

The East Coast Canada business is aligned with Petro-Canada's strategic pricrities as outined by its progress in 2008 and

goals for 2009.
PRIORITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Delivering Profitable + advance White Rose Extensions + achieved intemal and regulatory + drill two development wells in the
Growth with a Focus on development toward regulatory approval for North Amethyst porionof |  main Terra Nova field
Operated, Long-Life approval and FID in 2008, with first ol the White Rose Extensions in 2008; - dril exploration well in Ballicatiers
Assels targeted for late 2009 on track for first oilin late 2009 prospect
» commence development drilling for the | - drilled a pilot well in North Amethyst . 4cnieve formal agreerment for
White Rose Extensions project for the White Rose Extensions project Hibemia Southem Extension
+ achieve binding formal agreements - signed binding formal agreements for development
and re-gstablish the Habron projedt Hetron + agvance the target Hebron first ol
tea.ma“:"‘ the 9|°ta' of Sme'"jI’?g me « filed a development plan amendment date
roject for regulatory approval in the i ibemi
20 110 e fr?;]e ry approval | mpllgﬁon for the Hibemia Southem | . ;cnieve first of at North Amethyst
o Extension project and finalize development concept
+ advance the Hibemia Southemn for West White Rose
Extension growth project
Driving for First Quartile |- achieve and maintain greater than + achieved 90% reliability at Terra Nova | - mainiain greater than 90% reliability
Operation of Qur Assets 90% reliability at Terra Nova - putin place all swivel contingency at Tera Nova and close process
- finalize Termra Nova swive! repair plans |  plans and materials, if safely gaps
- complete 16-day tumarounds at Terra repairfreplacement is required - complete 28-day tur_narounds at
Neva and partner-operated White - completed Terra Nova and White Tema Nova and White Rose and
Rose Rose tumarounds on ime 24-day umargund at Hibernia
’ - identfy and implement opportunities
to reduce administrative and
operating costs across the business
Continuing to Work at - continue to reduce injuries and - TRIF increased to 2.5, compared with |- develop action plan to address injury
Being a Responsible ilnesses through implementation of 05in 2007 frequency
Company Exposure Based Satety program and | achieved lower combined firstsids, |- develop gap closure plan and
first aid reduction initiatives medical aids and restricted work cases | stewardship to address process
+ enhance focus on process safety in 2008, compared with 2007 safety and TLM self-assessment
management - scored 93% on TLM process safety gap
- continue to implerment loss audit + implement continuous improvement

containment improvement plan

continue to enhance produced water
management

- integrate stakeholder management

process and tools and streamline with
regulatory processes and
requirements

+ recorded one environmental regulatory

exceedance, compared with zero in
2007

» improved produced water quality
+ trained more than 6 employees on

stakeholder information management
system

- successfully completed an on-water oil

spill countermeasure exercise

- sugeessfully completed Tema Nova

operations authorization

.

initiatives relating to oil spill
response

develop and implement GHG
emissions reduction strategy and
continue initiatives 1o improve flare
management and produced water
quality

+ support research and development

initiatives that have personal safety,
environmental and community
benefits
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International & Offshore

International

For reporting purposes, Petro-Canada has consolidated its Intemationatl activities into two core areas: the North Sea {the
United Kingdom (U.K.), the Netherlands and Norway sectors) and QOther Intemational areas {Libya, Syria, and offshore Trinidad
and Tobago).

Business Summary and Strategy

International is concentrating on countries and regions where material
positions may be built, with a particular focus on increasing the proportion of
long-life assets in the portfolio. These regions include the North Sea, Libya,
Syria, and Trinidad and Tobago.

Petro-Canada'’s Intemational strategy capitalizes on the strengths of a mid-
sized exploration and production company, which is big enough to execute
large scale projects and agile enough to develop smaller projects that can

" . . . TRINIDAD
still create significant value, such as the Company’s concentric developments AND TOBAGO

around the Triton hub in the North Sea, Key features of the International

strategy are:

» expanding and exploiting the existing portfolic
* targeling new growth opportunities 0 Petro-Canada assets

. . . ® Petro-Canada International offices
* executing a substantial and balanced exploration program

In 2005, Petro-Canada reached an agreement to sell the Company's mature producing assets in Syria. The sale was closed on -
January 31, 2006. These assets and associated results are reported as discontinued operations and excluded from continuing
operations,

international Financial Resulls

{millions of Canadian dollars) 2008 2007 2006
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations $ 1884 $ 374 $ (206}
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $ 2,380 $ 220 $ 840
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and exploration from

continuing operations $ 215 $ 762 $ 760
Total assets from continuing operations $ 8217 $ 5180 $ 60

1 Intemnational cash flow from continuing operating activities in 2007 was reduced by the payment of $1,145 milicn after-tax to settle the hedged
portion of Buzzard production.
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2008 Compared with 2007

Intemational contributed a record $1,684 million of net earnings, up 350% compared with net eamnings of $374 million in 2007.
Higher realized prices and production were partially offset by higher exploration and DD&A expenses.

Net eamnings from continuing operations in 2008 included a $227 million income tax recovery and an $88 million gain on the
sale of non-core assets. Net eamings from continuing operations in 2007 included net losses con the dervative contracts
associated with the hedged portion of Buzzard production of $331 million, a $30 million income tax recovery, a $9 million gain
on the sale of non-core assets and $5 million in insurance proceeds from the Scott platform fire.

Late in 2007, the Company entered into derivative contracts to close out the hedged portion of its Buzzard production from
January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2010. Under the terms of the contracts, the Company repurchased 30,688,000 bbls of Dated
Brent crude oil at an average price of approximately $85.79 US/bbl, resutting in a reduction in cash flow of $1,145 million
afterdax.

International production from continuing operations averaged 157,200 boe/d net in 2008, compéred with 150,500 boe/d net in
2007. The increase was primarily due to additional North Sea production. International crude oit and NGL realized prices from
continuing operations averaged $98.25/bbt and natural gas realized prices averaged $10.15Mcf in 2008, compared with
$75.90/bbl and $6.46/Mcf, respectively, in 2007. Operating and overhead costs from continuing operations averaged $7.33/boe
in 2008, down 20% compared with $9.12/boe in 2007, due to lower operating expenses related to new EPSAs in Libya.

International capital expenditures from continuing operations in 2008 were $2,115 million, with $281 million directed to the
North Sea region, primarily for the Buzzard enhancement project, and $1,834 million invested in Other International, primarily
related to the signature bonus payment in Libya and the Ebla gas development in Syria.

2008 Operating Review and Strategic Initiatives

2008 Operating Review -
= (%/bbiy/
Intemational Production (boaid) T (M) International Cperating {$/boe)
and Realized Prices 175000 1 E - 100 and Overhead Costs 10 q
150,000 - - '
- 80 8
EE FProduction from 125.000
cunhm._ring
operalions (boe/d) 100,000 - - 60 6 1
—a— Average reslized
crude od and NGL 75,000 - L a0
price from continuing & 1
operalions f&'bbr}. 50,000 o
~—a— Average tealized - 20 2
natural gas price 25,000 4
from continuing W Infernational operaling and
oparalions ($/Mci) a - L o overhead costs ($Doe) o
06 07 08
06 o7 i1}
2008 2007 2006
Production from continuing operations net (boe/d)
North Sea 97,700 91,000 43,700
Other International 59,500 59,500 59,900
Total International production net 157,200 150,500 103,600
Average realized crude oil and NGL price frem centinuing
operations ($/bi) $ 98.25 $ 75.90 $ 7289
Average realized natural gas price from continuing operations {$/Mcf) $ 10.15 $ 6.46 3 7.64
Operating and overhead ¢osts from conlinuing operations ($/boe) $ 7.33 $ 9.12 $ 7.61
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North Sea

Petro-Canada's North Sea production averaged 97,700 boe/d net in 2008, compared with 91,000 boe/d net in 2007. Additional
production from Buzzard and Saxon and full-year production from De Ruyter and L5b-C were pardially offset by natural declines
and problems with two producing wells in the Triton area. North Sea crude oil and NGL realized prices averaged $97.76/bb!
and natural gas averaged $12.15/Mcf in 2008, compared with $75.12/bbl and $7.94/Mcf, respectively, in 2007.

During 2008, Petro-Canada continued to leverage its existing infrastructure through concentric development near core areas
and through new discoveries.

In the U.K. sector of the North Sea, the Buzzard development, in which the Company has a 28.9% interest, achieved first oil in
January 2007 and ramped up to peak production of 220,000 boe/d gross (65,700 boe/d net) in July 2007.

Sections of the Buzzard field contain higher than expected levels of hydrogen sulphide. In order to meet the crude quality
requirements of the Forties pipeline system, the partners are installing additional sulphur handling equipment on the facility.
This work is on schedule for installation in late 2010 or eary 2011,

UK. exploration success continued in 2008 with the non-operated Pink discovery, located in Block 20/1 North, where the
non-operated Golden Eagle discovery was drilled in late 2006. Together with its joint venture partners, the Company is
evaluating more exploration opportunities in the immediate area, with a view to optimizing the development plan for the
discovered resources. Petro-Canada holds a 25% working interest in the Golden Eagle discovery and a 33% interest in the
Pink discovery.

in the Netherlands sector of the North Sea, oil production comes from the Petro-Canada operated Hanze and De Ruyter
platforms. The Company has a 45% working interest in Hanze and a 54.07% working interest in De Ruyter. At a current
combined gross production rate of approximately 25,000 boe/d, these assets were the largest source of domestic oil in
the Netherlands in 2008.

The major source of the Company’s natural gas preduction in the Netherlands is from the L5b-L8b non-operated natural gas
area (Petro-Canada working interest of approximately 30%;), with net production of approximately 33 MMcf/d.

in the Nethedands sector of the North Sea, the Company, as operator with a 50% working interest, drilled a successfu!
exploration well in 2008: van Ghent. The Company drilled two successful exploration wells in 2007, van Nes and van Brakel, as
operator with a 50% and 60% working interest, respectively. Both van Nes and van Brakel were suspended as gas discoveries.
As all three wells are in the vicinity of the De Ruyter development, the potential to tie these wells back to De Ruyter is
being assessed.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company completed a sales and purchase agreement with Bayerngas Norge AS for the sale of
all the Company's interests in Denmark for net proceeds of $140 million, resulting in a $107 million ($82 million after-tax) gain
on the sale of these assets. The sale of all of Petro-Canada’s interests in Denmark is consistent with the International &
Offshere business unit strategy o optimize the portfolio by reducing participation in countries where the Company cannot
foresee developing a material position.

In 2008, the Company was awarded four additional production licences in the 2007 Awards in Predefined Areas round in
Norway. Petro-Canada is operator of five of the 17 licences in Norway.
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Oiher international
Libya

Petro-Canada is one of the larger producers in Libya through its 50% interest in Harouge Cil Operations, a joint venture with
the NOC. In 2008, Petro-Canada's production from continuing operations in Libya averaged 48,800 boe/d net, up 2% from
47,700 boe/d net in 2007. In early January 2009, the NOC advised the Company that production from Petro-Canada’s Libya
EPSAs will be limited to 85,000 b/d gross (42,500 b/d net) due to the quota agreed to by OPEC producers in December 2008.

Libyan crude cil and NGL realized prices averaged $101.97/bbl in 2008, compared with $77.26/bbl in 2007. Petro-Canada's
production is currently sold on contract to the NOC. In 2008, 12 development wells were completed in the producing fields in
Libya, consisting of 11 production wells and one injection well. Additionally, one appraisal well was drilled. A further five
development wells were being drilled at year end.

Petro-Canada is the operator, with a 50% working interest, of Block 137 in the Sirte Basin. In 2008, the Company completed
2D and 3D seismic acquisitions and is evaluating the data in preparation for drilling an exploration well.

In June 2008, Petro-Canada signed six new EPSAs with the Libya NCC to replace its existing concession agreements. The
new EPSAs were ratified as of the signing, with an effective date of January 1, 2008. Following ratification of the new
agreements, a payment of $500 million US, representing 50% of the signature bonus, was made to the Libya NOC in July
2008, with the remainder to be paid between 2009 and 2013.

The new EPSAs will run for 30 years and enable the Company and the NQOC to jointly design and implement the
redevelopment of the existing fields in the Sirte Basin. Petro-Canada and the NOC will each pay one-half of development
expenditures, which are expected to total up to $7 billion US gross over the term of the licences. It is expected that the
investment will double existing production to 200,000 boe/d gross (100,000 boe/d net).

Under the new agreements, the Company is the exploratton operator and has committed to fully fund an exploration program at
an estimated cost of $460 million US over a five-year period. Petro-Canada has started to acquire 3D seismic over the new
EPSA acreage and expects to start exploration drilling in 2009.

Following the signing of the new EPSAs, work began immediately on building the management, technical and administration
staff necessary for the successful execution of the new exploration and development programs. By the end of 2008, four
seismic crews had been deployed in the Sirte Basin and planning was well underway to begin exploration drilling in the second
half of 2009. In the redevelopment program, priority is being given to the Amal field, where a comprehensive field development
plan is expected to be completed in 2009. Work is also underway to identify opportunities to increase production in the near
term through well reactivations and workovers.

Syria

In 2008, the Company completed FEED and undertook 2D and 3D seismic operations for the Ebla gas project. The Ebla gas
project is expected to produce an estimated 80 MMci/d of natural gas from the Ash Shaer and Cherrife natural gas fields, with
first gas anticipated in 2010. The EPC centract for the project's production facilities was awarded and construction was 50%
complete at the end of 2008. The Ebla gas project progressed on time and on budget.

The Company believes there is significant upside potential in the Ebla gas fields. A 3D seismic survey program to map the
known reservoir and new structures over 900 square kilometres is underway, and is expected to be completed during the
second quarter of 2009. Two drilling rigs are now working on the Ebla gas project and first gas is targeted for mid-2010.

The Company is building an exploration pesition in Syria by securing Block I, where two exploration wells were drilled in 2008,
and by continuing negotiations on two further exploration blocks.

'
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Trinidad and Tobago

tn 2008, Petro-Canada's share of Trinidad and Tobago offshore production averaged 64 MMcfid net, down from 71 MMcf/d net
in 2007. Decreased production reflected additional maintenance at the Atlantic LNG plant, rebalancing of mutual aid production
among producers to the Atlantic LNG plant and several brief shutdowns of the North Coast Marine Area (NCMA-1) asset to
prepare for the startup of the new Poinsettia field. Trinidad and Tobago realized prices for natural gas averaged $7.15Mcf in
2008, compared with $4.34/Mcf in 2007.

The Company holds a 17.3% working interest in the NCMA-1 offshore natural gas development project, where first gas was
achieved in late 2006, Development of the Poinsettia field, with a platform and pipeline tie-back to the Hibiscus platiorm, was
carried out on schedule during 2008. First gas is planned for the first quarier of 2009 frorm one subsea well, and six platform
welis will commence drilling in the third quarter of 2009,

In 2008, Petro-Canada completed its eight-well exploration program in Block 22 and Block 1a/1b, which yielded four material
discoveries (two on Block 22 and two on Block 1a). The Company expects to develop a strategy to commercialize these
discoveries in 2009,

Other

In July 2008, Petro-Canada converted its existing reconnaissance licence in southern Morocco to an exploration permit.
The Company's pariners in the exploration licence include German company RWE and the Moroccan National Office of
Hydrocarbons.

QOutlook
Production expectations in 2009 Capital spending plans n 2009’
- North Sea oil and gas production to average - capital program of approximately $1.270 million is
85,000 boe/d net planned for International
+ Other International oil and gas production to average - approximately $670 million, primarity for new growth
52,000 boe/d net projects in Syria and Libya
- approximately $470 million for reserves replacement
Growth plans - I
spending in core areas, primarily at Buzzard,
- advance the redevelopment and exploration programs Guillemot West and Saxen
in Libya

- approximately $130 million for exploration
- achieve scheduled milestones for the Syria Ebla gas

project
- develop a commercialization strategy for discoveries in

Trinidad and Tobago

- camy out a successful exploration program

1 Petro-Canada will monitor energy and financial markets through 2009 and take advantage of the flexibility in its capital program to pace
projects and adjust capital expenditures, as necessary.

tnternational production from continuing operations is expected to be 137,000 boe/d net in 2009, lower than production levels
of 157,200 boe/d net in 2008. Lower expected production in 2009 reflects a 28-day planned turnaround at Buzzard, announced
OPEC preduction target cuts and natural declines in several fields.
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Link to Petro-Canada's Corporate and Stralegic Prionities

The International business is aligned with Petro-Canada’s strategic priorities as outlined by its progress in 2008 and goals

for 2009.

PRIORITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Deliverinq Profitable - evaluate 2007 exploration results + drilled 13 exploration wells, with - continue appraisal and
Growth with a Focus on and defiver 2008 exploration pragram |  nine wells completed as discoveries, development planning for the UK.

Operated, Long-Life
Assels

+ develop a fransition plan for the

Libya Concession Development
project

- develop a detailed exploration

programin Libya

+ award EPC contract for Syria Ebla

gas project and finalize commercial
agreements

+ spud first well for the Syria Ebla gas

project

- evafyate opportunities to

commercialize Trinidad and Tobago
gas discoveries, subject to
exploration results

four wells abandoned as dry holes and
one well still drilling at year end

- signed six new EPSAs with the Libya

NOC, adding reserves and extending
terms by an expected 30 years with
improved commercial terms

« commenced 30 seismic programin

Libya

- completed 50% of Syria Ebla gas

project

- commenced seismic and development

drilling on the Syria Ebla gas project

+ participated in four gas discoveries in

Trinidad and Tobago and began study
of commerscialization options

and the Netherlands exploration
discoveries

« drill up to three exploration wells in
the UK. and Norway depending on
rig availabifity

+ continue Libya exploration
3D seismic program and start
exploration drilling program

+ prepare and submit redevelopment
plans for the Libya Amal field and
pursue early production gains
across the new contract areas

- complete the Syria Ebla seismic
programn and continue development
driling and construction of the Syria
Ebla gas ptant with a first gas target
of mid-2010

» develop appraisal and
commercialization strategies for the
Trinidad and Tobago discoveries

Driving for First Quartile
Operation of Qur Assets

- maintain excellent production

efficiency at the Petre-Canada
operated De Ruyter and Hanze
platforms

~ deliver plateau level production at

Buzzard while the enhancement
program is implemented

« defivered 97% reliability at both De

Ruyter and Hanze facilities

- Buzzard achieved average production

of 205,000 boe/d gross (61,300 boe/d
net), in ine with plateau production
expectations

- maintain greater than 90% reliability
at Hanze and De Ruyter and drill a
Hanze Pliocene development well

+ develop and implement Triton
de-botitenecking and reliability
improvement plans

- identify and implement
opportunities to reduce
administrative and gperating costs
across the business

Continuing to Work at
Being a Respansible
Company

» continue to work with contractors to

reduce injuries and illhesses

+ continue to improve TLM systems

and processes in Libya

+ complete the EIA for the Ebla gas

project in Syria

+ confinue to develop stakeholder

management processes to maintain
positive outcomes with key
stakeholders

« TRIF was 0.62, a decrease of 56%

compared with 1.42 in 2007

« held Zero-Hamm conference for major

contractors in the Nethedands and
Syria

- expefienced one environmental

i

regulatory exceedance, compared with
zero in 2007

established fully capable Environment
Safety and Social Responsibility
{ES&SR} organizations in Libya and
Syria

« completed the EIA for the Syria Ebla

gas project

- addressed local stakeholder concems

in Trinidad and Tobagoe (impact on
fishing activities) and in Syria {feeding
grounds of Northern Bald Ibis)

+ focus on contractor management to
improve safety performance, with
paricllar emphasis in Syria and
Libya oniand transport safety

+ monitor water consumption required
to support Syria and Libya activities
and identify opportunities to reduce
water use

+ continue stakeholder engagement
fraining in Syria and Libya and
support implementation of
processes and tools
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Discontinued Cperations

On January 31, 2006, Petro-Canada completed the sale of the Company's producing assets in Syria to a joint venture of
companies owned by India's Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited and the China National Petroleum Corporation for net
proceeds of $640 million. The sale resulted in a gain on disposal of $134 million recorded in the first quarter of 2006. This sale
aligned with Petro-Canada’s stralegy to increase the proportion of long-life and operated assets within its portfolio.
Petro-Canada's activities in Syria remain part of the Other Intemational producing region, with 2n active exploration program in
Block Il and the addition of the Ebla gas project in Syria during 2006.

Producing assets in Syria are presented as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Petro-Canada’s
net eamings from discontinued operations in 2006 were $152 million and included a gain on disposal of $134 million. Summary
information is presented below. Additional information conceming Petro-Canada's discontinued operations can be found in
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. .

Discontinued Financial Results

{millions of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise nofed) 2008 2007 2006
Net eamings from discontinued operations $ - $ - $ 152
Cash flow from discontinued operating activities $ - $ - 3 15
Expenditures on praperty, plant and equipment and exploration $ - $ - $ 1
Total assets $ - $ - $ -
Total volumes {boe/d)

~ net before royatties - - 5,500

- net after royalties - - 1,400
Average realized crude oil and NGL price {#/bbl) $ - $ - $ 7184
Average realized natural gas price ($/Mcf) $ - $ - $ 7.94
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Upstream Production

2008 Compared with 2007

In 2008, Petro-Canada's production of crude oil, NGL and natural gas averaged 418,000 boe/d net, flat compared with 2007.

International & Offshore

North East
American Coast
2008 Average Daily Production Volumes Net Natural Gas Oil Sands Canada International Total
Crude oil, NGL and bitumen {b/d)
- net belore royalties 13,100 25,200 90,500 137,200 266,000
- net after royalties 9,900 25,000 68,600 119,400 222,900
Synthetic crude oil (b/d}
- net before royalties - 34,700 - - 34,700
- net after royalties - 25,700 - - 29,700
Natural gas (MMci/d)
- net before royalties 586 - - 120 706
- net after royalties 466 - - 119 §85
Total volumes (boe/d)
- net before royalties 110,800 §9,900 90,500 157,200 418,400
— net after royalties 87,600 54,700 68,600 139,200 350,100
International & Ofishore
North East
. American : Coast
2007 Average Daily Production Volumes Net Natural Gas Qil Sands Canada International Total
Crude oil, NGL and bitumen (b/4f) :
- net before royalties 12,500 20,300 98,700 129,000 260,500
- net after royalties 9,500 20,100 84,400 124,700 238,700
Synthetic crude oil (b/d)
- net before royalties - 36,600 - - 36,600
- net after royalties - 31,100 - - 31,100
Natural gas (MMcf/d}
- net before royalties 539 - - 129 728
- net after royalties 471 - ~ 123 584
Total volumes (boe/)
- net before royalties 112,300 56,900 98,700 150,500 418,400
- net after royalties £8,000 51,200 84,400 145,200 368,800
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2009 Production Outlook

In 2008, production of crude oil, NGL and natural gas averaged
418,000 boe/d net, which was at the high end of the
Company's 2008 guidance. Upstream production is expected
to decrease in 2009, due to large facility turnarounds in East
Coast Canada and International, natural declines in East Coast
Canada and Western Canada, cutbacks to 2009 planned
capital expenditures that affect near-term production and
OPEC quota restraints in Libya. Offsetting these decreases is
the expectation of higher Oll Sands production. Production is
expected to average in the range of 345000 boe/d to
385,000 boe/d in 2009. The production guidance range was
expanded to reflect’ market uncertainty in the cument
environment, the potential impact on near-temm production if
low commodity prices persist or worsen, and whether further
reductions to capital expenditures are needed.

Preduction from Continuing Operations

{thousands of barrels of ot equivalent -
Mhboe/d, net before royallies)

500 -

400 1 W Range of potential oulcomes
I W North American Naturel Gas
307 I s © East Coast Canada

|l m O Sands

W Infemational

1 As per the Company's forecast

o 05 06 07 08 09

Factors that may impact production during 2008 include reservoir performance, drilling resutlts, facility reliability, changes in
OPEC production quotas and the successful execution of planned turnarounds.

Consolidated Production Net

2009 Qutlook
2008 Qutlogk(+/) (+/}
As at July 24, As at January
{thousands of boe/d) 2008 2008 Actual 29, 2009
North American Natural Gas
Natural gas 94 98 81
Liguids 12 13 14
Qil Sands
Syncrude 35 35 3
MacKay River 25 25 27
international & Offshore
East Coast Canada 87 90 68
International
North Sea 94 98 85
Cther {nternational 58 59 52
Total 400 - 420 418 345 - 385
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Reserves Summary

The Company's reserves data and reserves guantities are determined by Petro-Canada's staff of qualified reserves evaluators
using corporate-wide policies, procedures and practices. These reserves policies, procedures and practices conform with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) standards, as well as with the requirements in Canada, and the Association
of Professional Engineers, Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta's Standard of Practice for the Evaluation of Cil and Gas
Reserves for Public Disclosure. Petro-Canada also employs independent third parties to evaluate. audit and/or review its
reserves processes and estimates. In 2008, 49% of North American (excluding Qil Sands) and 60% of International proved
reserves were assessed by independent reserves evaluators. Also in 2008, 100% of Cil Sands bitumen proved reserves were
audited and 100% of Qil Sands mining proved reserves were reviewed by independent reserves evaluators. The independent
reserves evaluators conciuded that the Company's year-end reserves estimates were reasonable.

Petro-Canada's proved reserves table that conforms to SEC standards for Oil and Gas activities can be found on page 104,

The following table and the accompanying narrative do not conform to SEC standards and are for supplemental general
information. The reporting of working interest reserves before royaities and MMboe do not conform to SEC standards.

2008 Proved 2008 Proved

December 31, 2008 reserves reserves 2008 Proved
Consolidated Reserves - for Qil and Proved Proved additions additions reserves
Gas Activities liquids gas liquids! gas' Proved?  additions’
{Billion cubic
({working interest before royalties) (MMbbIs)  feet —8ci) (MMbbis) {Bcf) {MMbos} {MMboe)
North American Natural Gas 42 1.274 2 9 254 3
Qil Sands? 238 - {9) - 258 {9)
international & Offshore
East Coast Canada 81 - 14 - 81 14
International 290 220 89 {16) 327 87
Total 671 1,494 96 {7) 920 95
Production net {97) {258} (140)

1 Proved reserves additions are the sum of revisions of previous estimates, net purchases/sales, and discoveries, extensions and improved
recovery.

2" At year-end 2008, 54% of proved reserves were classified as proved developed reserves. Of the total proved undeveloped reserves, 96%
were associated with large projects currently producing or under active development, intluding Buzzard, Syncrude, MacKay River, Hibernia,
Terra Nova, and Trinidad and Tobago natural gas,

3 Cil Sands proved reserves excluded reserves from Syncrude, which is considered a mining activity by the SEC.

At year-end 2008, the Company had 920 MMboe of proved reserves from oil and gas activities, compared with 965 MMboe at
the end of 2007.

December 31, 2008 Proved 2008 Proved reserves
Reserves - for Syncrude Mining Operation liquids additions liquids’
{working interest befors royafties) (MMbbls) {MMbbis)
Reserves of synthetic crude oil 366 29
Production net (13)

1 Proved reserves additions are the sum of revisions of previous estimates, netl purchases/sales, and discoveries, extensions and improved
recovery.

At year-end 2008, the Company had 366 MMbbls of proved reserves from Qil Sands mining operations, compared with
350 MMbbls at year-end 2007.
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The following table and the accompanying namative do not conform to SEC standards and are for supplemental general
information. Working interest reserves before royallies, MMboe and combining oil and gas and oif sands mining activities do
not conform to SEC standards.

2008 Proved 2008 Proved

December 31, 2008 reserves reserves 2008 Proved
Consolidated Reserves - for Oil and Proved Proved additions additions reserves
Gas and Oil Sands Mining Activities liquids gas liquids’ gas' Proved? additions’
{working interest before royalties) {MMbbis) {Bcf) {MMbbis) {Bcf) (MMboe) {MMboe)
North American Natural Gas 42 1,274 2 9 254 3
Qil Sands? 624 - 20 - 624 20
International & Offshore

East Coast Canada 81 - 14 - 81 14
International 290 220 89 {16} il 87
Total 1,037 1,494 125 {7) 1,286 124
Production net {110) {258) {153)

1 Praved reserves additions are the sum of revisions of previous estimates, net purchases/sales, and discoveries, extensions and improved
recovery.

2 At year-end 2008, 54% of proved reserves were classified as proved developed reserves. Of the total proved undeveloped reserves, 96%
were associated with large projects currently producing or under active development, including Buzzard, Syncrude, MacKay River, Hibernia,
Terra Nova, and Trinidad and Tobago natural gas.

3 it Sands proved reserves included reserves from Syncrude and MacKay River.

Petro-Canada's objective is to replace reserves over time through exploration, development and acquisition. The Company
believes that, due to the specific nature of its upstream portfolic and attributes of its probable reserves, the combination of
proved plus probable reserves provides the best perspective of Petro-Canada’s reserves.

In 2008, proved reserves additions totalled 124 MMboe, excluding 2008 production of 153 MMboe net. As a result, total proved
reserves decreased to 1,286 MMboe at year-end 2008, compared with 1,315 MMboe at year-end 2007. This decrease
included a (37} MMboe revision associated with the lower 2008 year-end crude oil prices, compared with 2007 year-end prices.
The majority of the lower year-end prices negatively impacted the North American Natural Gas and International business units
and are reflected in the volume numbers listed below.

The North American Natural Gas business added 3 MMboe of proved reserves additions in 2008. Reserves additions were due
to exploration and development activity, partially offset by technical revisions related to reservoir performance and the year-end
price impact.

In 2008, 20 MMbbls of proved reserves were added in Oil Sands.” At Syncrude, 29 MMbbls were added to proved reserves
as a result of a planned mine extension. At MacKay River, delineation drilling resulled in a revision of {9) MMbbls of
proved reserves.,

in East Coast Canada, a total of 14 MMbbls were added to proved reserves during 2008, due to ongoing development well
drilling and production performance at White Rose, Terra Nova and Hibernia.

International proved reserves increased by 87 MMboe in 2008, due primarily to development activity at Buzzard and the
contract extensions in Libya, partially offset by the year-end price impact,

Further detail on Petro-Canada's reserves is provided in the reserves table at the end of this report (see pages 103 to 107).

1 Qil Sands proved reserves include reserves from Syncrude and MacKay River. Syncrude is an oil sands mining operation. Oil sands
mining is not an oil and gas activity as defined by the SEC. The oil sands mining proved reserves are estimated in accordance with the
SEC Industry Guide 7.
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Downstream

Business Summary and Strategy

Petrc-Canada has the second largest downstream business and is the "brand [ -
of cheice™ in Canada. In 2008, Petro-Canada acceunted for approximately 13% !
of the total refining capacity in Canada and about 15% of total petroleum
products sold in Canada.

Ed,rf'mntun,‘* -
Alberta /
L O s

Downstream operations include two refineries — one in Edmonton and one in
Montreal - with a total daily rated capacity of 40,500 cubic metres/day (m®/d)
(255,000 b/d), a lubricants plant that is the largest producer of lubricant-base
stocks in Canada, a network of 1,323 retail service stations, Canada's largest
national commercial road transport network of 233 locations and a robust bulk
fuel sales channel.

Montreal,
Quebec
.

The strategy in the Downstream business IS to increase the profitability of the
base business through effective capital investment and disciplined ® Petro-Canada refinery
management of controllable factors. The Downstream business goal is to ® Petro-Canada lubricants plant
deliver superior returns and growth, including a 12% retum on capital

employed {ROCE) based cn a mid-cycle business environment. Key features of the strategy include:

« achieving and maintaining first quartile cperating performance in all areas
+ managing and reducing costs, with a specific focus on reducing feedstock costs

* growing revenue

The trend toward increased heavy crude production globally has resulted in an increased need for refining capacity that can
process this feedstock. As a result, Petro-Canada converted the conventional crude oil train at its Edmonton refinery to refine
oil sands-based feedstock, and the Company is considering construction of a 25,000 b/d coker at its Montreal refinery. An
investment decision on a new coker at the Montreal refinery is on hold, pending suitable project costs and return to a more
stable financial market.

Downstream Financial Resulfs

(millians of Canadian dollars) 2008 2007 2006
Net earnings $ - $ 629 $ 473
Cash flow from continuing operating activities $ 464 $ 994 $ 835
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment $ 1,834 3 1,396 1,220
Tolal assets $ 10,057 $ 7,989 $ 6649
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2008 Compared with 2007

Downstream coniributed net earnings of 3nil in 2008, down Downstream Operating, {centsAitre}
significantly from $629 million in 2007. Net eamings were g!aﬂ::ting and General 10 1
05

impacted by a weaker business environment for gasoline
cracking margins, a change in . inventory a.ccountmg & Downstieam .
methodology and lower refinery yields predominantly at markethgandgenefagfcosfs
Edmonton due to planned tumaround activity to tie in and foentstitre]

ramp -up the new RCP units and unplanned operational

upsets,

Net eamings in 2008 included an $8 million insurance
premium surcharge, partially offset by a $4 million gain on the
sale of assets and a $2 million income tax recovery. Net
eamings in 2007 included a $34 million income tax recovery
and a $7 million gain on the sale of assets.

In 2008, Refining and Supply had a net loss of $205 million, compared with net earings of $446 million in 2007. The net loss
in 2008 reflected lower gasoline cracking margins, the negative impact from declining crude oil feedstock costs while using a
FIFQ inventory valuation methodology and lower refinery yields predominantly at Edmonton due to planned tumaround activity
to tie in the new RCP units and unplanned upsets.

Total sales of refined products decreased by 1% compared with 2007. The decreased volumes reflected lower Marketing
sales, which were impacted by a slowdown in demand and reduced low-margin Refinery and Supply sales, partially offset by
higher lubricants sales volumes.

In 2008, Marketing centributed net eamings of $205 million, compared with $183 millien in 2007. Improved margins were
partially offset by increased operating expenses for distribution and costs related to higher fue! prices and lower volume.

Total Downstrearn operating, marketing, and G&A unit costs of 9.2 centsflitre in 2008 were up compared with 2007. The
increase mainly reflected higher maintenance and repair activily, planned tumarounds and higher salaries and wage costs.

2008 Operating Review and Strategic Initiatives

Petro-Canada is well positioned with the supply capability to optimize profitability within a range of future business
environment scenarios.

Refining and Supply

In 2008, the business processed an average of 36,000 m’d Refinery Reliability Index  (index)
of crude oil, down fram 40,100 m*d in 2007. The overall ) 100 -
utilization rate at Petro-Canada's two refineries averaged

89% in 2008, down from 99% in 2007. The decrease was 80 1
largely due to planned tumaround activity associated with the W Refinery Reliability lndex

Edmonton RCP and subsequent ramp up activity, and in part &0 1
to unplanned ouiages at the Edmonton refinery in the

third quarter. 401
Overall plant reliability is a critical component of success in 21
the refining business. In 2008, the overall refinery reliability o

index was 84. This is down from 2007 due to unplanned
outages at the Edmonton refinery in the third quarter.
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At the Edmonton refinery, construction was completed on the RCP to upgrade and refine oil sands-based feedstock. This
project came on-stream in the fourth quarter of 2008. At its Montreal refinery, the Company furthered work to evaluate the
feasibility of adding a 25,000 b/d coker to the refinery. An investment decision on a new coker at the Montrea! refinery is on
hold, pending suitable project costs and return to a more stable financial market.

Marketing

Total Downstream sales decreased to an average Throughput per {millions of kires)
52,400 m’d in 2008, compared with 53,300 m¥d in 2007. Retail Site! 87
Decreased volumes reflect lower Marketing sales impacted by

a slowdown in demand and reduced low-margin refinery and 6 4

supply sales, partially offset by higher lubricants & Throughpu! per relai

site (milians of litras)
sales volumes.

In the retail business, Pefro-Canada led the industry in key

urban market metrics, focusing on selective representation 24

and site development and generating high site throughputs.

Within the Company's network, annual sales averaged OJ

6.1 million litres per site. In 2008, the Company also 06 07 o8
continued to expand its independent retail network, ! Exchudes Petro-Canada branded sies

operated by independent dealers.
Petro-Canada continued to expand its non-petroleum revenue base. This included advancing previously launched product
offerings and implementing new products, such as the Fuel Savings Reward Card and car wash Seasons’ Passes. The
business continued to expand the Neighbours fresh food offering and the industry-leading GLIDE Autowash offering. Despite a
challenging business envionment in 2008, year-over-year convenience store sales grew by 1% while same-store sales
declined by 1%, compared with 2007.

In 2008, the wholesale PETRO-PASS network, which includes 233 truck stop facilities, continued to be the leading national
marketer of fuel in the commercial road transport segment in Canada. This distribution network was upgraded during the year.

Lubricants
Overall sales of lubricants totalled 850 million litres in 2008, Lubricants High Value {mifions of lirus)
an increase of 9% compared with sales volumes of Products Sales 700 1
778 million litres in 2007. The increase in sales volumes was 500
primarity due to higher process fluid, white cil, base oil and 500
commercial and industrial product sales, partially offset by | milion fitres of high

X value product sales 400 -
lower wax and automotive product sales,

300 1

Sales into high value product segments grew to 635 million
litres, a 13% increase compared with 2007. High value 200 1
product segments now represent 75% of total sales. Over the 100 1
past five years, sales of high value products have grown by o 4
approximately 26%. 06 07 08

Lubricants is positioned for profitable future growth as tougher product performance and environmental standards increase
global demand for higher quality base cils and finished products like those produced at the Mississauga, Ontario lubricants
plant. In 2008, Lubricants advanced product development and commercialization of its new eco-fiendly lawn care product
lines, receiving U.S. National Environmental Protection Agency approval for sales into the U.S. market. Product faunch plans
are cumentlty underway. Also in 2008, Lubricants obtained a business licence to begin direct sales into the China market.

Downstream capital expenditure of $1,834 million in 2008 included $1,651 million in Refining and Supply, predominantly
associated with the Edmonton RCP of $1,198 million, $156 million in Sales and Marketing and $27 million in Lubricants.
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Qutlook

Growth plans Capital spending plans in 2009’

+ increase service station network effectiveness, with a - capital program of approximately $560 million is planned
focus on increasing non-petroleum revenue for the Downstream

+ build wholesale volumes primarily through the - approximately $325 million focused on new growth
commercial road transport and bulk fuels sales channels projects, such as the possible Montreal coker

- increase sales of high quality, higher value lubricants - approximately $105 million to enhance existing
through expansion into new markets and introduction of operations, including reliability and safety
new products improvements at Downstream facilities and site

enhancement within the retail and wholesale networks

- approximately $60 million to improve profitability in the
base business, including continued development of
the retail and wholesale network and a number of
refinery improvement programs

- approximately $70 million for regulatory compliance
projects and safety upgrade programs

1 Petro-Canada will monitor energy and financial markets through 2009 and take advantage of the flexibility in its capital program to pace.

projects and adjust capital expenditures, as necessary.

Downstream investment is focused on growth and improving base business profitability. The Edmonton RCP project is
expected to add eamings and cash flow with the first full year in 2009.

Based on the current mid-cycle business environment, the Downstream business delivered a midcycle ROCE of just under
10% in 2008. Over time, it is anticipated that improvement in the base business and growth projects, including the Edmonton
RCP, will help drive the mid-cycle ROCE to 12%.
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Link to Petro-Canada's Corporate and Strategic Priorities

The Downstream business is aligned with Petro-Canada's strategic priorities as outlined by its progress in 2008 and goals

for 2009.
PRIGRITY 2008 GOALS 2008 RESULTS 2009 GOALS
Delivering Profitable - advance Montreal coker, with FID « completed FEED for proposed - review costs for Montreal coker
Growth with'a Focus on expected in the second guarter of 25,000 b/d Montreal coker; FID for project and position it for sanction
Operated, Long-Life 2008 project was delayed due to market when commaodity and financial
Assels - complete Edmonton RCP for startup conditions markets improve
in the fourth quarter of 2008 - completed construction of the - reglize value of the Edmonton RCP
+ continue to invest in smaller scale Edmonton RCP and starfed up in the imvestment
refinery yield and reliabifity fourth quarter + prudently manage refinery capital
improvement projects + invested $41 million in smaller scale expenditure spending consistent with
« selectively invest in retail and refinery yield and reliability economic conditions
wholesale assets improvement projects - selectively invest in retail and
+ made selective investments in retail wholesale assels
and wholesale assets
Driving for First Quartile |- continue to focus on safety and - achieved a combined reliability index |+ continue to focus on personal and
Operation of Qur Assets refinery reliability, with increased of 84 at the Company's two refineries process safety, refinery reliability and
focus on process safety - began processing lower cost oil environmental responsibility
- reduce feedstock costs sands-based feedstock at completed |- reduce feedstock costs
- increase retail non-petroleum revenue |  Edmonton RCP + increase retail non-petroleum
- grow high value lubricants sales * grew convenience store sales by 1%, | revenue
volumes while same-store sales declited by | grgw high value lubricants sales
1% compared with 2007 volumes
- increased high value lubnicants sales
volumes by 13%
Continuing to Work at + maintain focus on TRIF and regulatory | - TRIF decreased to 0.60, compared - execute drinking water management
Being a Responsible compliance exceedances with (.64 in 2007 ptans for high risk wholesale and
Company retail facilities and develop criteria to

+ assess highest risk retail sites for

safety and security enhancements

+ assess water use at retail and

whelesale facilities and review cument
management activities in high risk
areas

- recorded 13 environmental regulatory

exceedances, compared with 12 in
2007

+ completed safety and security

assessments at retail sites and
implemented upgrades based on
pricrity profile

+ assessed water quality risks and

identified highest risk retail and
wholesale facilities and developed
water quality management plans
based on corporate water principles

audit success

- employ Life-Cycle Value Assessment

{LCVA} to he'p inform decisions
regarding waste management and
minirization at refineries

« maintain focus on energy efficiency

and GHG mitigation opportunities and
establish a baseline for new
Edmonton refinery configuration

« maintain Jocus on TRIF and integrate

new measures related to process
safety activities
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Shared Services and Eliminations

Shared Services and Eliminations includes investment income, interest expense, foreign curency translation and general
corporate revenue and expenses.

Shared Services and Eliminations Financial Resulfs

(millions of Canadian doilars) 2008 2007 2006
Net loss $  (596) $ {6} $ (263}
Cash flow from (used in) continuing operating activilies $ 151 $ (603} §  (346)
2008 Compared with 2007

Shared Services and Eliminations recorded a net loss of $596 million in 2008, compared with a loss of $6 million in 2007.

The 2008 net loss included a $606 million foreign currency translation gain on long-term debt, a $126 million recovery related
to the mark-to-market valuation of stock-based compensation and an $18 million income tax recovery. The 2007 net loss
included a $208 million foreign currency translation gain on long-term debt, a $54 million charge related to the mark-to-market
valuation of stock-based compensation and a $5 million income tax recovery.

Fourth Quarter 2008

For a discussion and analysis of the Company's fourth quarter 2008 performance and results, see Petro-Canada’s MD&A for
that period, which is incorporated herein, by reference.
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Financial Reporting
Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to adopt accounting policies that involve the use
of significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions are developed based on the best available
information and are believed by management to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. New events or additional
information may result in the revision of these estimates over time. The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee of the Board of
Directors regularly reviews the Company’s critical accounting policies and any significant ¢hanges thereto. A summary of the
significant accounting policies used by Petro-Canada ¢an be found in Note 1 to the 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements.
The following discussion outlines what management believes to be the most critical accounting policies involving the use of
significant estimates or assumptions.

Property, Plant and Equipment/Depreciation, Deplstion and Amortization

Investments in exploration and development activities, including in situ oil sands activiies, are accounted for under the
successful efforts method. Under this method, the acquisition costs of unproved acreage; the costs of exploratory wells
pending determination of proved reserves; and the costs of wells, which are assigned proved reserves and development costs,
including costs of all wells, are capitalized. The cost of unsuccessful wells and all other exploration costs, including geological
and geophysical costs, are charged to eamings as incurred. Acquisition, exploration and development of oil sands mining
activities are capitalized when costs are recoverable and directly result in an identifiable future benefit. Capitalized costs of oil
and gas producing properties, including /n sitv oil sands properties and oil sands mining properties, are depreciated and
depleted using the unit of production method based upon estimated reserves (see Estimated Qil and Gas Reserves discussion
on page 59). Reserves estimates can have a significant impact on net eamings, because they are a key component in the
calculation of depreciation and depletion related to the capitalized costs of property, plant and equipment. A revision in
reserves estimates could result in a higher or lower depreciation and depletion charge to net earnings. A downward revisien in
reserves could result in a writedown of oil and gas producing properties as part of the impairment assessment (see Asset
Impairment discussion below). .

Asset Retirement Obligafions

The Company currentty records the obligation for estimated asset retirement costs at fair value when incurred. Factors that can
affect the fair values of the obligations include the expected costs to be incurred, the useful lives of the assets and discount
rates applied. Cost estimates are influenced by factors such as the number and type of assets subject to asset retirement
obligations, the extent of work required and changes in environmental legislation. A revision to the estimated costs to be
incurred, useful lives of the assets or discount rates applied could result in an increase or decrease in the total ebligation,
which would change the amount of amortization and accretion expense recognized in net eamings over time.

Asset Impairment

Producing properties and significant unproved properties are assessed annually, or as economic events dictate, for potential
impairment. Impairment is assessed by comparing the estimated net undiscounted future cash flows with the carrying value of
the asset. The cash flows used in the impairment assessment require management {0 make assumptions and estimates about
recoverable reserves (see Estimated Qil and Gas Reserves discussion on page 59), future commodity prices and operating
costs. Changes in any of the assumptions, such as a downward revision in reserves, a decrease in future commodity prices or
an increase in operating costs, could result in an impairment of an asset's carying value.

Purchase Price Allocation

Business acquisitions are accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. Under this method, the purchase price is
allocated to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on the fair value at the time of the acquisition, The excess
purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is goodwill. The determination of fair value often
requires management to make assumptions and estimates about future events. The assumptions and estimates with respect to
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Management, Audit, Finance and Risk Committee, and Auditor Reports

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting

The preparation and presentation of the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements and the overall quality of the
Company's financial reporting are the responsibility of management. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and necessarily include estimates, which are
based on management's best judgments. Information contained elsewhere in the Annual Report is consistent, where
applicable, with that contained in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls over financial reporting to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that reliable financial information is produced for preparation of
financial statements. Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the system of interna! control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that the Company's system of
internal controt over financial reporting was effective as at December 31, 2008.

Due to its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Deloitie & Touche LLP, the Company's Independent Registered Chartered Accountants, expressed an unqualified opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008. Deloitte & Touche LLP
also audited the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2008.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing management's performance of its responsibilities for financial reporting

and intermal control. The Board of Directors exercises this responsibility with the assistance of the Audit, Finance and Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors.

7 I N

Ron A. Brenneman E. F. H. Roberts
President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer
February 23, 2009 February 23, 2009

.Au-‘_ 2008 Annual Report PETRO-CANADA 61




Audit, Finance and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee (the Committee), which is composed of not fewer than three {(currently five)
independent directors, assists the Board of Directors in the discharge of its responsibility for overseeing management’s
performance of the financial reporting and internal control responsibilities. The Committee reviews the annual and quarterdy
Consolidated Financial Statements, accounting policies and the overall quality of the Company's financial reporting, and the
financial information contained in prospectuses and in reports filed with regulatory authorities, as required. The Committee also
reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding financial matters and oversees the process that
management has in place to identify business risks. The Committee members are all independent pursuant to National
Instrument 52-110 (NI 52-110), NYSE Corporate Governance Standards and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (SOX), and are
financially literate, with one member who has been recognized as a "financiai expert” in accordance with SOX requirements.

With respect to the external auditors, the Committee reviews and approves the terms of engagement, the scope and plan for
the external audit, and reviews the results of the audit and the Reports of the Independent Registered Chartered Accountants.
The extemal auditors report to the Committee, The Committee discusses the external auditors’ independence from
management and the Company with the extemal auditors and receives written confirmation of their independence. The
Committee also recommends to the Board of Directors the external auditors to be appointed by the shareholders and approves
in advance fees for the external auditors’ services.

With respect to the contract auditor's engagement to provide intemnal audit services, the Committee reviews the engagement
contract, reviews and approves the scope and plan for the internal audit, receives periodic reports and reviews significant
findings and recommendations. The contract auditor reports to the Committee.

Senior management, the external auditors and the contract auditor attend all Audit, Finance and Risk Committee meetings and
each is provided with the opportunity to meet privately with the Committee.

Paul D. Melnuk
Chairman of the Audit, Finance and Risk Commitiee
February 23, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Petro-Canada:

We have audited the internzl contrel over financial reporting of Petro-Canada and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2008, based con criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control gver financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal contrel over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company's
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's
board of dire¢tors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasenable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of confrols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the intemal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may becoeme inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in ail material respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Consolidated Financial Statemments as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2008 of the Company and our report dated February 23, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements and included a separate report titted Comments by Independent Registered Chartered Accountants on
Canada-United States of America Reporting Difference referring to changes in accounting principles.

Qjatt # Tonch, 40P

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada
February 23, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Petro-Canada:

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet of Petro-Canada and subsidiaries (the "Company”) as at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related Consclidated Statements of Eamings, Comprehensive Income, Retained
Earmings and Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. These financial staterents are
the responsibility of the Company's managernent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these Consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Petro-Canada and subsidiaries as at Decemnber 31, 2008 and 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the criteria established in Intemal
Contrel — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated February 23, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

gtk 4 Torch, AL

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada
February 23, 2009

Comments by Independent Registered Chartered Accountants on Canada-United States of America Reporting Difference

The standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) require the addition of an explanatory
paragraph when there are changes in accounting principles that have a material effect on the comparability of the Company's
financial statements, such as the changes descnibed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although we
conducted our audits in accordance with both Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), our report to the board of directors and shareholders on the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Petro-Canada, dated February 23, 2009, is expressed in accordance with Canadian
reporting standards which do not require a reference to such changes in accounting principles in the auditors' report when the
change is properly accounted for and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

I R WAL

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada
February 23, 2009
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{stated in millions of Canadian doflars, excepl per share amounis)

For the years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Revenue
Operating ' $ 27585 § 24710 § 18911
Investment and other income (expense) (Nofes 6 and 8) 200 {460) (242)
27,785 21,250 18,669
Expenses
Crude oil and product purchases 14,507 10,291 9,649
Operating, marketing and general (Note 7) 3877 3,552 3,180
Exploration (Note 17) 587 490 339
Depreciation, depletion and amortization (Notes 7, 9 and 17} 2155 2,091 1,365
Unrealized {gain) loss on translation of foreign currency
denominated long-term debt 664 (246) (1
Interest 242 165 165
. 22,032 16,343 14,697
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 5,753 4,907 3,972

Provision for Income Taxes (Nofe 10)

Current 2,629 1,797 2,073
Future {Note 13) {10) 37 311
2,619 2,174 2,384
Net Earnings from Continuing Operations 31314 2,733 1,588
Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations (Note 5) - - 152
Net Earnings $ 3134 § 2733 % 1,740
Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations (Note 11)
Basic $ 647 § 559 % 315
Diluted $ 643 § 553 $ 311
Earnings per Share (Note 11)
Basic 5 647 § 559 % 3.45
Diluted $ 643 § 553 % 341

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

{stated in miflions of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2008
Net earnings $ 314 § 2733 % 1,740
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 214 (260) 363
Comprehensive income § 3348 § 2473 § 2,103

See accompanying Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

‘Ahl_ Consolidatsd Fingncial Statements PETRO-CANADA 65




66 PETRO-CANADA Cox

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

{stated in millions of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Operating Activities
Net earnings $ 3,134 2733 % 1,740
Less: Net eamings from discontinued operations’ - - 152
Net earnings from continuing operations 3134 2,733 1,588
Items not affecting cash flow from continuing operating activities:

Depreciation, depletion and amortization (Notes 7, 9 and 17) 2,155 2,001 1,365

Future income taxes {Nofe 13} (10} 377 3t

Accretion of asset retirement obligations (Nofe 22) 79 70 54

Unrealized (gain) loss on translation of foreign currency

denominated long-term debt 664 {245) (1)

Gain on sale of assets (Notes 6 and 8) (4) (81) {30)

Unrealized losses related to Buzzard derivative contracts (Nole 27) - - 259

Other 91 9 18
Exploration expenses (Notes 13 and 17) 369 290 123
Setflement of Buzzard derivative contracts (Note 27) - (1,481) -
{Increase} decrease in non-cash working capital refated to continuing

operating activities (Nofe 12) 44 (423) {79)
Cash flow from continuing operating activities 6,522 3,338 3,608
Cash flow from discontinued operating activities (Nefe 5) - - 15
Cash flow from operating aclivities 6,522 3,339 3,623
Investing Activities
Expenditures on property, plant and equipment and

exploration (Notes 13 and 17) (6,344) {3.988) (3,435)
Proceeds from sale of assels (Nofes 5 and §) 250 183 688
Inerease in other assets (29) (121) (50}
Decrease in nen-cash working capital related to investing

activities {Note 12) 739 279 59
Cash flow used in investing activities {5,384) (3.647) {2,738}
Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term notes payable (Nofe 20) {109) 109 -
Proceeds from issue of long-term debt (Note 20) 1,482 935 -
Repayment of long-term debt (Note 20) {998) {7 N
Proceeds from issue of common shares (Note 23) 21 7 44
Purchase of common shares (Note 23) - (839) {1,011}
Dividends on common shares (Mofe 26) (320) {255} {201}
Cash flow from {used in} financing activities 76 40 (1,175)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,214 (268) § (290)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year $ 3 499 & 789
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year (Note 15) $ 1,445 21§ 499

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

{stated in millions of Canadian dolfars)

As at December 31, 2008 2007
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) $ 1445 % 231
Accounts receivable {Note 14) 2,844 1,973
Income taxes receivable - 280
Inventories (Notes 3 and 16) 1,289 668
Future income taxes (Nofes 10 and 13} 25 26
5,603 3178
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net (Nofes 8, 13 and 17) 23,485 19,497
Goodwill (Note 18} 852 7
Other Assets (Note 19} 437 446

$ 30377 % 23852

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3186 § 3512
Income taxes payable 1,018 -
Short-term notes payable {Note 20) - 109
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 20) 3 2

4,207 3,623
Long-Term Debt (Note 20) : 4,746 3.339
Other Liabilities (Notes 13 and 21) 1,240 M7
Asset Retirement Obligations (Nofe 21) : 1,527 1,234
Future Income Taxes {Nofes 3, 10 and 13) 3,182 3,069

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 28)
Shareholders' Equity

Common shares (Note 23) 1,388 1,365
Contributed surplus (Note 23) 22 24
Retained earnings 14,062 10,692

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 3 {211)
15,475 1,870

$ 30,377 & 23,852

Consolidated Statement of Retained Eamnings

{stated in millions of Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31, 2008 2007 2006
Retained Eamings at Beginning of Year $ 10,692 § 8557 § 7,018
Cumulative effect of adopting new accounting standards {Note 3) 556 8 -
Net earnings 3,134 2,733 1,740
Dividends on common shares (Note 26) (320 {255) {201}
Excess cost for normal course issuer bid (Noie 23} - (351} -
Retained Earnings at End of Year $ 14062 & 10692 § 8,557

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ron A. Brenneman Brian F. MacNeill
Director Director
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(stated in millions of Canadian doliars, unless otherwise stafed)

Note1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Presentation

The Consclidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Petro-Canada and all subsidiary companies (the
“Company™) and are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP). Differences
between Canadian and United States GAAP are explained in Note 30.

Substantially ali of the Company's exploration and development activities are conducted jointly with others. Only the
Company's proportionate interests in such activities are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and the disclosure of contingencies. Such estimates
primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, actual results
may differ from estimated amounts as future confirming events occur. Significant estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements incfude, but are not limited to, asset retirement obligations, income taxes, employee future benefits,
the estimates of oil and natural gas reserves and related depreciation, depletion and amortization, and the valuation
of goodwill.

b) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of crude oil, natural gas, natural gas liquids, purchased products and refined petroleum products is
recorded when title passes to the customer. Revenue represents the Company's share and is recorded net of royalty
payments to governments and other mineral interest owners, Inter-segment sales are accounted for at market values and
included, for segmented reporting, in revenues of the segment making the transfer and expenses of the segment
receiving the transfer; these amounts are eliminated on consolidation.

Intemational operations conducted pursuant to Exploration and Production Sharing Agreements (EFPSAs) are reflected in
the Consolidated Financial Statements based on the Company's working interest in such operations. Under the EPSAs,
the Company and other non-govemmental partners, if any, pay all exploration costs and a pro-rata share of costs to
develop and operate the concessions. Each EPSA establishes specific terms for the Company to recover these costs
(Cost Recovery Gil) and to share in the production profits (Profit Oil). Cost Recovery Qil is determined in accordance with
a formula that is generally limited to a specified percentage of production during each fiscal year. Profit Qil is that portion
of production remaining after deducting Cost Recovery Qil and is shared between the joint venture partners and the
government of each country. Cost Recovery Qil, Profit Oil and amounts in respect of all income taxes payable by the
Company under the laws of the respective country are reported as sales revenue. All other government stakes, other than
income taxes, are considered to be royalty interests.

¢) Transporation Costs

Transportation costs incurred to transport crude cil, natural gas and refined petroleum products to customers, which are
included in operating, marketing and general expenses, are recognized when the product is delivered and the service
is provided.

d) Foreign Currency Translation

Monetary assels and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet
date. With the exception of items pertaining to sef-sustaining operations, all property, plant and equipment and related
depreciation, depletion and amortization are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired. All
other assets, liabilities, revenue and expense items are translated into Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at
the respective transaction dates. The resulting exchange gains or losses are included in earnings.
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Note1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continuved

d)

e)

g)

h)

i

e

Foreign Currency Translation continued

The Company's International business segment and the U.S. Rockies upstream operations included in the North
American Natural Gas business segment are operated on a self-sustaining basis. Assets and liabilities of these
operations, including associated long-term debt, are translated into Canadian dollars at period end exchange rates, while
revenues and expenses are converted using average rates for the period. Gains and losses from the translation into
Canadian doliars are presented as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Income Taxes

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income taxes are
recognized, using substantively enacted income tax rates, based on the temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilittes reported in the financial statements and their respective tax bases. The effect of a
change in income tax rates on future income tax assets and Hhabilittes is recognized in income in the period the
change occurs.

Eamings Per Share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net earnings available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted eamings per share reflect the potential dilution that
wotlld occur if stock options, excluding stock options with a cash payment alternative (CPA), were exercised. The treasury
stock method is used in calculating diluted earnings per share, which assumes that any proceeds received from the
exercise of in-the-money stock options would be used to purchase common shares at the average market price for the
period. A liability and expense is recorded for stock options with a CPA. Accordingly, the potential issuance of common
shares associated with these stock options is not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash in banks, less outstanding cheques, and short-term investments with a
maturity of 90 days or less when purchased.

Sale of Accounts Receivable

The transfers of accounts receivable are accounted for as sales, other than the retained interest, when the Company has
surrendered contro! over the transferred receivables and received proceeds. Gains or losses are recognized as other
income or expenses and are dependent upon the purchase discount as well as the previous carrying amount of the
receivables transferred, which is allocated between the receivables sold and the retained interest, based on their relative
fair values at the date of the transfer. Fair value is determined based on the present value of future expected cash flows,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of crude oil and refined petroleum products is
determined on a "first-in, first-out" {(FIFO) basis (Note 3). Cost of other inventory is determined on an average cost basis.
Costs include direct and indirect expenditures incurred in bringing an item or product to its existing condition and location.

Investments

Investments in companies over which the Company has significant influence are accounted for using the equity method.
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Note1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

k)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Investments in exploration and development activities, including in sifu oil sands activities, are accounted for using the
successful efforts method. Under this method, the acquisition cost of unproved acreage is capitalized. Costs of
exploratory wells are initially capitalized pending determination of proved reserves. Costs of wells, which are assigned
proved reserves, remain capitalized, while costs of unsuccessful wells are charged to eamings. All other exploration
costs, including geclogical and geophysical costs, are charged to eamings as incurred. Development costs, including the
cost of all wells, are capitalized.

'Acquisition, exploration and development of oil sands mining activities are capitalized when costs are recoverable and

directly result in an identifiable future benefit.

The interest cost of debt attributable {o the construction of major new facilities is capitalized during the construction pericd
until the facilities are substantially complete. The amount of interest capitalized for the period is the product of the average
accumulated capitalized costs, the Company's average corporate debt to equity ratio, and the weighted-average interest
rate applicable to all borrowings outstanding during the period. Capitalized interest cannot exceed the actual
interest incurmred.

Preducing properties and significant unproved properties, including oil sands properties (both mining and Jin situ} and other
plant and equipment, are assessed annually, at minimum, or as economic events dictate, for potential impairment.
Impairment is assessed by comparing the estimated net undiscounted future cash flows to the carrying value of the asset,
If required, the amount by which the camying value of the asset exceeds its fair value is recorded as an impairment in
depreciation, depletion and amorization expense.

Maintenance and repair costs, including planned major maintenance, are expensed as incurred, and improvements that
increase capacity or extend the useful lives of assets are capitalized.

Depreciation, Depletion and Armortization

Depreciation and depletion of capitalized costs of oil and gas producing properties, including in situ oil sands properties,
are calculated using the unit of production method. Development and exploration drilling and equipment costs of oil and
gas producing properties, including wells, gathering facilities, and central processing facilities of in situ oil sands activities,
are dépleted over the remaining proved developed reserves. Proved property acquisition costs are depleted over the
remaining proved reserves.

Depreciation and depletion of capitalized costs of oil sands mining properties are calculated using the unit of production
method. Acquisition costs are depleted over proved and probable reserves. All other oil sands mining assets, including
extraction and upgrading facilities, are depleted over proved reserves.

Depreciation of other plant and equipment is provided on either the unit of production methed or the straight line method,
as appropriate. Straight line depreciation is based on the estimated service lives of the related assets, which range from
three to 25 years.

Costs associated with significant development projects are not depleted until commencement of commercial production.

Depreciation, depletion and ameortization rates for all capitalized costs associated with all of the Company's activities are
reviewed, at least annually, or when events or conditions occur that impact capitalized costs, reserves or estimated
service lives.
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Note1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

m) Asset Retirement Obligations

The fair values of estimated asset retirement obligations are recorded as liabilities when incurred and the associated cost
is capitalized as part of the cost of the related asset. Over time, the liabilities are accreted for the change in their present
value and the initial capitalized costs are depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets. The associated accretion
is recorded in operating, marketing and general expense and the depreciation is included in depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense. Changes in the estimated obligation resulting from revisions to the estimated timing or amount of
undiscounted cash flows are recognized as a change in the asset retirement obligation and related asset. Actual
expenditures incurred are charged against the accumulated obligation.

n)  Goodwil

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method. Under this method, identifiable assets and liabilities are
recorded at fair value as of the date of acquisition. Goodwill, which is not amortized, is the excess of the purchase price
over such fair value and is assigned to the appropriate reporting units.

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed for impairment annually at year end, or more frequently as economic events
dictate, by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its canrying value, a goodwill impairment is recognized as the excess of the carrying value of the
goodwill over the fair value of the goodwill.

0) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains stock option, stock appreciation rights (SARs), performance share units (PSUs) and deferred
share units {DSUs) plans as described in Note 24.

The Company accounts for stock options granted prier to 2003 based on the intrinsic value at the grant date, which does
not result in a charge 1o eamings because the exercise price was equal to the market price at the grant date.

Stock options granted in 2003 are accounted for using the fair value method. Fair values are determined, at the grant
date, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The compensaticn expense associated with these options is charged
to earnings over the vesting period with a corresponding Increase in contributed surplus. When stock options are
exercised, consideration paid and the associated contributed surplus are credited to commen shares.

Stock options granted subsequent to 2003, all of which provide the holder the right to exercise the stock option or
surrender the option for a cash payment, are accounted for based on the intrinsic value at each period end. A liability and
expense are recorded over the vesting period in the amount by which the then cumment market price exceeds the option
exercise price. When stock options are surrendered for cash, the cash settlement paid reduces the outstanding liability.
When stock options are exercised for common shares, consideration paid by the stock option holder and the previously
recognized liability associated with the stock options are recorded as common shares.

SARs, which entitle the holder to receive a cash payment equal to the difference between the stated exercise price and
the market price of the Company's shares on the date of surrender, are accounted for based on the intrinsic value at each
period. A liability and expense are recorded over the vesting period in the amount by which the then current market price
exceeds the exercise price of the SARSs. '

The compensation cost for a stock-based award that is aftributable to an employee who is eligible to retire at the grant
date is recognized on the grant date if the employee can retire from the Company at any point and the ability to exercise
the award does not depend on continued service. The compensation expense associated with stock-based awards
granted to employees who will become eligible to retire during the vesting period is recognized over the period from the
grant date to the date the employee becomes eligible to retire.
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Note1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continuved

o) Stock-Based Compensation continued

PSUs are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis over the term of the PSUs whereby a liability and expense are
recorded based on the number of PSUs outstanding, the current market price of the Company's shares and the
Company's current total shareholder retumn relative to a peer group of North American industry competitors.

DSUs are accounted for on a mark-to-market basis whereby a liability and expense are recorded each period based on
the number of DSUs outstanding and the current market price of the Company's shares.

p) Employee Future Benefits

The Company's employee future benefit programs consist of both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans,
as well as other post-retirement benefits as described in Note 25.

The costs of pensions and other post-retirement benefits are actuarially determined using the projected benefit method,
pro-raied based on service and using management's best estimate of expected plan investment performance, discount
rates, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected health and dental care costs. For the purpose of
calculating the expected return on plan assets, those assets are measured at fair value. The accrued benefit obligation is
discounted using a market rate of interest at the end of the year on high quality corporate debt instruments. The excess of
the cumulative unamonrtized net actuarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the accrued benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets at the beginning of the year is amortized over the average remaining service life of active employees.

Company contributions to the defined contribution plan are expensed as incurred.

q) Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the balance sheet. The Company has classified each
financial instrument into one of the following categories: held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets, and other financial liabilities. Subsequent measurement of financial
instruments is based on their classification.

Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in those fair values
recognized in net earnings.

Loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts receivable as loans and
receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, short-term notes payable and long-term debt as other
financiat liabilities.

The Company combines transaction costs and premiums or discounts directly attributable to the issuance of long-term
debt with the fair value of the debt and amortizes these amounts to earnings using the effective interest method.

The Company classifies financial instruments that are derivative contracts as held-for-trading financial assets and
liabilities unless designated as effective hedges.

r)  Hedging and Derivatives

The Company may use derivative contracts to manage its exposure to market risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commedity prices. These derivative contracts are not used for speculative purposes.
The Company maintains a system of controls that includes a policy covering the authorization, reporting and monitoring of
derivative aclivity.
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Note 1  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continved

n  Hedging and Derivatives continued

Derivative contracts that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes are recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at fair value with any resulting gain or loss recognized in investment and other income (expense) on the
Consolidated Statement of Eamings.

The Company formally documents all derivative contracts designated as hedges, the risk management objective and the
strategy for undertaking the hedge.

For designated cash flow hedges, the portion of the gain (loss) on the hedging item that is deemed to be effective is
recognized in other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax, on the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income,
and is then reclassified tc the Consolidated Statement of Earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged
itern affects net earnings. The portion of the gain {loss) that is deemed to be ineffective is recognized immediately in net
earnings in the period in which it occurs.

For designated fair value hedges, both the hedging item and the underlying hedged item are measured at fair value.
Changes in the fair value of both items are recognized immediately in net eamings in the period in which they occur.

The Company assesses, both at inception and over the term of the hedging relationship, whether the derivative contracts
used in the hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of hedged items.
If a derivative contract ceases to be effective or is terminated, hedge accounting is discontinued. Any gains (losses}
relating to terminated cash flow hedges included in other comprehensive income {loss) are typically reclassified to net
earnings in the period in which the cash flow hedge is terminated.

Note2 International Financial Reporting Standards

During 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Beard (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be
required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in place of Canadian GAAP for interim and annual
reporting purposes. The required changeover date is for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, At this time, the
impact on the Company’s Consclidated Finangcial Statements is not reasonably determinable,

Note3 Changes in Accounting Policies

Cn January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants {CICA) Handbook Section 1535,
Capital Disclosures; Section 3031, inventories; Section 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures; and Section 3863, Financial
Instruments — FPresentation.

As a result of adopting CICA Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, the Company now discloses details about its capital
management straiegy (Note 26).

As a result of adopting CICA Section 3031, Inventories, the Company now assigns costs to its crude oil and refined petroleumn
products inventories on a FIFO basis. Previously, costs were assigned to these inventories on a “last-in, first-out” (LIFQ) basis.
In accordance with the transitional provisions of this new accounting standard, the Company has elected to adjust 2008
opening retained eamings by the difference in the measurement of 2008 opening inventory and has not restated prior period
amounts. As such, the following balance sheet categories were impacted on January 1, 2008:
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Note3 Changes in Accounting Policies continued

Increase
tnventories $ 812
Future income taxes liability 256
Retained eamings 556

As a result of adopting CICA Section 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures, the Company has expanded its financial risks
and financial instruments disclosures (Note 27).

There is no other material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements for adoption of these new standards.

Noted Segmented Information from Continuing Operations

The Company is an integrated oil and gas company with activities spanning both the upstream and downstream sectors of the
industry. The Company conducts its business through five major operating business segments along with Shared Services.
Upstream activities are conducted through four business segments, which include North American Natural Gas, Qil Sands,
East Coast Canada and Intemational. Downstream operations comprise the fifth business segment.

Upstream operations include the exploration, development, production, transportation and marketing of crude oil, natural gas
and natural gas liquids and ¢il sands, The North American Natural Gas segment includes activity in Western Canada, the U.S.
Rockies, the Mackenzie Delta/Corridor, and Afaska. The Qil Sands segment includes interests in the Syncrude il sands mining
operation, the MacKay River in situ oil sands operation, and the Fort Hills oil sands project. The East Coast Canada segment
comprises activity offshore Newfoundland and iabrador, and includes interests in the Hibernia, Terra Nova, White Rose and
Hebron oilfields. The International segment includes activity in the United Kingdom (U.K.), the Netherlands, Trinidad and
Tobago, Libya and Syria.

The Downstream business segment includes the purchase and sale of crude oil, the refining of crude oil products and the
distribution and marketing of these and other purchased products.

Financial information by business segment is presented in the following table as though each segment was a separate
business entity. Inter-segment transfers of products, which are accounted for at market value, are eliminated on consolidation.
Shared Services includes investment income, interest expense, gains or losses on foreign cumency translation, including
unrealized gains or losses on foreign currency denominated long-term debt, and general corporate revenue and expenses.
Shared Services assets are principally cash and cash equivalents and other general corporate assets.

Eliminations includes sales between segments and unrealized inter-segment profits and losses on inventories. These figures
were previously included in Shared Services.




Note4  Segmented Information from Continuing Operations continued

Upstream
North American Natural Gas Qil Sands
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Revenue?
Sales to customers $ 1931 $ 1,47 $ 1,504 $§ 1,915 $ 611 $ 592
Investment and other income (expense)? (121) 66 3 10 (2) -
Inter-segment sales 421 324 349 1,510 1,065 822
Segmented revenue 2,231 1,737 1,859 3,435 1.674 1,414
Expenses
Crude oil and product purchases? 461 240 256 1,796 524 425
Inter-segment transactions 7 10 5 40 13 31
Operating, marketing and general 545 491 462 913 595 508
Exploration 147 192 150 13 28 21
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 575 584 402 202 149 128
Unrealized (gain}) loss on transtation of foreign
currency denominated long-term debt - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
1,735 1,517 1,275 2,964 1,309 1,113
Earnings {loss)} from continuing
operations before income taxes 496 220 584 471 365 301
Provision for Income taxes
Current 118 183 35 97 (13) (53)
Future 34 {154} (172) 40 62 109
152 29 179 137 49 56

Net earnings (loss) from continuing

operations $ 344 $ 191 $ 405 $ 334 3 316 $ 245
Capital and exploration expenditures from

continuing operations

Property, plant and equipment and

exploration expenditures $ 1,023 $ 866 $ 788 $ 1,063 $ 779 $ 37
Other assets - 7 5 29 69 1
$ 1,023 $ 873 $ 793 $ 1,082 3 848 $ 378

Cash flow from {used in) continuing
operating activities $ 1,085 H 725 $ 651 $ 622 $ 512 3 49%
Total assets from continuing operations $ 4,605 $ 4,119 § 415 $ 4,566 $ 3659 3 2,885

1 There were no customers that represerted 10% or mare of the Company's consolidated revenues for the periods presented.

2 Investment and other income {expense) for the International segment includes $nil (2007 - $535 million; 2006 — $259 million) of losses related
to the Buzzard derivative contracts (Note 27).

3 Downstream crude oif and preduct purchases account for substantially all of the Downstream inventories recognized as an expense for the
periods presented,
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Note4  Segmented Information from Continuing Operations continued

Upstream
International & Offshore
East Coast Canada International
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Revenue! ’
Sales to customers $ 2,605 $ 2708 $ 2,004 § 4892 $ 3697 $ 2,464
Investment and other income {expense)? 20 (18) - 164 (549} (283)
Inter-segment sales 789 477 298 12 - -
Segmented revenue 3414 3,167 2,302 5,068 3,148 2,181
Expenses
Crude oii and product purchases? 770 736 452 - - -
Inter-segment transactions 8 8 9 - - -
Operating, marketing and general 254 228 245 450 526 350
Exploration 1 13 12 426 257 156
Depreciation, depletion and amertization 389 410 237 663 640 RYA]
Unrealized {gain) loss on translation of fareign
currency denominated long-term debt - - - - - -
Interest - - - - - -
1,422 1,395 955 1,549 1,423 829
Eamings {loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes 1,992 1,772 1,347 3,519 1,725 1,352
Provision for income taxes
Current 647 653 434 2,163 848 1,248
Future (23) {110) {21) (328) 503 310
624 543 413 1,835 1,351 1,558

Net earnings {loss) from continuing

operations $ 1,368 § 1,229 $ 934 § 1,684 $ 374 3$ (206}
Capltal and exploration expenditures from

continuing operations
Property, plant and equipment and exploration

expenditures $ 278 $ 159 $ 256 $ 2115 H 762 $ 760
Other assets - 2 - - - -
$ 278 $ 161 3 256 § 215 ] 762 $ 760

Cash flow from (used in) continuing
operating activities $ 1,850 § 1,491 $ 1,129 § 2,380 $ 220 $ B40
Total assets from continuing operations $ 2,149 § 2,345 § 2465 $ 8217 $ 5180 $ 6,031

1 There were no customers that represented 10% or more of the Company's consclidated revenues for the pericds presented.

2 Investment and other income (expense) for the International segment includes $nil (2007 — $535 million; 2006 — $259 million} of losses related
to the Buzzard derivative contracts (Note 27).

3 Downstream crude oil and product purchases account for substantially all of the Downstream inventeries recognized as an expense for the
pericds presented.
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Note 4 Segmented Information from Continuing Operations continued

Downstream Shared Services
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Revenue’
Sales to customers $ 16242 § 13347 § 12,347 $ - $ - $ -
Investment and other income (expense)? K] (12) 19 89 55 16
inter-segment sales 15 18 15 - - -
Segmented revenue 16,295 13,353 12,381 89 55 16
Expenses
Crude oil and product purchases? 11,580 8,787 8,517 - - -
Inter-segment transactions 2,692 1,853 1,439 - - -
QOperating, marketing and general 1,761 1,525 1,495 (56) 187 120
Exploration - - - - - -
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 325 29% 262 1 9 13
Unrealized {gain) loss on transiation of foreign
currency denominated Jong-term debt - - - 664 {246) {1)
Interest - - - 242 165 165
16,358 12464 11,713 851 115 297
Eamnings {loss) from continuing
operations befere income taxes {63) 889 668 (762} (60) (281)
Provision for income taxes
Current (294) 232 141 {102) {106) {48)
Future 231 28 54 L1l 49 31
{63) 260 195 {61) (57) {17)

Net earnings {loss) from continuing

operations $ - 3 629 $ 473 L Rt $ (3) $ (264)
Capital and exploration expenditures from

continuing operations
Property, plant and equipment and

exploration expenditures $ 184 $ 1,396 $ 1,229 $ 33 $ 26 $ 24
Cther assets - 30 22 - 13 22
§ 1,844 § 1426 § 1,251 $ 33 $ 39 $ 45

Gash flow from {used in) continuing
operating activities $ 464 $ 994 $ 835 $ 151 $ (603 & {346)
Total assets from contlnuing operations $ 10,057 $ 7,989 $ 6,649 $ 734 $ 563 $ 464

1 There were no customers that represented 10% or mare of the Company's consolidated revenues for the periods presented.

2 Investment and other income {expense)} for the International segment includes $nil (2007 — $535 million; 2006 — $259 million) of losses related
{o the Buzzard derivative contracts (Note 27).

3 Downstream crude ofl and product purchases account for substantially all of the Downstream inventories recognized as an expense for the
periods presented.
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Note4 Segmented Information from Continuing Operations continued

Eliminations Consolidated
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Revenue'
Sales to customers H - $ - 3 - $ 27,585 $ 21,710 § 18811
Investment and other income (expense)? ' - - - 200 {460) (242
Inter-segment sales {2,147) (1,884) (1,484) - - -
Segmented revenue {2,747) {1,884) {1,484) 27,785 21,250 18,669
Expenses
Crude oil and product purchases? {100) 4 (1) 14,507 10,291 9649
Inter-segment transactions {2,747) (1,884) (1.484) - - -
Operating, marketing and general - - - 3,877 3,952 3,180
Exploration - - - 587 490 339
Depreciation, depletion and amortization - - - 2,155 2,091 1,365
Unrealized {gain) loss on translation of foreign
currency denominated Jong-term debt - - - 664 (246) {1)
Interest - - - ) 242 165 165
{2,847} (1,880) {1,483) 22,032 16,343 14,697
Earnings (loss) from continuing
cperations before income taxes 100 (4) 1 5,753 4,907 3,972
Provision for income taxes
Current - - - 2,629 1,797 2,073
Future {5) (1) - {10) 377 311
(5) m - 2,619 2174 2,384

Net earnings (loss) from continuing

operations $ 105 $ 3 8 1 $ 3134 $ 2733 $ 1,588
Capital and exploration expenditures from

continuing operations
Property, plant and equipment and

exploration expenditures $ - $ - $ - $ 6344 $ 3988 § 344
Other assets - - - 29 121 50
$ = $ - § - $ 6,373 $ 4109 § 3484

Cash flow frem {used in) continuing
operating activities ' $ - $ - § - $ 6,522 $ 3339 $§ 3608
Total assets from continuing operations $ {1y 8§ (3 § 1 $ 30377 $ 23852 $ 22646

-

There were no customers that represented 10% or more of the Company's consolidated revenues for the periods presented,

2 Investrent and other income {expense) for the International segment includes $nil {2007 — $535 million; 2006 — $259 millicn) of losses related
to the Buzzard derivative contracts (Note 27).

3 Downstream crude oil and product purchases account for substantiafly all of the Downstream inventories recognized as an expense for the

perieds presented.
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Note4  Segmented Information from Continuing Operations continued

Geographic Information from Continuing Operations

2008 2007 2006
Total Total Total
Revenues Assets Revenues Assets Revenues Assels
Canada $ 22317 § 19,942 $ 17897 § 17,020 $ 16,295 § 14,736
Foreign! 5,468 10,435 3,353 6,832 2,374 7,910
$ 27,785 § 30,377 $ 21,250 $ 23,852 $ 18,669 § 22,646

1 Foreign total assets include $2,767 million relating to assets in the U.K. (2007 - $3,185 million; 2006 — $3,692 million}.

Note5 Discontinued Operations

In January 2006, the Company completed the sale of its producing assets in Syria for net proceeds of $640 million, resulting in

a gain on sale of $134 million.

The accounting for discontinued operations results in a reduction of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings balances

as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Revenue
Operating $ - - 8 34
Investment and other income (expense)! - - 134

- - 168
Expenses
Operating, marketing and general - - 6
- - 6

Earnings from discontinued operations before income taxes - - 162
Provision for income taxes - - 10
Net earnings from discontinued operations $ - - § 152
1 2006 investment and other income (expense) includes the gain on sale of $134 millicn,
Note 6  Investment and Other Income (Expense)
Investment and other income {expense) consists of the following amounts:

2008 2007 2006
Foreign exchange gains (losses) $ 128 {10y § 41)
Gain on sale of assets (Nofe 8} 4 81 30
Losses related to Buzzard derivative contracts {Note 27) - (535) (259)
Gain (loss) on Downstream derivative contracts 24 {26) 2
Other 44 30 26
Total investment and other income (expense) $ 200 (460) $ (242)
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Note7  Fort Hills Project

Project Status

In November 2008, the Company and its pariners, UTS Energy Corporation (UTS) and Teck Cominco Limited (Teck),
announced that the preliminary results from the Fort Hills project front-end engineering and design (FEED) work suggest that
estimated costs have risen considerably and, therefore, a final invesiment decision (FID) on both the mining and upgrading
portions of the project will be deferred until a cost estimate consistent with the current market environment can be established.
As a result, the Company has recognized an $87 million {564 million after-tax) impairment charge on certain property, plant
and equipmehi and expenses of $129 million (392 million after-tax) to reflect the termination or suspension of some
agreements for the receipt of goods and services.

The impairment charge is included in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense and the goods and services
agreements termination expenses are included in operating, marketing and general expense, both on the Consclidated
Statement of Eamings.

Increase in Working Interest

In November 2007, the Company finatized an agreement to acquire an additional 5% working interest in the Fort Hills project,
bringing the Company's total working interest to 60%. To pay for this incremental investment, the Company is funding
$375 million of expenditures in excess of its working interest. The acquisition cost was discounted using the Company's
estimated cost of debt at the time of acquisition and an estimated payout pattern for the funding. This payout pattern was
revised in December 2008 due to the deferral of the FID. At December 31, 2008, $348 million of the discounted acquisition cost
was outstanding, with $43 million {December 31, 2007 — $18 million) recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
$306 million {December 31, 2007 — $329 million) recorded in other liabilities.

Note8  Sale of Assets

In August 2008, the Company completed the sale of its pre-development assets in Denmark, which are a part of the
Company's International business segment, for net proceeds of $140 million, resulting in a gain on sale of $107 million
($82 million after-tax) (Note 18).

In June 2008, the Company completed the sale of its Minehead assets in Western Canada, which are a part of the Company’s
North American Natural Gas business segment, resulling in a loss on sale of $153 million ($112 million after-tax).

The gains and losses on the sales of these assets are included in investment and other income (expense) on the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings.

Note®  Asset Write-Downs

fn December 2007, the Company recognized a $150 million ($87 million after-tax) impairment expense due to a write-down of
its coal bed methane assets in the U.S. Rockies’ Powder River Basin. The assets were written down to management's best
estimate of fair value based on a discounted future cash flow valuation. These assets form part of the Company’s North
American Natural Gas business segment.

The impairment expense is included in depreciation, depletion and amortization expense on the Consolidated Statement
of Eamings.
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Note 10 Income Taxes

The computation of the provision for income taxes is as follows:

2008 2007 2006

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes $ 5753 & 4907 % 3,972
Add {deduct):

Non-deductible royalties and other payments to provincial gevernments, net - - 61

Resource allowance - - (158)

Non-taxable foreign exchange 448 {128) (1

Other (33) {26) {24)
Earnings from continuing operations as adjusted before income taxes $ 6,168 & 4755 § 3,850
Canadian federal income tax rate 38.0% 38.0% 38.0%
Income tax on earnings from continuing operations as adjusted at Canadian

federal income tax rate $ 234 % 1,807 § 1,463
Provincial income {axes 295 3n 295
Federal — abatement and other credits (452) {446) {262)
Current income tax increase due to Canadian federal and provinciat

reassessments and proposed reassessments 38 - 70
Future income tax decrease due to Canadian rate changes (26) {155} {63}
Future income tax increase (decrease) due to foreign rate changes 3 {36} 242
Future income tax decrease due to ratification of Libya EPSAs {230} - -
Higher foreign income tax rates 691 622 627
Income tax credits and other (44) 10 12
Provision for income taxes $ 2619 § 21474 § 2,384
Effective income tax rate on earnings from continuing operations

before income taxes 45.5% 44.3% 60.0%
The provision for income taxes is comprised of:

2008 2007 2006

Current

Canadian $ 428 § 257 % 801

Foreign 2,20% 1,541 1,272
Future

Canadian 265 443 62

Foreign (Note 13) {275) (67) 249
Total provision for income taxes $ 2619 § 2174 § 2,384

The provisions for current and future income taxes include tax recoveries {expenses), which are largely due to future income
tax recoveries on ratification of the Libya EPSAs and changes to income tax rates. These amounts have been allocated to the

business segments as follows:

2008 2007 2006
North American Natural Gas $ - 3 8 3 6
Qil Sands 2 62 44
Infernational & Offshore
East Coast Canada 2 52 37
International! (Nofe 13} 227 30 (306)
Downstream 2 34 41
Shared Services? {18) 5 (71)
$ 215 3§ 191 % (249)

1 Included in the Intemational’s $227 million income tax recovery for 2008 is a $230 million future income tax recovery recognized on ratification
of the Libya EPSAs. Included in International’s $306 miltian income tax expense for 2006 is a $242 million increase in the future income tax
provision due to an increase in the UK. supplemental corporate income tax rate and the resulting impact of gualifying capital expenditures

being deducted at the increased rate.

2 Inciuded in the Shared Services' $71 million income taxx expense for 2006 is a2 $70 million increase in the provision for current income taxes

due to the Quebec government enacting retroactive tax legisiation,
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Note 10 Income Taxes continued

The following table summarizes the temporary differences that give rise to the net future income tax assets and liabilities:

2008 2007
Future income tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment $ 3346 % 3,626
Partnership income? 473 362
Other assets 71 78
Future income {ax assets
Asset retirement obligations and other liabilities (577} (495)
Inventories - (256)
Other {156) (272)
Net future income tax liability 3,157 3,043
Less: Current future income tax asset {25} (26)
Future income tax liability $ 3182 § 3,069

1 Taxable income for certain Canadian upstream activities is generated by a partnership and the related taxes will be included in current income
taxes in the next year.

Deferred distribution taxes associated with Intemational business operations have not been recorded. Based on current plans,
repatriation of funds in excess of foreign reinvestment will not result in material additional income tax expense.

Complex income tax issues, which involve interpretations of continually changing regulations, are encountered in computing

the provision for income taxes. Management believes that adequate provisions have been made for all such outstanding issues
and that the resolution of these issues would not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Note 11 Earnings per Share

The weighted-average number of commen shares outstanding used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations and earnings per share, assuming that all dilutive outstanding stock options were exercised, was:

{millions) 2008 2007 2006
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding — basic 484.1 489.0 503.9
Effect of dilutive stock options 36 5.0 6.0
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding — difuted 487.7 484.0 509.9

There were no stock options, not including stock options with a CPA {Note 1 (f)), excluded from the diluted eamings per share
from continuing operations and earnings per share calculations. Stock options are excluded when the exercise price exceeds
the average share price in a respective pericd.
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Nete 12 Cash Flow Information

Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Non-cash working capital is comprised of cumrent assets and cumment liabilities, other than cash and cash equivalents and the
current portion of long-term debt.

The (increase) decrease in non-cash working capital is comprised of:

2008 2007 2006
Operating activities from continuing operations
Accounts receivable $ (871) § (373) % 17
Inventories {621) (35) {36)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {326) 77 365
Income taxes payable ' 1,298 (302) {60}
Current portion of long-term liabifities and other 564 211 (368)
$ 44 § 423 & {79)
Investing activities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 762§ 120§ 138
Other liabilities (23 159 {79)
$ 739§ 279§ 59

Cash Payments

Cash payments frorm continuing operations for interest and income taxes were as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Interest $ 214§ 18 8 194
Income taxes $ 1475 % 2074 § 2,149

Note 13  Libya Exploration and Production Sharing Agreements

On June 19, 2008, the Company signed six new EPSAs with the Libya National Qil Corporation (NOC) to convert its existing
concession agreements and old EPSA into new EPSA IV agreements. The new EPSAs were ratified as of the signing, with an
effective date of January 1, 2008. Eamnings on properties covered by the old agreements were adjusted based on the financial
terms of the new EPSAs for the pericd from January 1, 2008 until ratification. The new EPSAs have an expected duration of 30
years and enable the Company to implement jointly with the NOC the redevelopment of major fields and ¢onduct a 100%
operated exploration program in the Libya Sirte Basin.

As part of the ratification, the Company agreed to pay a signature bonus of $1 billion US in several instalments, with the first
instalment of $500 million US paid on July 17, 2008 and the remaining instziments to be paid through 2013.

This cost was discounted to $954 million based on this payout schedule using the Company's estimated cost of debt at the
time of acquisition. At December 31, 2008, $554 million of the discounted signature bonus cost was outstanding, with 830
million recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and $524 million recorded in other liabilities.

Net eamings for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes a $230 million future income tax recovery, which the Company
recognized on ratification of the new EPSAs on June 19, 2008.

ABL Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements PETRO-CANADA 83




Note 14  Securitization Program

On June 24, 2004, the Company entered intc a securitization program, expiring on June 24, 2009, to sell an undivided interest
of eligible accounts receivable up to $500 million to a third party on a revolving and fully serviced basis. The service liability has
been estimated to be insignificant.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company suspended all sales of receivables to the program and remitted all
funds for receivables previously sold. As at December 31, 2008, there were no outstanding receivables sold under the
program. As at December 31, 2007, $480 million of outstanding accounts receivable had been sold under the program for net
proceeds of $479 million.

Note 15 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2008 2007
Cash $ 204 § 47
Short-term investments 1,244 184

$ 145 § 23

Note 16 Inventories

2008 2007
Crude oil and refined petroleum products {Nofe 3) $ 1411 % 484
Materials and supplies 178 184
' $ 1289 § 668
Note 17 Property, Plant and Equipment .
2008 2007 2008 2007
Accumulated Accumulated
Depreciation, Depreciation, Expenditures on
Depletion and Depletion and Property, Plant and
Cost  Amortization Net Cost Amortization Net Equipment!
North American NaturalGas  § 8,210 § 4141 § 4069 § 7,310 % 35% 0§ 31408 925 § 736
Oil Sands 537 1,124 4,193 4,359 1,01 3,348 1,058 759
International & Offshore
East Coast Canada 4,308 2,389 1,919 4,059 2,003 2,056 276 155
International 7,568 2,045 5,523 5,689 1,605 4,084 1,849 626
Downstream 10,971 3,270 7,701 9,174 3,000 6,174 1,834 1,396
Shared Services 556 476 80 542 481 61 33 26

$ 36930 § 13,445 § 23485 § 31133 § 11636 § 19487 § 59875 § 3,698

1 Exploration expenses, excluding general and administrative and geological and geophysical expenses, of $369 milion (2007 - $230 miltion;
2006 - $123 million) are reperted in expenditures on property, plant and equipment and exploration under investing activilies on the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.,

Property. plant and equipment net cost includes asset retirement costs of $787 million {December 31, 2007 — $591 million).

Interest capitalized during 2008 amounted to $37 million (2007 — $30 million; 2006 — $51 million).
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Note 17 Property, Plant and Equipment continued

Costs of work in progress and assets under construction, which are not currently being depreciated or depleted, were as
follows:

2008 2007
North American Natural Gas $ 5 & 4l
Qil Sands ’ 1,538 1,039
International & Offshore
East Coast Canada ‘ 225 120
International 829 323
Downstream 751 2 151

$ 3394 § 3,654

As at December 31, 2008, capital leases at a net cost of $52 million {December 31, 2007 - $56 million} and $18 mitlion
{December 31, 2007 — $21 million) are included in the assets of East Coast Canada and Qil Sands, respectively (Note 20).

Note 18  Goodwill

The following table summarizes the changes in goodwill:

2008 2007
North North
American American
Natural Gas International Total Natural Gas International Total
Goodwill at beginning of year $ 144§ 581 § ™ $ 169 § 632 § 801
Foreign exchange 34 102 136 {25) {45} (70)
Other’ - {15) (15) - - -
Goodwill at end of year $ 178 § 674 §  8%2 $ 144§ 587 § 731

1 Qther represents the carrying amount of gocdwill related to the pre-development assets in Denmark sold during 2008 {Note 8).

Note 19 Other Assets

2008 2007
Investments $ 38 $ 81
Accrued pension asset (Note 25) 142 168
Other long-term assets 207 197

$ 437 § 446
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Note 20 Long-Term Debt

Maturity 2008 2007
Debentures and notes

6.80% unsecured senior notes {$900 million US) 2038 $ 1,000 § -
5.95% unsecured senior aotes {$600 millien US) 2035 79 577
5.35% unsecured senior notes {$300 millien US)1 2033 320 248
7.00% unsecured debentures {$250 million US) 2028 295 237
7.875% unsecured debentures ($275 million US) 2026 332 267
9.25% unsecured debentures ($300 million US) 2021 385 294
6.05% unsecured senior notes ($600 million US) 2018 729 -
5.00% unsecured senior notes ($400 million US) 2014 485 391
4.00% unsecured senior notes ($300 million US)I 2013 351 275
Syndicated credit facilities 2013 - 995
Capita! leases (Note 17)? 2009-2022 62 57
4,749 3,341
Current poriion {3) (3)
$ 4,746 3 3,339

1 In anticipation of issuing these senior notes, the Company entered into interest rate derivatives, which resulted in effective interest rates of
6.073% for the 5.35% notes due in 2033 and 4.838% for the 4.00% notes due in 2013. These derivatives were settled in 2003,

2 These senior noles were issued by PC Finangial Partnership, a wholly-owned finance subsidiary of Petro-Canada. Petro-Canada has fully and
unconditionally guaranteed these senior notes,

3 The Company is party to one transportation and one time-charter agreement that are accounted for as capital leases and have implicit rates of
interest of 14.65% and 11.90%, respectively. The aggregate remaining repayments under the transportation and lime-charter agreements are
$62 millien, incuding the following armounts in the next five years: 2009 — $3 million; 2010 — $3 million; 2011 - 34 million; 2012 - $4 million;
and 2013 — $5 million,

Interest on long-term debt and short-term notes payable, net of capitalized interest, was $234 million in 2008 (2007 —
$151 miltion; 2006 — $152 million). Interest is paid semi-annually. All debentures and senior notes are repayable in full
upen maturity.

Except as discussed in footnote 1 above, the fixed interest rate on all debentures and senior notes approximates the effective
interest rate.

During the year, the Company filed a final shelf prospectus for the offering of up to $4 billion US of debt securities with the
securities commission or equivalent regulatory authority in each of the provinces and territories of Canada and the United
States. The Company completed a public offering of debt securities under this prospectus in the form of $600 million US 6.05%
10-year unsecured senior notes due May 15, 2018 and $900 million US 6.80% 30-year unsecured senior notes due May 15.
2038. The net proceeds of this offering were used to repay the Company's short-term notes payable and indebtedness
outstanding under its syndicated credit facilities. The balance was added to the Company's working capital to fund future
capital expenditures.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had in place revolving, committed syndicated credit facilities totalling $3,570 million
(December 31, 2007 - $2,200 million), which mature in 2013, and revolving bilateral demand credit facilities of $777 million
{December 31, 2007 — $1,500 million). During 2008, the Company had drawings on its syndicated credit facilittes and its
demand credit facilities in the form of Canadian and U.S. dollar Bankers' Acceptances. However, as of December 31, 2008, the
Company had repaid all amounts previously drawn on its syndicated and demand credi! facilities. The weighted-average
interest rate for Bankers' Acceptances outstanding over the course of 2008 was 4.7% (2007 — 5.1%) for the syndicated credit
faciliies and 4.4% (2007 - 5.0%) for the demand credit facilities. At December 31, 2008, a total of $348 million of the credit
facilities was used for letters of credit and overdraft coverage.

Subsequent to December 31, 2008, the Company put in place a bilateral committed credit facility in the amount of $244 miltion.
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Note 21  Other Liabilities

2008 2007

Fort Hills purchase obligation (Note 7) $ 308 § 329
Libya EPSAs signature bonus (Nofe 13) 524 -
Post-retirement benefits (Note 25} 206 193
Other long-term liabilities 204 195
3 1,240 5 717

Note 22 Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recorded for obligations where the Company will be required to retire tangible long-lived assets
such as well sites, offshore production platforms, natural gas processing plants and marketing sites.

The following table summarizes the changes in the asset retirement obligations:

2008 2007
Asset retirement obligations at beginning of year $ 1,283 § 1,237
Obligations incurred 219 74
Changes in estimates 67 5
Obligations settled (67) {56}
Accretion expense 79 70
Foreign exchange N {47}
Asset retirement obligations at end of year 1,574 1,283
Less: Current portion (47) {49}

$ 1,527 & 1,234

In determining the fair value of the asset retirement obligations, the estimated cash flows of new obligations incurred during the
year have been discounted at 7.5% (2007 - 6.5%). The total undiscounted amount of the estimated cash flows required to
settle the obligations is $5,389 million (2007 — $4,136 million). The obligations will be setfled on an ongoing basis over the
useful lives of the operating assets, which extend up to 50 years in the future. The current portion of asset retirement
obligations is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Note 23 Shareholders' Equity

Authorized

The autheorized share capital is comprised of an unlimited number of:
a) Preferred shares issuable in series designated as Senior Preferred Shares
b) Preferred shares issuable in series designated as Junior Preferred Shares

¢} Common shares without par value
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Note 23 Shareholders’ Equity continued
Issued and Qutstanding

Changes in common shares and contributed surplus were as follows:

2008 2007
Contributed Contributed
Shares Amount Surplus Shares Amount Surplus
Balance at beginning of year 483,459,119 § 1,365 $ 24 497 538,385 § 1366 § 469
Issued under employee
stock-option and share
purchase plans 1,138,348 23 {2 1,918,734 43 (1)
Repurchased under normal
course issuer bid - - - 15,998,000} (44) {444)
Balance at end of year 484,597 467 § 1388 § 22 483,458,119 § 13658 § 24

The Company has a normal course issuer bid (NCIB) program for the repurchase of its outstanding common shares. This
program was renewed in June 2008 to repurchase up to 24 million outstanding common shares during the period frem June
22, 2008 to June 21, 2009, subject to certain conditions. During 2008, the Company did not repurchase any common shares.
During 2007, the Company repurchased 15,998,000 common shares at an average price of $52.42 per common share for a
total cost of $839 million, with the excess of the purchase price over the carrying amount of the shares repurchased recorded
as a $444 million reduction of contributed surplus and a $351 million reduction of retained eamings.

Note 24 Stock-Based Compensation
Stock Optidns

The Company maintains a stock option plan whereby options can be granted to officers and certain employees for up to
57 million common shares. Stock options have a termn of 10 years if granted prior to 2004 and seven years if granted
subsequent to 2003. All stock optlions vest over periods of up to four years and are exercisable at the market prices for the
shares on the dates that the options were granted.

In 2004, the Company amended the option plan to provide the holder of stock options granted subsequent to 2003 the
alternative to exercise these options as a CPA. Where the CPA is chosen, vested options can be sumendered for cancellation
in retum for a direct cash payment from the Company based on the excess of the then current market price over the option
exercise price.

Changes in the number of outstanding stock options were as follows:

2008
Weighted-Average
Exercise Price
Number {dollars)
Balance at beginning of year 21,035,064 $ M4
Granted . 3,486,200 47
Exercised for common shares {1,138,348) 17
Surrendered for cash payment {897,604) 35
Forfeited {347,410) 47
Expired {4,000) 13
Balance at end of year 22,133,902 $ k1)
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Note 24 Stock-Based Compensation continued

Stock Options continued

2007 2006
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price
Number {dollars) Number (dalfars)
Balance at beginning of year 20,714,733 $ K} 18,361,617 $ 24
Granted 3,347,800 44 4,911,600 52
Exercised for common shares {(1,918,734) 19 (2,177,881} 20
Surrendered for cash payment {800,685) 34 {119,710 H
Forfeited {307,550) 44 (260,643) 41
Expired {500) 52 . (250) 18
Batance at end of year 21,035,064 3 34 20,714,733 $ 3

The following stock options were outstanding as at December 31, 2008:

Options Quistanding Options Exercisable
Range of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Life Exercise Price Exercise Price
{dollars) Number {years} {doflars) Number {dollars)
§ 1013 680,888 08 % 10 680,888 & 10
141019 2,742,356 26 18 2,742,356 18
201025 2,723,190 38 25 2,723,190 25
2610 2,028,459 21 29 2,028,459 29
321037 2,987,009 31 3 2,151,909 34
381043 3,278,300 5.0 44 855,975 44
4410 49 3,477,850 6.1 47 48,350 48
3010 57 4,215,850 4.1 52 2,136,200 52
$ 810 57 22,133,902 39 8§ 37 13,367,327 % 30

During 2008, the Company recorded compensation (recovery) expense of $(125) million (2007 - $69 milion; 2006 -
$31 million) relating to options with a CPA and compensation expense of $nil (2007 - $1 million; 2006 ~ $10 million) relating to
the 2003 stock options, which had been fully expensed by December 31, 2007.

Stock Appreciation Rights {SARs)

Commencing 2007, the Company approved the issuance of SARs to certain employees, which entitle the holder to receive a
cash payment equal to the difference between the stated exercise price and the market price of the Companys common
shares on the date of surrender. The vesting period and other terms are similar to the terms of the Company’s existing stock
option plan. At the time of grant, the exercise price approximated the market price. The following SARs have been granted:

2008 2007

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Exercise Price

Number (doflars) Number (dolfars)

Balance at beginning of year 3,659,450 $ 44 - $ -

Granted 4,107,330 47 3,786,500 44

Exercised (139,680) 44 - -

Forfeited (419,746) 47 {127,050} 44

Balance at end of year 7,207,354 $ 46 3,659,450 $ 44
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Note24 Stock-Based Compensation continued
Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs} continued

The following SARs were outstanding as at December 31, 2008:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Range of

Exercise Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Prices Life Exercise Price Exercise Price
(dotlars) Number {years) {dollars) Number {dollars)

$§ 24t040 88,200 68 § 33 - § -

411045 3,165,424 5.1 44 718,135 44

46 to 50 3,771,780 6.1 47 15,875 49

51t0 35 85,200 5.8 54 18,425 54

56 to 60 96,750 6.0 58 12,500 57

$ 24t080 7,207,354 57 % 46 764,935 § 45

During 2008, the Company recorded compensation (recovery) expense of $(15) million (2007 - $17 million) relating to SARs.
Performance Share Units (PSUs)

The Company maintains a plan for PSUs for officers and other senior management employees. Under this plan, notional share
units are awarded and settled in cash at the end of a three-year period based upon the Company's share price at that time, the
value of notional dividends applied during the period and the Company's total shareholder return relative to a peer group of
North American industry competitors.

Changes in the number of outstanding PSUs were as follows:

2008 2007

Number Number

Balance at beginning of year 1,166,044 1,482,986
Granted 254,169 247476
Redeemed (584,137) -
Forfeited (7,704) {564,418)
Balance at end of year 828,372 1,166,044

PSUs have a three-year performance period, such that those outstanding at the end of 2008 are related to PSUs issued in
2006, 2007 and 2008 {2006 grant — 346,667, 2007 grant — 236,652; 2008 grant — 245,053). During 2008, the Company
recorded compensation (recovery) expense relating to PSUs of $(5) miltion (2007 - $4 miltion; 2006 — $(4) million).

Deferred Share Units (DSUs)

The Company maintains a plan for DSUs whereby executive officers are awarded DSUs andfor can elect to receive all or a
partion of their annual incentive compensation in the form of DSUs. Under this plan, notional share units are issued for the
elected amount, which is based on the then current market price of the Company's common shares. Upon termination or
retirement, the units are settled in cash, which includes an amount for the value of notional dividends eamed over the period
the units were outstanding.

The Company's Board of Directors receives a portion of their compensation in the form of DSUs and can also elect to receive
all or a portion of their remaining compensation in the form of DSUs. Under the Director program, notional share units are
issued and settled in cash or common shares, including the value of notional dividends, upon ceasing to be a Director.

During 2008, the Company recorded compensation {recovery) expense relating to DSUs of $(16) million {2007 - $4 million;
2008 — $2 million).
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Note 25 Employee Future Benefits

The Company maintains pension plans with defined benefit and defined contribution provisions and provides certain health
care and life insurance benefits to its qualifying retirees. The actuarially determined cost of these benefits is accrued over the
estimated service life of employees. The defined benefit provisions are generally based upon years of service and average
salary during the final years of employment. Certain defined benefit options require employee contributions and the balance of
the funding for the registered plans is provided by the Company, based upon the advice of an independent actuary. The
accrued benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets are measured for accounting purposes at December 31 of each
year. The most recent actuarial valuation of the pension plan for funding purposes was as of December 31, 2007 and the next

required valuation wilt be as of December 31, 2010.

The defined contribution plan provides for an annual contribution of 5% to B% of each participating employee's

pensionable eamings.

Benefit Plan Expense

Pension Pians

Other Post-Retirement Plans

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
{a) Defined benefit plans
Employer current service cost $ 40 % 43 5 40 $ 6 § 5 § 4
Intgrest cost 95 80 86 13 12 1
Actual retum on plan assets 222 (8) {154) - - -
Actuarial losses (gains) {187) (42} 43 (33) 13 -
Elements of employee future benefit plan
expense before adjustments to recognize
the long-term nature of employee future
benefit plan expense $ 170§ 83 § 15 $ (14) § 30 % 15
Ditference between actual and expected retum
on plan assets (333) (104) 55 - - -
Difference between actual and recognized
actuarial losses in year 236 86 8 35 (1) 2
Arortization of transitional (asset) obligation {7 (6) {5) 2 2 2
$ 66 $ 59 % 73 $ 23 8 21 3 19
{b} Defined contribution plans 27 2 18
Total expense $ 93 § 81 § 91 $ 23 § 21 § 19
Benefit Plan Funding
Pension Plans Qther Post-Retirement Plans
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Defined contribution % 22 5 18
Defined benefit 4 § 99 $ 9% $ 10§ 10§ 10
Financial Status of Defined Benefit Plans
Pension Plans Other Post-Retirement Plans
2008 2007 2008 2007
Fair value of plan assets $ 1,232 % 1,502 $ - $ -
Accrued benefit obligation 1,639 1,784 2N 255
Funded status - plan deficit! {407) (282) {231) {255}
Unamortized transitional {asset) obligation {5) (12) 9 1
Unamortized net actuarial iosses 554 462 16 51
Accrued benefit asset (iiability) $ 142 § 168 $ (206) 3 (193)

1 The pension and other post-retirement plans included in the finandal status information are not fully funded.
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Note 25 Employee Future Benefits continued

Reconciliation of Plan Assets

Pension Plans

Other Post-Retirement Plans

2008 2007 2008 2007
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,502 $ 1,486 - -
Contributions 40 99 10 g
Benefits paid {85) (83) (10) {9)
Actual return on plan assets {222) 8 - -
Other {3) {8) - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,232 $ 1,502 - -
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation
Pension Plans QOther Post-Retirement Pians
2008 2007 2008 2007
Accrued benefit obligation af beginning of year  § 1,784 $ 1,786 255 235
Current service cost 40 43 6 5
Interest cost a5 90 13 12
Benefits paid (85) (83) (10} {9
Actuarial losses (gains) (187) (42) (33) 12
Other (8) (10 - -
Accrued benefit abligation at end of year $ 1,639 $ 1,784 23 255
Defined Benefit and Other Post-Retirement Plans Assumptions
. 2008 2007 2006
Year-end obligation discount rate’ 6.3% 53% 5.0%
Accrued benefit abligation discount rate! 6.3% 5.3% 5.0%
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 1.5% 7.5% 7.5%
Rate of compensation increase, excluding merit increases 3.3% 3.3% 3.0%
1 Assumption used in both pension and other post-retirement plans.
Assumed Health and Dental Care Cost Trend Rates
Trend Rates at December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Dental cara cost trend rate! 4.0% 4.0% 3.5%
Health care cost trend rate 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%
Health care cost trend rate declines to 4.5% 4.5% 4.5%
Year from which the health care cost trend rate remains constant 2017 2017 2014

1 Dental care cost trend rate assumed to remain constant,

Sensitivity Analysis

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one

percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects for 2008:

Increase Decrease
Total service and interest cost (@)
Accrued benefit obligation 27 (24)
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Note 25 Employee Future Benefits continved

Plan Assets
Percentage of Plan Assets
at December 31,
Asset Category 2008 2007
Equity 56% B81%
Bonds 44% 3%%
100% 100%

Note 26 Capital Management

The Company's capital management strategy is designed to maintain financial strength and flexibility to support profitable
growth in all business environments. The Company's capital consists of debt, which is comprised of long-term debt and short-
term notes payable, and shareholders’ equity. The Company measures financial strength and flexibility using two key
measures: debt-to-cash flow from operating activities, the key short-term measure, and debt-to-debt plus equity, the key long-
term measure. These are calculated as follows:

2008 2007
Long-term debt $ 4746 § 3,339
Add: Current portion of long-term debt 3 2
Total long-term debt $ 4743 § 3.341
Add: Short-term notes payable - 109
Debt (A} $ 4748 § 3,450
Shareholders' equity 15,475 11,870
Debt plus equity (B) $ 20224 % 15,320
Cash flow from operating activities (C) $ 6522 § 3339
Debt-to-cash flow from operating activities (A/C) {times) 0.7 1.0
Debt-to-debt plus equity (A/B) 23.5% 22.5%

At December 31, 2008, the debt-to-cash flow from operating activities ratio was within the Company’s long-term range of no
more than 2.0 times. Debt-to-debt plus equity was below the long-term range of 25% to 35%, providing the financial flexibility to
fund the Company's capital program and profitable growth opportunities. The Company may exceed long-term ranges for short
pericds of time, but always with the goal to retum back within the long-term ranges.

Financial covenants associated with the Company’s various banking and debt arrangements are reviewed regularly and
controls are in place to maintain compliance with these covenants. The Company complied with all financial covenants for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The Company's priority uses of cash are to fund the capital prograrm and profitable growth opportunities, and then to retum
cash to shareholders through dividends and a share repurchase program.

The Company regularly reviews its dividend strategy to ensure the alignment of the dividend policy with shareholder
expectations, and financial and growth objeclives. Consistent with this objective, on July 23, 2008, the Company declared a
54% increase in its quarterly dividend to $0.20 per common share commencing with the dividend paid on October 1, 2008. In
June 2008, the Company renewed its NCIB program for the repurchase of its common shares from June 22, 2008 to June 21,
2009, entitling the Company to repurchase up to 5% of its outstanding common shares, subject to certain conditions {(Note 23).
Due to an increasing capital program, the Company did not repurchase any of its shares in 2008.

Given the recent turmoil in financial markets, the Company continues to monitor its capital management strategy and make
adjustments as appropriate. The Company's capital management strategy has not changed significantly from the prior year.
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Note 27 Financial Risks and Financial Instruments
Financial Risks

The Company is exposed to a number of financial risks in the normal course of its business operations, including market risks
resulting from fluctuations in commodity prices, interest rates and foreign cumency exchange rates, as well as credit risks and
liquidity risks. '

a) Market Risks

The Company monitors its exposure to market fluctuations and may use derivative contracts to manage these risks as it
considers appropriate. The Company does not use derivative contracts for speculative purposes.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to commodity price risk as fluctuations in crude oil or natural gas prices could have a material
adverse effect on its financial condition, as well as on the value and amount of the Company's reserves. Prices for crude oil
and natural gas fluctuate in response to changes in supply and demand, market uncertainty and a variety of other factors
beyond the Company’s control.

The margins realized from the Company’s refined petroleum products are also affected by factors such as crude oil price
fluctuations due to the impact on refinery feedstock costs, third-party refined product purchases and the demand for refined
petroleurn products. The Company’s ability to maintain product margins in an environment of higher feedstock costs depends
on its ability to pass higher costs on to custormers. The Company enters into derivative contracts te reduce exposure in its
Downsiream operations to these margin fluctuations, including margins on fixed price product sales, and short-term price
fluctuations on the purchase of foreign and domestic crude oil and refined petroleum products. The Company’s exposure to
these margin fluctuations is limited.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as changes in market interest rates affect the fair values of fixed-interest rate
liabilities and the cash flows of both floating-interest rate liabilities and future borrowings. Senior notes, debentures and capital
leases all bear interest at fixed rates. Drawings on the syndicated and demand credit facilities bear interest at floating rates.
The Company regularly reviews the mix of floating and fixed-rate debt for consistency with its financing objectives. Interest rate
risk from the Company's financial instruments is not significant.

Foreign Curmency Exchange Risk

Petro-Canada and its Canadian subsidiaries' functional currency is Canadian (Cdn) dollars, while crude oil, one of the
Company’s primary products, is priced by reference to U.S. dollar benchmark prices. Therefore, Cdn/U.S. dollar exchange rate
fluctuations can have a significant impact cn the Company's revenues, crude oil and product purchases, and associated
financial instruments.

The Company is also exposed to foreign currency exchange risk from its self-sustaining foreign operations whose functional
currency is different from Petro-Canada'’s functional currency. Gains and losses from the translation of financial instruments
within these self-sustaining foreign operations into Canadian dollars are presented as a separate component of other
comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income.
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Note 27 Financial Risks and Financial Instruments continuved
Financial Risks confinued

The Company's outstanding U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debt (Note 2() partially mitigates the exposure to Cdn/U.S.
dollar exchange rate fluctuations created from its U.S. dollar-denominated cash flows and other associated financial
instruments. In addition, the Company may hold a significant amount of U.S. dollar cash and cash equivalents to meet
immediate capital and/or operating funding- requirements, and may have significant accounts receivable, other assels,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities balances denominated in U.S. dollars. These can create additional
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. At December 31, 2008, the Company had the following U.S. dollar-denominated
financial instruments:

2008

(8US)

Cash and cash equivalents - $ 473
Accounts receivable 1,287
Other assets : 11
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (338)
Long-term debt (3,953}
Cther liabilities (493)
$ {3,013}

In respect of the Company's U.S. dollar-denominated financial instruments above, a 10% change in the Cdn/U.S. doltar
exchange rate (1.2246 as at December 31, 2008) would change net earnings by approximately $338 million and other
comprehensive income (loss) by approximately $32 miltion. The Company does not have significant financial instruments
denominated in other foreign currencies.

b) Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its financial assets from its counterparties’ abilities to fulfil their obligations to the
Company. The Company manages this risk through the establishment of credit policies and limits, which are applied in the
selection of counterparties. The Company ensures that it has no significant concentrations of credit risk and ensures that no
customers represent more than 10% of the Company’s consolidated revenues for any period.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credif risk at December 31, 2008 is equal to the carrying amount of ifs financial assets
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company carries sufficient provisions to cover its expected losses arising
from credit risk associated with all financia! assets. These provisions are not significant.

c) Liquidity Risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk from the potential inability to generate or obtain sufficient cash in a timely and cost-
effective manner to discharge its financial Hiabilities as they come due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting cash
flows to identify financing requirements, by maintaining committed and demand credit facilities, and by maintaining access to
additional financing at competitive rates through capital markets and highly rated financial institutions. Any debt issued by the
Company is managed in accerdance with specified liquidity and maturity profiles.

The Company’s financial capacity and flexibility remain strong despite the recent turmeit in the financial markets. This is due to

the Company's continuing ability to generate cash flow, access existing cash balances and access significant credit facility
capacity requiring no near-term refinancing.
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Note 27 Financial Risks and Financial Instruments continued
Financial Risks continuved

The timing of undiscounted cash outflows related to financia! liabilities is as follows:

Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Thereafter

Accounts payable and accrued liabilittes and other liabitities* $ 3186 § 900 $ -
Long-term debt? 316 1,265 ° 9,267
$ 3502 & 2165 % 9,267

1 Other liabilities indudes the Fort Hills purchase obligation {(Note 7) and the Libya EPSAs signature bonus (Note 13).
2 includes debentures, senior notes, capital leases and related interest.

Derivative Contracts

The Company enters into forward contracts and options to reduce exposure {o Downstream margin fluctuations, including
margins on fixed-price product sales, and short-term price fluctuations on the purchase of foreign and domestic crude oil and
refined petroleum products.

The Company's outstanding derivative contracts and their related fair values at December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Quantity Average Price
(MMbbls) Maturity {3US/Hb) Fair Value
Crude oil purchases 15 2009 $ 44,22 3 3
Crude oil sales 13 2009 $ 39.44 (8)

$ (5)

The fair value positions of outstanding derivative contracts were recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007

Accounts receivable $ 1 $ 1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ {6) 8 -

The fair value of these derivative contracts is based on quotes provided by brokers, which represents an approximation of
amounts that would be received or paid to counterparties to settle these instruments prior to maturity. The Company plans to
hold all derivative contracts outstanding at December 31, 2008 to maturity. Gains and losses on these derivative contracts are
recorded in investment and other income (expense) {Note 6).

In respect of the Company's outstanding derivative contracts above, a $10¢ US/bbl change in the price of crude oil would
change net eamnings by approximately $0.5 million.
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Note 27 Financial Risks and Financial Instruments continued

Derivative Contracts continued

During 2004, the Company entered into a series of derivative contracts for the future sale of Dated Brent crude oil in
connection with its acquisition of an interest in the Buzzard field in the U K. sector of the North Sea. Some derivative contracts
matured from July 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007. All remaining outstanding derivative contracts were settled in December
2007. This resulted in the following:

2007
Unrealized losses at beginning of year $ {1.48%)
Net losses during the year (535)
Maturities* 291
Settlement? 1,725

) -
1 Derivative contracts that matured from July 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007 resulted in realized losses of $291 million ($193 million after-tax}.
2 All remaining outstanding derivative contracts were settled, which resulted in realized losses of $1,725 million ($1,745 million after-tax).

Financial Instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet are as follows:

2008 2007
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Held-for-trading financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,445 § 1,445 $ 231 % 23
Loans and receivables
Accounts receivable’ 2,756 2,756 1,934 1,931
Other assets 32 a2 34 KL
Cther financial liabilities (not held-for-trading})
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,186} (3,186) (3,512) {3,512)
Short-term notes payable - - {108) (109}
Long-term debt (4,749) (3,868) {3.341) (3,495)
Other liabilities (908) (906) (380} (380)
l $ (4611) $ (3,727) $ {5.146) § {5,300}

1 Accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2008 indludes $88 million (December 31, 2007 — $42 million) of
prepaid expenses.

The fair values of held-for-trading financia! assets, loans and receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities equal or
approximate their carrying amounts. The fair values of debentures, senior notes and capital leases are based on publicly
quoted market values for instruments with similar terms and risks. The fair values of the Fort Hilts purchase obligation and the
Libya EPSAs signature bonus obligation, included in other liabilities, reflect expected payout patterns and the Company's
estimated cost of debt at year end.
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Note 28 Commitments and Contingent Lizbilities

Commitments
2009 210 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total
Cperating leases § 484 § 372 § 144 § 123 ¢ 90 % 86y § 2,082
Transportation agreements 197 196 136 119 111 677 1,436
Product purchase/delivery obligations 3,361 1,871 1,31 1,219 699 4,212 12,733
Exploration work commitments 381 186 105 85 - 12 769
Other long-term obligations 661 1,013 587 239 234 1,052 3,786
$ 5084 § 3638 § 2343 § 1785 § 1134 § 6822 § 20.806

Contingent Liabilities

The Company is involved in litigation and claims in the normal course of operations. In addition, the Company may provide
indemnifications, in the nomal course of operations, that are often standard contractual terms to counterparties in certain
transactions, such as purchase and sale agreements. The terms of these indemnifications will vary based upon the contract,
the nature of which prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amounts that may be
required to be paid. Management is of the cpinion that any resulting settlements relating to the litigation matters or
indemnifications would not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Note 29 Variable Interest Entities

CICA Accounting Guideline 15, Consclidation of Variable interest Entities (VIEs), provides criteria for the identification of VIEs
and further criteria for determining what entity, if any, should consolidate them. Entities in which equity investors do not have
the characteristic of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support are subject to consolidation by a company if that company is deemed the
primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the party that is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the VIEs' activities,
or is enfitled to receive a majority of the VIEs' residual returns, or both. The Company has determined that certain retail
licensee and wholesale marketer agreements would constitute VIEs, even though the Company has no ownership in these
entities. The Company, however, is not the primary beneficiary and, therefore, consclidation is not required. In certain of the
retail licensee arrangements, the Company has provided loan guarantees. Management is of the opinion that the Company's
maximurn exposure to loss from these arrangements would not be significant.




Note 30 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States

The application of United States GAAP would have the following effects on net eamings as reported:

Notes 2008 20071 2006

Net earnings from continuing operations, as reported in the

Consolidated Statement of Eamings $ 3134 $ 2,733 $ 1,588
Adjustments, before income faxes

Inventories (a) - 187 (2

Accaunting for income taxes (b} {9) 14 8

Capitalization of interest and related amortization {d) 42 19 47

Stock-based compensation (), 45 (31) (24)

Exploration mining costs (c) (19) (6) -

Income taxes on above items (25) {41) 8
Net earnings from continuing operations, as adjusted before

cumulative effect of change in accounting policy 3,168 2,875 1,625
Net eamnings from discontinued operations - - 152
Net earnings, as adjusted before cumulative effect of change

in accounting policy 3,168 2,875 1777
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy, net of tax {9) - - (14)
Net earnings, as adjusted § 3,168 $ 2875 $§ 1763
Earnings from ¢ontinuing operations, as adjusted before

cumulative effect of change in accounting pelicy per share

Basic $ 6.54 3 5.88 5 3.22

Diluted $ 6.50 $ 5.82 $ 3.19
Earnings, as adjusted before cumulative effect of change in

accounting palicy per share

Basic $ 6.54 5 5.88 3 3.53

Diluted $ 6.50 $ 5.82 $ 349
Earnings, as adjusted per share

Basic $ 654 § 5.88 $ 350

Diluted . $ 6.50 $ 5.82 $ 346

1 Prior pericd figures have been restated as a result of the Company adopting a FIFQ inventory valuation basis (Note (a)).

The application of United States GAAP would have the following effects on comprehensive income as reported:

Notes 2008 2007 2006
Comprehensive income, net of tax, as reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income $ 3,348 $ 2473 $ 2103
Adjusiments to net earnings, net of tax 34 (1) 7
Adjustments to other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Additional pension liability {f) (44) (52) 42
Unrealized gain (loss} on translation of foreign currency
denominated additional capitalized interest {d) {7) {20) 6
Comprehensive income, net of tax, as adjusted $§ 33 $ 2400 $ 2158
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Note 30 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States continued

The application of United States GAAP would have the following effects on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as reported:

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

United States . United States

Notes As Reported GAAP As Reported GAAP!

Current assets {a) $ 5603 § 5,603 $ 3178 % 3,990
Property, plant and equipment, net (b, c d) 23,485 24,106 19,497 20,112
Goodwill (b} 852 831 731 710
Other assets {f, h) 437 41 445 384
Current liabilities (g} 4,207 4,229 3,623 3,705
Long-term debt (h} 4,746 4,862 3,339 3,445
Other liabilities {f. q) 1,240 1,679 17 1,056
Asset retirement cbligations 1,527 1,527 1,234 1,234
Future income taxes (a,bcdf g 3,182 3,190 3,069 3,324
Common shares 1,388 1,388 1,365 1,365
Contributed surplus (e) 22 793 24 795
Retained eamings (e) 14,062 13,720 10,692 10,872

Accumulated other comprehensive

income {loss) {d, f $ s (437) $ (211} § {600}

1 Prior period figures have been restated as a result of the Company adopting a FIFO inventory valuation basis {Note {a)).

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP, which differ in
some respects from those applicable in the United States. The following are the significant differences in accounting principles
as they pertain to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements:

a) Inventories

The Company adopted CICA Section 3031, Inventores, on January 1, 2008, valuing inventory on a FIFO basis and
electing to adjust 2008 opening retained earnings in accordance with transitional provisions of the new accounting
standard (Note 3). The Company also adopted this inventory valuation policy for United States GAAP, which requires
refrospective accounting treatment for this change in accounting policy. As a result, the Company has restated certain
prior year comparative figures.

b) Income Taxes

The liability method followed by the Company differs from United States GAAP due to the application of transitional
provisions upon adoption and the use of substantively enacted versus enacted rates.

c} Property, Plant and Equipment

Under Canadian GAAP, exploration costs for mining properties are capitalized when such costs have the characteristics
of property, plant and equipment. Under United States GAAP, exploration costs for mining properties are expensed until
proved and probable reserves have been established by a feasibility study,
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Note 30 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States continued

d) interest Capitalization

The Company capitalizes inferest attributable to the construction of major new facilities under both Canadian and United
States GAAP, but uses different capitalization methodologies under each. Under United States GAAP, the amount of
interest capitalized for the period is the product of the average accumulated capitalized costs and the weighted-average
interest rate applicable to all borowings outstanding during the period. However, under Canadian GAAP, the amount of
interest capitalized is calculated using the same formula except that the average accumulated capitalized costs are first
multiplied by the Company's average corporate debt to equity ratio.

e) Contributed Surplus

In prior years, the Company transferred $1,122 million from contributed surplus to the accumulated deficit. United States
GAAP does not permit these transfers. As a result of this difference, under United States GAAP, the excess of the
purchase price over the carrying amount of shares repurchased under the Company's NCIB program has been recorded
as a reduction of contributed surplus. Under Canadian GAAP, this excess cost has been recorded as a reduction of both
contributed surplus and retained earnings.

f)}  Pensions and Other Post-Retirement Benefits

United States GAAP requires the Company to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of its defined benefit post-
retirerment plans, measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the accrued benefit obligation, as
an asset or liability on its balance sheet. Changes to the funding status in the vear are recorded through cther
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Canadian GAAP currently does not require the Company to recognize the
funded status of these plans on the Consclidated Balance Sheet.

g) Stock-Based Compensation

United States GAAP requires compensation costs related to share-based awards classified as liabilities to be recognized
as an expense at fair value with re-measurement to fair value each period. Under Canadian GAAP, the Company
recognizes compensation cost for stock options, which provides the holder the right to exercise the stock option or
surrender the option for cash payment based on the intrinsic value at each period end.

h) Deferred Financing Costs

The Company adopted CICA Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement, on January 1, 2007.
As a result, transaction costs and premiums or discounts directly attributable to the issuance of long-term debt are now
added to the fair value of the debt upon initial recognition. Previously, these amounts were deferred and presented as
assets. This is still the prescribed treatment under United States GAAP.

i}y  Cash Flow Information

The application of United States GAAP would not have a materal effect on cash flow from total operating, investing. or
financing activities on the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

j}  Fair Value Measurements and Fair Value Option

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement 157, Fair Value Measurements, and Statement 159,
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, both effective for the Company's 2008 fiscal year. The
application of these Statements did not have a significant impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements
under United States GAAP,
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Note 31 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Canadian

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The AcSB has issued CICA Section 2064, Goodwill and intangible Assets, and as a result has withdrawn CICA Section 3062,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and CICA Seclion 3450, Research and Development Costs. This new standard
reinforces the principle-based approach to the recognition of costs as assets in accordance with the AcSB's definition of an
asset. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2009. There is no material impact on the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Business Combinations

In January 2009, the AcSB issued CICA Section 1582, Business Combinations, which replaces the existing Section 1581 of
the same name. This standard mandates that all future business combinations be accounted for as a purchase by one party of
another, and that all assets, liabilities, contingent consideration and non-controlling interest of the acquiree be recorded at fair
value. Gains on bargain purchases are to be recognized in net eamings, and all acquisition costs expensed. This standard is
equivalent to the IFRS on business combinations. This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1,
2011, with early application permitted, and will likely impact fulure Consolidated Financial Statements should the Company
engage in business combinations.

United States
Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB issued Revised Statement 141R, Business Combinations. This standard is identical to CICA
Section 1582, Business Combinations, except that it is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. As with
CICA Section 1582, Business Combinations, this standard will likely impact future Consolidated Financia! Statements should
the Company engage in business combinations.

End of Financial Statements
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